
NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1201 Cedar Ln., Northbrook, IL  60062 

Regular Monthly Meeting Agenda 

July 18, 2019 at 7:30 p.m. 

1 Call Regular Meeting to Order  Mr. Carlos M. Früm 

2 Board of Trustees Roll Call  Ms. Jennifer McGee 

3 Approval of the Agenda  Mr. Carlos M. Früm 

4 Approval of Minutes  Mr. Carlos Früm 

4.1    Regular Session Minutes  June 20, 2019 

5 Public Comments 

6   Ms. Jami Xu 

6.1     Review Monthly Financial Statements 

6.2     Approve Bills and Charges from June, 2019 

7 Monthly Foundation Report  Ms. Anna Amen 

8 Economic Development Committee Report  Mr. Jay Glaubinger 

9 Staff Reports  Ms. Kate Hall 

10 Unfinished Business 

10.1 Facility Plan Discussion 

10.2 Discuss Parking Lot Truck Barrier 

11 New Business 

11.1   Illinois Public Library Annual Report 

11.2   Exterior Façade Repair Presentation 

11.3   Intergovernmental Agreement for Axis 360 Community Share 

12 Adjourn 
FINAL VOTE OR ACTION MAY BE TAKEN AT THE MEETING ON ANY AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT MATTER LISTED ABOVE, UNLESS THE AGENDA 
LINE ITEM SPECIFICALLY STATES OTHERWISE. 

The Northbrook Public Library is subject to the Requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Individuals with disabilities who plan 
to attend any meetings of the Board and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, 
or who have questions regarding the accessibility of these meetings or the facilities are requested to contact Brodie Austin at 847-272-7074 
promptly to allow the Northbrook Public Library to make reasonable accommodations for those persons.  Hearing impaired individuals may 
establish TDD contact by calling 847-272-7074. 

Page 1 of 125



Page 2 of 125



NORTHBROOK PUBLIC LIBRARY 

CASH BALANCES 

6/30/2019

Beginning
Balance Cash Receipts Expenditures

Ending
Balance

Operating
General 8,406,429.30 36,676.64 2,296,270.47 6,146,835.47

Restricted 258,495.08 14,575.30 3,018.49 270,051.89

IMRF 541,496.52 63.54 27,145.30 514,414.76

Fica 197,635.52 36.31 23,881.36 173,790.47

Total Operating $ 9,404,056.42 $ 51,351.79 $2,350,315.62 $ 7,105,092.59

Capital Improvement $ 514,437.72 $1,582,176.28 $ 215,521.24 $ 1,881,092.76

Debt Service $ 8,733.83 $ 118,819.94 $ 127,553.77

Cash Detail Operating
Capital

Improvement Debt Service
NB&T - Checking 246,155.48 14,354.72 46.75

ProPay - -

PayPal 2,892.02 - -

GSB - Money Market 225,244.61 - -

MB - Checking/Money Market 6,566,248.13 1,735,362.14 -

Certificates of Deposit (detail below) - 77,347.80 123,843.16
US Bancorp 648.78 503.45

IMET 63,108.57 53,524.65 3,663.86
Petty Cash 795.00 - -

Total $ 7,105,092.59 $1,881,092.76 $ 127,553.77

Amount Maturity Rate Term-Days

Certificates of Deposit - Capital Improvements
NBT-16808 $ 77,347.80 06/25/20 0.250% 365

Certificates of Deposit - Debt Service
NBT- 16829 $ 123,843.16 07/13/19 0.250% 365

NBT = Northbrook Bank & Trust

MB = MB Financial

GSB = Glenview State Bank

IMET = Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund

USB = US Bancorp

Page 3 of 125



Page 4 of 125



PY M
onth

C
Y M

onth
P

Y
YTD

C
Y YTD

C
Y B

udget
16.66%

01 - G
eneral O

perating Fund
Revenues

U
ndesignated Revenue

P
ro

p
e

rty
 T

a
x
 L

e
v
y

$
0

.0
0

$
9
1

6
.0

8
$

3
,7

0
9

,1
5

2
.5

8
$

3
,8

4
7

,9
4

0
.8

2
$

7
,3

2
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

2
.5

0
%

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t T

a
x

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0
.0

0
$
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0

.0
0

%

Im
p

a
c
t F

e
e
s

$
0

.0
0

$
5

7
9
.7

0
$

0
.0

0
$
8
2
8
.1

0
$

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

%

F
in

e
s
, F

e
e
s
 &

 R
e
n
ta

ls
$
6
,1

0
1
.6

0
$

5
,2

0
9

.8
7

$
1

0
,7

0
8

.5
0

$
1

0
,0

2
2

.8
3

$
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
0
.0

5
%

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o
m

e
$
9
,2

4
6
.7

7
$
1
3
,6

3
5
.8

1
$

1
6

,8
0

1
.3

3
$

2
9

,9
6

2
.8

8
$

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

9
.9

3
%

O
th

e
r In

c
o
m

e
$

1
3
8

.2
5

$
6

,3
4

5
.5

0
$

2
5

9
.2

5
$

6
,3

9
5

.7
0

$
1

0
0

,0
0
0

.0
0

6
.4

0
%

T
o

ta
l U

n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
$

1
5

,4
8
6

.6
2

$
2
6

,6
8

6
.9

6
$

3
,7

3
6

,9
2

1
.6

6
$

3
,8

9
5

,1
5

0
.3

3
$

7
,6

2
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
5

1
.0

6
%

D
esignated R

evenue
G

ifts
 &

 O
th

e
r D

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 In

c
o
m

e
$
4
,8

5
9
.7

2
$
1
4
,5

1
7
.9

2
$
5
,1

6
8
.9

4
$
1
7
,2

0
9
.0

4
$
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

7
.2

1
%

D
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d
 In

te
re

s
t In

c
o
m

e
$

2
8

.6
2

$
5
7

.3
8

$
3

6
.0

1
$

7
2

.1
8

$
0
.0

0
0

.0
0

%

T
o

ta
l D

e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
$
4
,8

8
8
.3

4
$

1
4

,5
7

5
.3

0
$

5
,2

0
4

.9
5

$
1

7
,2

8
1

.2
2

$
1

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1

7
.2

8
%

Total R
evenues

$20,374.96
$41,262.26

$3,742,126.61
$3,912,431.55

$7,729,000.00
50.62%

Expenses
U

ndesignated Expenses
M

aterials &
 Services

B
o
o
k
s

A
u
d
io

 V
is

u
a

l

V
id

e
o
s
/D

V
D

s

$
1
0
8
,3

2
1
.4

9

$
9
4

,6
2
7
.0

6

$
7

,9
7
4
.7

7

$
5

,7
1
9
.6

6

$
1
0
2
,6

3
5
.7

7

$
8
8

,0
9

0
.1

6

$
6
,1

5
3

.3
2

$
8

,3
9
2
.2

9

$
1

6
0

,3
7

1
.0

0

$
1

4
2

,3
5
6
.5

7

$
9

,6
9

9
.1

0

$
8

,3
1
5
.3

3

$
1
5
5
,8

7
3
.7

5

$
1

3
3
,5

3
5

.4
9

$
1
0
,7

0
6

.8
8

$
1
1

,6
3

1
.3

8

$
9
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
6
.9

4
%

P
ro

g
ra

m
s

$
8
,7

7
8
.0

9
$
1
2
,2

4
1
.2

1
$

3
2

,8
3

8
.0

7
$

3
3

,8
9

3
.2

8
$

1
3

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

2
5

.6
8

%

O
C

L
C

$
1
,4

0
4
.1

9
$
1
,9

7
9
.3

9
$
2
,8

4
8
.8

8
$
3
,9

3
7
.5

3
$
2
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

5
.1

4
%

C
C

S
 S

h
a

re
d
 C

o
s
ts

$
6
,3

2
6
.9

0
$
6
,3

2
6
.9

0
$
1
2
,6

5
3
.8

0
$
1
2
,6

5
3

.8
0

$
8
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

5
.0

6
%

T
o

ta
l M

a
te

ria
ls

 &
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
1
2
4
,8

3
0
.6

7
$

1
2

3
,1

8
3

.2
7

$
2

0
8

,7
1

1
.7

5
$
2
0
6
,3

5
8
.3

6
$
1
,1

6
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

7
.7

6
%

H
um

an Resources
G

e
n

e
ra

l S
a
la

rie
s
 a

n
d
 W

a
g
e

s
$

2
8

9
,2

6
7

.7
9

$
3

0
9

,1
9

3
.6

7
$

5
8
3

,6
8

0
.5

2
$

6
1

2
,4

6
7

.7
5

$
3

,8
1

4
,0

1
7

.0
0

1
6

.0
6

%

M
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 S

a
la

rie
s
 &

 W
a

g
e
s

$
1

2
,7

8
1

.1
0

$
1

3
,3

0
0

.0
6

$
2

5
,5

6
2

.2
0

$
2

6
,4

5
6

.0
8

$
1

8
2

,4
5

8
.0

0
1

4
.5

0
%

G
ro

u
p
 In

s
u
ra

n
c
e

$
3

8
,1

2
9

.5
8

$
4
1

,6
6

3
.4

7
$

8
5

,3
9

7
.3

7
$

8
3

,2
2

0
.4

4
$

5
7

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
4
.4

7
%

U
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t/W

o
rk

e
r's

 C
o

m
p

$
2
,3

3
6
.9

3
$
3
,5

2
5
.0

0
$

2
5

,1
0

7
.9

3
$

1
8

,5
7

2
.7

5
$

2
5

,0
0
0

.0
0

7
4

.2
9

%

S
ta

ff D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t
$
2
,1

7
8
.1

8
$

3
,3

7
7

.2
5

$
1
5
,8

0
9
.5

1
$

1
9

,3
1

5
.6

2
$

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
9

.3
2

%

T
o
ta

l H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

$
3
4
4
,6

9
3
.5

8
$
3
7
1
,0

5
9
.4

5
$
7
3
5
,5

5
7
.5

3
$
7
6
0
,0

3
2
.6

4
$
4
,6

9
6
,4

7
5
.0

0
1
6
.1

8
%

Page 5 of 125



PY M
onth

C
Y M

onth
P

Y
Y

TD
C

Y
Y

TD
C

Y B
udget

1
6

.6
6

%

O
perating Costs
P

h
o
to

c
o
p
y

$
7
,0

7
3
.1

0
$
2
,9

3
9
.9

6
$

1
5

,2
8

5
.5

9
$

1
3

,8
7

3
.0

4
$

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
3

4
.6

8
%

O
ffic

e
 &

 L
ib

ra
ry

 S
u

p
p
lie

s
$
7
,2

1
5
.0

0
$
9
,2

0
3
.1

2
$
1
3
,8

5
8
.5

7
$
1
2
,3

9
0
.0

9
$
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

7
.7

0
%

S
o
ftw

a
re

$
1
2
6
.5

1
$
7
2
5
.0

0
$
2
2
,4

3
5
.3

7
$
1
9
,3

0
0
.4

8
$
1
0
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

8
.7

4
%

P
o

s
ta

g
e

$
1

5
,1

3
7

.7
4

$
3
8
.3

7
$

1
5

,2
1

6
.7

4
$
3
8
.3

7
$

2
0

,0
0
0

.0
0

0
.1

9
%

G
e

n
e

ra
l In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
3

3
,1

6
4

.4
9

$
4

4
,7

7
3

.8
8

$
5

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

7
7
.2

0
%

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
/In

te
rn

e
t

$
4
,1

2
8
.3

2
$
8
3
3
.1

3
$
1
,7

7
6
.5

2
$
3
,4

4
9
.5

4
$
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

7
.2

5
%

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
3

4
,0

1
9

.3
0

$
3

5
,1

1
8

.3
0

$
5

0
,6

8
5

.9
7

$
5
4

,7
3

4
.9

7
$
2
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
2

0
.2

7
%

F
u

rn
itu

re
, E

q
u
ip

m
e
n
t

$
5
,3

5
3
.7

5
$
0
.0

0
$
2
8
,2

5
6
.3

3
$
3
,4

2
3
.4

8
$
1
6
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
.1

4
%

E
q
u
ip

m
e
n
t R

e
n
ta

l &
 M

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e

$
2
,3

1
7
.0

2
$
6
8
8
.0

2
$

2
,1

2
8

.0
2

$
3

,8
5

4
.0

2
$

2
0

,0
0
0

.0
0

1
9

.2
7
%

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

 R
e

la
tio

n
s

$
8
,3

1
4
.4

8
$
5
,6

0
9
.3

6
$
1
4
,6

2
9
.8

6
$
6
,8

5
4
.9

9
$
5
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

3
.1

8
%

T
o

ta
l O

p
e

ra
tin

g
 C

o
s
ts

$
8

3
,6

8
5

.2
2

$
5

5
,1

5
5

.2
6

$
1
9
7
,4

3
7
.4

6
$
1
6
2
,6

9
2
.8

6
$
8
1
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
2

0
.0

1
%

M
aintenance
V

e
h

ic
le

 E
x
p

e
n
s
e

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

J
a
n
ito

ria
l S

u
p
p
lie

s
$
2
,3

1
2
.7

2
$
4
,3

6
3
.9

0
$
4
,0

5
6
.1

2
$

6
,2

2
4

.6
7

$
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

3
.8

3
%

U
tilitie

s
$

1
7

,6
9

7
.0

4
$

1
2

,0
1

3
.0

0
$

1
7

,0
8

3
.3

9
$

1
1

,2
2

6
.4

2
$
5
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
1
.1

8
%

B
u
ild

in
g
 R

e
p

a
irs

$
1
,4

4
5
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
1
,4

4
5
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

C
o
n
tra

c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$
1

6
,8

7
3

.2
5

$
1

9
,4

9
8

.8
8

$
3

8
,1

2
1

.1
5

$
3

6
,2

5
3

.8
0

$
1
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2

6
.8

5
%

T
o
ta

l M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

$
3
8
,3

2
8
.0

1
$

3
5

,8
7
5

.7
8

$
6

0
,7

0
5

.6
6

$
5
3

,7
0

4
.8

9
$

2
6

5
,5

0
0

.0
0

2
0
.2

3
%

O
ther Expenses
R

e
c
ru

itin
g

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
5

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

C
o

n
tin

g
e

n
c
y
 &

 M
is

e
 E

x
p

$
2
3
2
.4

1
$
1
6
0
.7

1
$
5
4
7
.3

8
$
7
1
4
.4

7
$
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.7

1
%

B
o
a
rd

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

T
o

ta
l O

th
e

r E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s
$

2
3

2
.4

1
$

1
6

0
.7

1
$

5
4
7

.3
8

$
7
1
4
.4

7
$
1
0
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.6

9
%

T
o
ta

l U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
$

5
9

1
,7

6
9

.8
9

$
5
8

5
,4

3
4

.4
7

$
1

,2
0

2
,9

5
9

.7
8

$
1

,1
8

3
,5

0
3

.2
2

$
7

,0
4

0
,9

7
5

.0
0

1
6

.8
1
%

D
esignated Expenses

M
is

c
e

lla
n

e
o
u

s
 D

e
s
ig

n
a

te
d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$
1
,7

3
9
.4

9
$

1
,4

6
9

.8
9

$
2

,7
7

0
.3

0
$

7
,1

1
5

.3
8

$
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
7
.1

2
%

D
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 M

a
te

ria
ls
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

$
1

,1
4

8
.9

7
$

4
8

.6
0

$
1

,1
4

8
.9

7
$
4
0
4
.5

3
$

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

D
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 C

a
p
ita

l E
x
p

e
n
s
e

$
3
,3

1
5
.5

3
$
0
.0

0
$
3
,3

1
5
.5

3
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

D
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 P

ro
g
ra

m
 E

x
p
e

n
s
e

$
3
,2

0
9
.0

0
$

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

$
5

,1
2

8
.9

9
$

3
,3

4
5
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

T
o
ta

l D
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
$
9
,4

1
2
.9

9
$

3
,0

1
8

.4
9

$
1

2
,3

6
3

.7
9

$
1
0
,8

6
4
.9

1
$
1
0
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
1

0
.8

6
%

Transfers &
 O

ther Financing Uses
T

ra
n

s
fe

r to
 C

IF
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$
5
6
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

T
ra

n
s
fe

r to
 D

e
b
t S

e
n

/ic
e

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

T
o

ta
l T

ra
n
s
fe

rs
 &

 O
th

e
r F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 U

se
s

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

$
5
8
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

Total Expenses
$601,182.88

$588,452.96
$1,215,323.57

$1,194,368.13
$7,728,975.00

15.45%

($580,807.92) 
($547,190.70) 

$2,526,803.04 
$
2
,7

1
8
,0

6
3
.4

2
$
2
5
.0

0
N

ET SU
R

PLUS/fDEFIC
IT)

Page 6 of 125



P
Y
 M

o
n
th

C
Y
 M

o
n
th

P
Y

 Y
T

D
C

Y
 Y

T
D

C
Y
 B

u
d
g
e
t

16.66%
02 - IM

R
F

/F
IC

A
 F

u
n

d

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e

P
ro

p
e

rty
 T

a
x
 L

e
v
y
-IM

R
F

$
0
.0

0
$
6
0
.0

2
$
2
4

1
,4

4
6
.5

2
$

2
5

2
,1

0
4

.6
9

$
4

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
5
1
.4

5
%

P
ro

p
e
rty

 T
a

x
 L

e
v
y
 F

IC
A

$
0
.0

0
$
3
4
.3

0
$

1
3

7
,9

6
9

.4
4

$
1

4
4

,0
5

9
.8

3
$

2
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

5
1
.4

5
%

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o

m
e
 IM

R
F

$
0
.0

0
$
3
.5

2
$
1
.5

0
$
9
.0

3
$
5
0
.0

0
1
8
.0

6
%

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o

m
e
 F

IC
A

$
0
.0

0
$
2
.0

1
$
0
.8

5
$
5
.1

6
$
5
0
.0

0
1
0
.3

2
%

T
o
ta

l U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e

$
0
.0

0
$
9
9
.8

5
$

3
7

9
,4

1
8
.3

1
$

3
9

6
,1

7
8
.7

1
$

7
7

0
,1

0
0

.0
0

5
1
.4

5
%

T
o

ta
l R

e
v
e

n
u

e
s

$0.00
$99.85

$379,418.31
$396,178.71

$770,100.00
51.45%

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r IM
R

F
$
3
0
,9

6
0
.3

1
$

2
7

,1
4

5
.3

0
$

6
2

,2
4
4

.4
4

$
5

4
,0

7
7

.9
0

$
4

9
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
1
1
.0

4
%

E
m

p
lo

y
e

r F
IC

A
$
2
2
,4

1
7
.9

2
$
2
3
,8

8
1
.3

6
$
4
5
,2

1
4
.7

3
$
4
7
,2

9
8
.8

7
$

2
8

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
6
.8

9
%

T
o
ta

l H
u
m

a
n
 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

$
5
3
,3

7
8
.2

3
$
5
1
,0

2
6
.6

6
$
1
0
7
,4

5
9
.1

7
$
1
0
1
,3

7
6
.7

7
$

7
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
3
.1

7
%

T
o
ta

l U
n

d
e

s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$
5
3
,3

7
8
.2

3
$
5
1
,0

2
6
.6

6
$
1
0
7
,4

5
9
.1

7
$
1
0
1
,3

7
6
.7

7
$

7
7

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

1
3
.1

7
%

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$53,378.23
$51,026.66

$107,459.17
$101,376.77

$770,000.00
13.17%

($53,378.23) 
($50,926.81) 

$271,959.14 
$

2
9

4
,8

0
1

.9
4

$
1

0
0

.0
0

N
E

T
 S

U
R

P
L

U
S

/(D
E

F
IC

IT
)

Page 7 of 125



P
Y
 M

o
n

th
C

Y
 M

o
n
th

P
Y

 Y
T

D
C

Y
 Y

T
D

C
Y
 B

u
d

g
e

t
1

6
.6

6
%

0
3
 - C

a
p
ita

l Im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 F
u

n
d

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

U
n

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o

m
e

$
2
0
2
.1

9
$

1
,1

0
8

.2
8

$
3

6
1

.5
4

$
1

,9
9

9
.7

0
$

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

3
3

.3
3

%

T
o

ta
l U

n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e
$
2
0
2
.1

9
$

1
,1

0
8

.2
8

$
3

6
1

.5
4

$
1

,9
9

9
.7

0
$

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

3
3

.3
3

%

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 &

 O
th

e
r F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 S

o
u
rc

e
s

T
ra

n
s
fe

r fro
m

 G
e

n
e
ra

l fu
n

d
$

0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

5
6

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

T
o
ta

l T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 &

 O
th

e
r F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 S

o
u

rc
e

s
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

5
6

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

T
o
ta

l 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s

$
2

0
2

.1
9

$
1

,1
0

8
.2

8
$

3
6
1

.5
4

$
1

,9
9

9
.7

0
$

5
6
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
0
.3

5
%

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s

U
n

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

C
a
p
ita

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 &
 B

o
n

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

R
e

n
o

v
a
tio

n
/R

e
p

a
ir

$
0

.0
0

$
2

1
2
,9

7
5

.1
5

($
6
7
5
.0

0
)

$
2

8
5

,1
8

9
.6

3
$

6
5

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

4
3

.7
4

%

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l F
e
e
s

$
0

.0
0

$
0
.0

0
$
8
5
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
1
6
8

,0
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

F
u
rn

itu
re

 &
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t
$

0
.0

0
$

2
,7

8
4

.0
9

$
0
.0

0
$
5
2
,3

3
5
.1

7
$
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

T
o
ta

l C
a
p
ita

l &
 B

o
n

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$
0

.0
0

$
2

1
5
,7

5
9

.2
4

$
1
7
5
.0

0
$
3
3
7

,5
2
4
.8

0
$
8
2
0

,0
0
0
.0

0
4
1
.1

6
%

T
o
ta

l U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$
0

.0
0

$
2

1
5

,7
5

9
.2

4
$

1
7

5
.0

0
$

3
3

7
,5

2
4

.8
0

$
8

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
4

1
.1

6
%

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

$
0

.0
0

$
2

1
5

,7
5
9

.2
4

$
1

7
5

.0
0

$
3

3
7

,5
2

4
.8

0
$

8
2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
4

1
.1

6
%

$
2

0
2

.1
9

 
(
$
2
1
4
,6

5
0
.9

6
)
$
1
8
6
.5

4
 

($
3
3
5
,5

2
5
.1

0
) 

($
2
5
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
)

N
E

T
 S

U
R

P
L
U

S
/(D

E
F

IC
IT

)

Page 8 of 125



0
5
 - D

e
b

t S
e
rv

ic
e
 F

u
n

d
 

R
e
v
e

n
u

e
s

U
n

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e

 

P
ro

p
e
rty

 T
a

x
 L

e
v
y
 

In
te

re
s
t In

c
o
m

eT
o
ta

l U
n
d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 R

e
v
e

n
u

e

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 

E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s

U
n

d
e
s
ig

n
a
te

d
 E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

C
a
p
ita

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 &
 B

o
n

d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
 

In
te

re
s
t P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 

P
rin

c
ip

a
l P

a
y
m

e
n
ts

T
o
ta

l C
a
p
ita

l &
 B

o
n
d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

T
o
ta

l U
n

d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s

T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 &

 O
th

e
r F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 U

se
s 

O
th

e
r F

in
a
n
c
in

g
 U

se
s

T
o
ta

l T
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 &

 O
th

e
r F

in
a

n
c
in

g
 U

se
s

T
o
ta

l E
x
p

e
n

s
e

s

PY M
o
n
th

C
Y M

o
n
th

PY YTD
C

Y YTD
C

Y  B
u

d
g

e
t

16.66%

$
0

.0
0

$
2

9
.0

3

$
6

4
.7

2

$
4

.6
4

$
2

6
1

,9
0

1
.9

5

$
4
9
.5

6

$
2

7
1

,8
6

3
.5

2

$
1
0
.9

1

$
5

2
8

,4
0

4
.0

0

$
1
,0

0
0
.0

0

5
1
.4

5
%

1
.0

9
%

$
2
9
.0

3
$
6
9
.3

6
$
2
6
1
,9

5
1
.5

1
$

2
7

1
,8

7
4

.4
3

$
5

2
9

,4
0

4
.0

0
5
1
.3

5
%

$29.03
$69.36

$261,951.51
$271,874.43

$529,404.00
51.35%

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

1
3

8
,0

3
0

.5
5

$
1

3
4

,7
1

6
.3

2
$

2
6

9
,4

3
2

.6
4

5
0
.0

0
%

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$

2
5

8
,9

7
1

.0
0

0
.0

0
%

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

1
3

8
,0

3
0

.5
5

$
1

3
4

,7
1

6
.3

2
$

5
2

8
,4

0
3

.6
4

2
5
.5

0
%

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

1
3

8
,0

3
0

.5
5

$
1

3
4

,7
1

6
.3

2
$

5
2

8
,4

0
3

.6
4

2
5

.5
0

%

$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$

0
.0

0
$
5
0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
%

$0.00
$0.00

$138,030.55
$134,716.32

$528,903.64
25.47%

$29.03
$69.36

$123,920.96
$137,158.11

$500.36
N

E
T
 S

U
R

P
L
U

S
/(D

E
F

IC
IT

)

Page 9 of 125



Page 10 of 125



Northbrook Public Library
Bills, Charges and Transfers for Board of Trustee Approval

Month of June 2019

Operating Funds
Library Claims List
Librarian's Claims List

Payroll
Fica/IMRF
ACH to IPBC

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Transfer to Debt Service

Total Operating Funds

Capital Improvement Fund
Claims List

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

218, 634. 45
16, 639. 55

309, 692. 10
51,026. 66
54, 435. 86

1, 581, 068. 00
118, 819. 00

2, 350, 315. 62

215, 521. 24

Debt Service Fund

Grand Total Library $ 2, 565, 836. 86

7/11/2019 4:02 PM Bill Approval 20

Page 11 of 125



Page 12 of 125



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust General Checking

Transaction Transaction
Number Date Reference Payments Description

23747

23748
23749

23750

23751
23752
23753
23754
23755
23756
23757
23758
23759
23760
23761
23762

23763

23764

23769

23770
23771

23772

23773
23774

23775

23776

23777
23778
23779

23780

6/19/2019

6/19/2019
6/19/2019

6/30/2019
6/30/2019

6/30/2019
6/30/2019

Association for the Advancement of
Creative Musicians

First Bankcard
Im act Networkin LLC

6/19/2019 Travelers CL Remittance Center

6/19/2019 Villa e of Northbrook Water De t.
6/19/2019 Xerox Cor oration
6/30/2019 Amazon
6/30/2019 Baker &Ta lor
6/30/2019 Baker &Ta lor Entertainment

6/30/2019 BestQuali Cleanin
6/30/2019 Bibliotheca, LLC.
6/30/2019 CallOne
6/30/2019 CDW Government, Inc.
6/30/2019 CenterPoint Ener Services, Inc.
6/30/2019 Chica o Backflow, Inc.
6/30/2019 Child's World

6/30/2019 Cooperative Computer Service

6/30/2019 Discovery Benefits, Inc.

. . ' r r~ Information Services

. Gale
. . * Grainger
I . HR Source

6/30/2019 Impact Networking LLC

Midwest Ta e
North American

6/30/2019 Outsource Solutions Group, Inc.

Overdrive

Pro uest

$750. 00 monthly payment programming

$3,082.14 montlhy ayment credit card
$727.95 uarterly a ment su lies

$3,525.00 annual payment workers compensaton
$1,277.98
$6,668.51
$6, 956. 29

$25, 037. 39
$936. 08

$4, 680. 00
$4, 513. 63

$827. 13
$2,041. 86

$10,185.26
$1, 200. 00

$658.50

uarterl a ment water bill
a off of lease

montlh

month I
month I

monthly
nnonthl

monthl

a ment amazon

a ment material

a ment material
a ment cleanin

a ment material
tele hone a men

a mente ui ment
monthl
annual
month!

invoice utilities - gas
a ment - testin of s stem

a ment material

$8, 285.04 monthly payment consortium & OCLC

monthly payment flexible spending,
dedendant care and commuter benefit

$22, 979. 10
$1, 368. 79

$837. 29
$1,330. 00

$3,474. 96

$10,516. 11
$1, 721. 99

$34, 333. 30

$5,979.21
$17, 506. 62

annual ayment materials
monthl ayment material
monthl aymentjanitorial su lies

ayment for staff trainin & coaching
quarterly payment usage charges for
co iers and rinters

monthl a ment material

monthl a ment 'anitorial su lies

monthly payment IT sen/ices (2 months
of services)
monthly a ment material
annual a ment databases

6/30/2019 Reaching Across Illinois Library System $8,854. 00 annual payment Overdrive

23785

6/30/2019 OlgaRudiak

6/30/2019 Runco Office Su ly
6/30/2019 Scholastic Inc
6/30/2019 Service Buildina Maintenance. Inc.

6/30/2019 Siemens Industry Inc.

6/30/2019 Sterling Services, Inc.
. I ee Ja" Service Comoa , Inc.

* Vernon Libra i/ Suor lies Inc.

. . . . Vs-O-Gra hie. Inc.

6/30/2019 Wells Fargo Vender Fin Serv

a ment su lies

a ment material

avment window cleaning

$600.CX) nnonthly payment for program expense
$2, 047. 58 monthl
$2, 362. 25 monthl
$6,495.00 annual

$1,931.25 quarterly payment HVAC maintenance

$2,736.90 tri annual oaymnet carpet cleanin
$1,719.00 ca /ment repair & maintenance
$2,028.94 monthly na"ment sup 'lies
$5, 094. 38 bi monthl a ment newsletter

monthly payment copier lease &
maintenance

$218,634.45

Page 13 of 125



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust Librarian Checking

Transaction

Number

49272
49274
49275
49276
49277
49278
49279
49280
49281
49282
49283
49284
49285
49286
49287
49288
49289
49290
49291
49292
49293
49294
49295
49296
49297
49298
49299
49300
49301
49302
49303
49304
49305
49306
49307
49308
49309
49310
49311
49312
49313
49314
49315
49316
49317
49318
49319
49320
49321
49322

Transaction

Date Reference

6/17/2019 22nd Century Media, LLC
6/17/2019 Gregory Alexander
6/17/2019 A uatic Works LTD
6/17/2019 David Arfa
6/17/2019 Batteries Plus LLC
6/17/2019 Best Buy Business Advantage Account
6/17/2019 LaurenBondy
6/17/2019 Nancy Buehler
6/17/2019 Jodi Butler
6/17/2019 By Ex erience. Inc.
6/17/2019 CharityWatch
6/17/2019 Chicago Federation of Musicians, AFM Local 1 0-208
6/17/2019 Basil Clunie
6/17/2019 Discovery Benefits - Sim lify
6/17/2019 Family Piano Co.
6/17/2019 Fancy Pants Productions Inc.
6/17/2019 MarkGelfeld
6/17/2019 Jim Gibbons
6/17/2019 AndreaGoese
6/17/2019 Bridget Golembiewski
6/17/2019 Benjamin Goluboff
6/17/2019 HalaHaddad
6/17/2019 Halloran & Yauch, Inc.
6/17/2019 Caitl n Hannon
6/17/2019 Michael Hannon
6/17/2019 HR Source
6/17/2019 Illinois CPA Society
6/17/2019 Klezmer Music Foundation
6/17/2019 Amanda Lo ez

6/17/2019 Ron Mantegna
6/17/2019 Kaushik Maralidharan
6/17/2019 Mono rice, Inc.
6/17/2019 Diego Morales
6/17/2019 Rachel Murguia
6/17/2019 ErinMurra
6/17/2019 BiilPekara
6/17/2019 DanPetrosko
6/17/2019 Pett Cash Custodian
6/17/2019 Pitney Bowes I nc.
6/17/2019 Laurie Prioletti
6/17/2019 Pryor Learning Solutions, Inc.
6/17/2019 HughSato
6/17/2019 SaraScodius
6/17/2019 SenSource
6/17/2019 Suzanne Strom

6/17/2019 Sunset Food Mart, Inc.
6/17/2019 UPS
6/17/2019 Robert Waterbu
6/17/2019 Charles White
6/17/2019 WILIUG

Payments

$495.00
$200. 00
$175.00
$200. 00
$337. 60
$299. 99
$100.00
$250. 00

$18.99
$500. 00

$50. 00
$519.17
$200. 00
$106. 50
$405. 00
$525. 00
$100. 00
$284. 28

$64. 27
$45. 22

$250. 00
$28. 39

$269.40
$83.50
$27. 63
$55.00

$277. 00
$500. 00

$79.99
$100. 00

$14. 96
$116. 54
$100. 00

$75. 00
$17. 99
$43. 16

$157. 50
$125. 87

$94. 02
$221. 13

$79.00
$422.50
$193. 36
$300.00
$124.82

$76. 03
$25. 36
$50.00

$200.00
$30.00

Page 14 of 125



Transaction

Number
49323
49324
49325
49326
49327
49328
49329
49330
49331
49332
49333
49334
49335
49336
49337
49338
49339
49340
49341
49342
49343
49344
49345
49346
49347
49348
49349
49350
49351
49352
49353
49354
49355
49356
49357
49358
49359
49360
49361
49362
49363

Transaction

Date

6/17/2019
6/19/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019
6/28/2019

Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust Librarian Checking

Reference
Advanced Dis osal
Mark F. Moran
Advanced Auto Parts
A Ie Books

The Book Bin
Martha Carlos
Center Point Publishin
D&Z House of Books
Demco, Inc.
Film Ideas, Inc.
Fun Express, LLC
Garaventa USA Inc.

GovConnection, Inc.

Hobby Lobby
Illinois Heartland Library System-OCLC
Image S ecialties of Glenview, Inc.
Lakeshore Learning Materials
Lechner & Sons

Library Furniture International, Inc.
Library Ideas LLC
Lytical Design
McMaster-Carr Supply Co.
Neuco Inc.

Northbrook Hardware

Ocooch Hardwoods
James Ozimeck

Penguin Random House LLC
Dan Petrosko

Pitney Bowes Inc.
Reds Garden Center

Russian Publishing House Ltd.
Scholastic Inc

Maggie Schwalbach
Sheet Music Plus

Swank Motion Pictures Inc.

Thomson Reuters -West Payment Ctr
Dan Too

Universal Film Exchanges LLC
UPS
VBS CAL, LLC
Yami Vending Inc.

Payments
$549.76
$400.00

$32.48
$20. 95
$12. 00

$9. 99
$46.74
$23. 56

$279. 87
$79. 42
$22.93

$292.33
$230. 00

$63.68
$21.25
$52. 00

$484. 41
$215. 40
$428. 00
$444. 40

$85. 00
$487.76

$94.44
$422. 86
$256.54

$26. 99
$352. 50
$157. 50
$189.00
$252. 04

$18.05
$48. 70
$10.00
$62.24

$496.00
$294. 28

$4. 00
$300. 00

$16. 95
$306. 80

$34. 56

$16,639.55

Page 15 of 125



Northbrook Public Library
Bank Register Report

Northbrook Bank & Trust Capital Improvements

Transaction Transaction
Number Date Reference

1703 6/19/2019 Kloe fer Construction Inc
1704 6/19/2019 SchroederAs halt Services, Inc.

1705 6/30/2019 Best Quality Cleaning
1706 6/30/2019 F.E. Moran, Inc. - Plumbing
1707 6/30/2019 Uline

Payments Description

$22,487.37 Payment for CatchBasin, Manhole and As halt Project
$187,394. 78 Payment for CatchBasin, Manhole and As halt Project

$375.00 First Floor Renovation Project - cleaning
$2,480.00 Payment for water heater re lacement
$2, 784. 09 First Floor Renovation Project - furniture

$215,521.24

Page 16 of 125



Month to Date Year to Date

Income

Unrestricted Donations

Brick Donations 200.00 200.00 

Auditorium Chair Donations 1,500.00 

Individual Donations

Corporate Donations

Organizations Donations

Whole Foods Donation 1,737.15 

HodgePodge Donation

Amazon Smile Donations 45.93 

Total Unrestricted Donations 200.00 3,483.08 

Interest Income-Unrestricted 7.92 14.78 

Total Income 207.92 3,497.86 

Expense

Bank Fee

Brick Expenses 225.00 225.00 

Chair Expenses

Filing Fee

Grant Transfer to NPL

Postage

Professional Fees

Software Expense

Special Event Expense

Total Expense 225.00 225.00 

Net Income (17.08) 3,272.86 

Auditorium Chairs Available for Sale 218

Auditorium Chairs Sold through June 2019 49

Remaining Auditorium Chairs for Sale 169

Percent Sold 22%

24 x 24 Bricks Available for Sale 74

24 x 24 Bricks Sold through June 2019 74

Remaining 24 x24 Bricks Available for Sale 0

Percent Sold 100%

12 x 12 Bricks Available for Sale 1057

12 x 12 Bricks Sold through June 2019 847

Remaining 12 x 12 Bricks Available for Sale 210

Percent Sold 80%

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

MB Financial - Checking 5,938.03 

MB Financial - Money Market 48,217.20 

Total Checking/Savings 54,155.23 

Accounts Receivable

Due from NPL

Total Accounts Receivable - 

Total Current Assets 54,155.23 

TOTAL ASSETS 54,155.23 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Equity

Retained Earnings 50,882.37 

Net Income 3,272.86 

Total Equity 54,155.23 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 54,155.23 

Northbrook Public Library Foundation

Financial Statements

June-19

Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Page 17 of 125



Page 18 of 125



AGENDA ITEMS 

10 Unfinished Business 

10.1 Facility Plan Discussion 

A memo and supporting documentation is included in your packet. 

10.2 Discuss Parking Lot Truck Barrier 

We will be discussing the parking lot truck barrier.  I have included a memo with 

a timeline and additional information in the packet. 

11 New Business 

11.1 Illinois Public Library Annual Report 

11.2 Exterior Façade Repair Presentation 

Tony Cinnamon from Wiss 

on our exterior façade.  There is a summary in your packet from their report. 

11.3 Intergovernmental Agreement for Axis 360 Community Share 

A memo is included in your packet.  Kelly Durov, Youth Services Manager, will 

also be attending the meeting to discuss Axis 360 Community Share.  

BOARD NEWS 

Upcoming Trustee Training Sessions 

RAILS is offering trustee training on Saturday, August 10, 9:30 a.m.-12:30 p.m., at River 

Forest Public Library. Currently, Maura, Kayhan, Jami and I are attending.  If anyone 

else is interested, please let me know.   

This program will be led by the nationally-recognized trainer and triple-certified 

parliamentarian Nancy Sylvester. Either date is open to new trustees as well as current 

trustees and library directors who would like a review of board essentials and 

parliamentary procedure. 

Page 19 of 125



VES 

Library Wide 

 Summer Reading started on June 1 with our Kick Off event. The event featured
a bounce house for children, activities for children, and prize drawings. It was
very well attended. As of June 30, there are 494 participants registered for the
adult program, with 163 finishing at least four books to earn a tote bag and

Bookstore so far. A total of 1,162 books have been 
logged.  We have launched our new Teen Summer Reading program and have 
close to 400 teens signed up to win prizes for reading and participating in library 
activities and volunteer opportunities. Our Youth program has over 1700 signed 
up. We also have over 100 babies participating in an early literacy activity based 
reading program. Thanks to the Summer Reading Kick Off Work Group for 
planning an enticing day -- Linda Vering - Lead/Committee Liaison, Madison 
Carroll, Ann Keaton, Anna Fillmore, and Bryan Brugger. Summer Reading 
continues through August 11. 

 The library held its One Book, One Northbrook
Kickoff event on Sunday, June 30th. The goal
of this event was to increase awareness,
excitement, and interest in the One Book, One
Northbrook initiative which involves a variety of
programs and community partnerships in July
2019. Staff members and One Book volunteers
interacted with about 90 community members
during the event which included a book
giveaway, craft, refreshments, and a concert
focused on music from and influenced by
South Africa. Featured on the left is our current
lobby display, which features items from

Connection with the Anti-apartheid movement. The items will be on display 
through the end of July. 

Page 20 of 125



Circulation 

 Quin Stack, Clerk II, is fluent in Russian and was able to put his skills to use in
June. He was able to assist a patron in deciphering the headline on one of the
Russian newspapers by the community board. They asked Donna, Circulation
Supervisor, if she knew what it was, she figured it was Russian, grabbed Quin
from the workroom, and he was able to inform the patron about the headline.

Fiction & Media 

 The library hosted the interactive prog
6th, taught by a dance instructor from the Arthur Murray dance studio in
Glenview, IL. The program is in conjunction with the 2019 Summer Reading
theme Showtime at Your library and tied into the June Film Series, Films about
Dance.

Reference 

 Mary Kay Perrenot brought back Mark Moran (formerly of the PBS Antiques

June24. Mr. Moran gave appraisals for 41 patrons and their items including a 
Mark Chagall signed and numbered print, antique banks, 19th century Russian 
kiddush cups, a wooden piece from a Chinese temple, various porcelain and 
ceramic pieces and many more items. Patrons are already looking forward to 

 -Based 
This talk was planned in conjunction with the Vegetarian Museum exhibit which 
was on display through June on the 2nd floor. We received positive feedback 
from patrons about the programs and exhibit including comments shared by 
circulation staff. Due to patron feedback we are considering hosting more 
exhibits in the future on the 2nd floor. 

Youth Services 

 Our summer Accessibility Hour was on June 2 in the Collaboratory. The library
was open from 12pm-1pm on a Sunday. Families who attended were happy to
learn what the Collaboratory had to offer at a quieter, less busy time than during
our normal operating hours.

 ShowTime
Create Outside the Box series. In June, we featured movie diorama making, 
instrument making, and building.  

 Our summer  started on June 3 and have been extremely well 
attended. In order to accommodate the wider range of ages that attend 

Page 21 of 125



Storytime in the summer, we feature an all ages, Summer Stories, event on 
Tuesday and Wednesday mornings.  

 Our Teen Summer Volunteer program has been extremely active this month. We
have over 50 teens signed up and working on the following projects: Books and
Bites book discussion planning, Summer Reading Research and Development,
Merchandising, Shelf Checker to assist selectors in Youth Services and
Reference, Summer Reading Desk volunteers, craft group, and garden group. By
request of the teens in the Teen Advisory Board (TAB), we had our first TAB
meeting. The teens felt like taking the summer off was too long to go without
meeting which is a testament to their commitment to TAB.

EXPAND AND DEEPEN COMMUNITY CENTERED 
INITIATIVES AND PARTNERSHIPS 

Fiction & Media 

 On June 4th the library partnered with Racial Awareness in the North Shore
(RAIN) for the second event in the American Creed series. Northbrook Library
was one of 50 U.S. libraries selected for grant funding to host programs that
encourage participants to examine our shared American values and ideals. This
program featured a screening and discussion of the PBS documentary American
Denial, which examines who is represented - and who is left behind - by the
American Dream. The event drew 64 attendees, and garnered even more
positive feedback than the first event in the American Creed series. Comments

 The annual partnership with the Chicago YIVO Society to present programming
as part of the Summer Festival of Yiddish Culture continues this summer, starting
with a Maxwell Street Klezmer Band concert held on June 11. There was a long
wait list for the sold-out event, so staff worked with the band to bring the
Maxwell Street Klezmer Quintet back for another performance on June 24,
which was also attended by a sell-out crowd.

 In partnership with JCC Chicago, the library hosted a screening and discussion

experiences as they raise children in an interfaith marriage. After the 
documentary, a panel of guests led a discussion. The guests included two of the 
producers, as well as a rabbi and priest who were involved in the documentary.  

 A number of free lawn passes to the Ravinia Music Festival were given away to
Northbrook Public Library users in June through a prize drawing. Ravinia

Page 22 of 125



generously provides these free lawn passes for giveaway to public libraries 
throughout the Chicagoland area.  

Youth Services 
 Glenbrook South student volunteers from NSSED are volunteering three times

this summer to help with Youth Services tasks such as filling desk supplies and
dusting. We are so happy to have their
assistance!

 

installed at Techny Prairie Park. This Little 
Free Library was donated to the Northbrook 
Public Library by the Northbrook Rotary 
Club. The library's Teen Advisory Board 
designed the painting on the library to 
resemble a vending machine in 2019. The 
library is maintained by book donations from 
the Friends of the Northbrook Public Library. 
Library staff and volunteers also contribute 
to the Little Free Library's maintenance. 

 A new partnership with Northbrook Court
started this month. We are providing books
to their new Play Place on the upper level of
the mall.

INNOVATE AND IMPROVE BASED ON USAGE, 
NEEDS AND TRENDS 

 The Fiction & Media department is working on a goal this year to increase the
diversity of books and authors in the adult Fiction collection in order to better
represent and reflect different experiences and viewpoints. The goal is to ensure
that at least 23% of the total items purchased are written by diverse authors,
using criteria including gender, race, ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, and
ability. Staff track purchased titles and continually assess the collection. As of
June, this goal has been exceeded with nearly 25% of purchases meeting
diversity criteria. Future efforts will be made to also incorporate diverse
perspectives into displays, book lists, and other areas of the collection.

 

to buy and sell. Selling possessions is still highly popular due to the continuing 
erial possessions. A recent 

Page 23 of 125



2019) confirms the continuing trend of buying used items to save money and 
reduce environmental impact.  

 

to learn about the GIS work done at the Village.  We not only learned about 
what is offered to residents, but explored ways to utilize the data for library 
purposes.  Brodie and I will be meeting with the Village to work more in ways we 
can partner in using the GIS system.  

BUILD A HIGH CAPACITY ORGANIZATIONAL 
INFRASTRUCTURE 

 We have contracted with the consultant to help us with our data collection and
analysis.  Rebecca Teasdale , Rebecca Teasdale & Associates, LLC, has reviewed
our strategic plan and will be working with us on achieving the goal: Improve
data collection and analysis tools and align them with critical library outcomes.

Month Activity 

Month 1: August Kickoff work session 

Month 2: September Data strategy work session 

Month 3-5: 

October through December 

Review of current data collection and analysis 

procedures 

Month 5-7: 

December through February 

Design of new data collection and analysis 

procedures 

Month 8-9: March and April Preparation of data collection and analysis plan 

New Hires 
 Nirali Sharma, part-time Program Assistant (Youth Services) started on June 1.

(replacement)

Terminations/Retirements 
(Terminations refer to all persons leaving library employment for any reason, including 
resignations and retirements) 

 Mary Lou Haberkorn, part-time Clerk (Tech Services) resigned effective June 18.

Page 24 of 125

https://www.rebeccateasdale.com/


Continuing Education 

 We invited our insurance agent to the June Librarians in Charge quarterly
meeting. Mr. Cook explained the different types of insurance policies the library
has and went into more detail about our liability policy. We talked about how
best to respond to situations where injury and liability may be a factor.

 We had 5 staff attend the Annual American Library Association Conference in
Washington, D.C.  I gave two presentations while I was there around the content
of my book.  We will have summaries of what staff learned to share with the
board next month.

MAINTAIN A SECURE, SUSTAINABLE, AND 
WELL-RESOURCED LIBRARY 

 Library and OSG staff conducted three in-person interviews with phone vendors.

The interviews consisted of interview questions and a brief tour of our current

network infrastructure. Next steps include checking references and making a

final selection.

 The library began using the software package Volgistics to manage volunteer

activities. By bringing together volunteer records, applications, positions,

timekeeping, and statistics in one platform, Volgistics will help us to streamline

volunteer processes for both the general volunteer program and the Summer

Teen volunteer program.

 We have begun conversations with Product Architecture and Design and Pepper

Construction around the installation of the new study rooms.  Youth and

Reference have been diligently weeding to make space for these new rooms.

Reference has also been conducting a study to determine the size of the rooms

we need.  We are in the design phase and hope to have them installed in early

2020.

Kate Hall 
Executive Director 

Page 25 of 125



Page 26 of 125



Page 27 of 125



Page 28 of 125



RAILS Report June 2019 

Here is a summary on what projects and initiatives are happening at the library system. 

Work with libraries of all types to tell the library story 

stories. RAILS is . RAILS 

will be meeting with members of the ILA marketing committee to discuss how the two 

groups can collaborate, and not duplicate, on efforts to assist libraries with telling their 

stories. ILA has a similar goal to RAILS in their strategic plan. 

Legislative Updates 

The spring 2019 legislative session in Springfield came to a close at the end of May, 

with qualified successes for libraries. Some pieces of legislation ILA supported were 

passed or remain in progress; while many other bills we opposed did not pass. The 

state budget, which passed, contains appropriations and re-appropriations of 

$66,141,234 for libraries, including $875,000 from the Capital Development Fund and 

$2,892,634 from the Build Illinois Bond Fund.  

There is good news on the federal level as well; the House Appropriations Committee 

approved its fiscal year 2020 recommendations, including a $25 million increase for 

IMLS for a total of $267 million (including potentially $6 million for Illinois via LSTA's 

Grants-to-States program, a dramatic increase over 2019's $4.2 million); and a $2 

million increase for the Innovative Approaches to Literacy program that provides grants 

for school libraries, for a total of $29 million.  

Here in Illinois, legislative successes include the passing of HB 1637 Immigration 

Status, which keeps the responsibility for federal immigration status enforcement under 

its appropriate jurisdiction, not local units of government; and the defeat of all 

proposed property tax freeze bills. A bill ILA supported to make consistent 

qualifications for serving as a library trustee across district or municipal libraries, SB 

1149, passed the Senate unanimously and had an amendment added in the House to 

exempt Chicago Public Library; we expect it to advance in the fall veto session. HB 

Page 29 of 125



2993, a bill ILA opposed that would require a front-door referendum when library 

districts seek to annex unserved areas passed, but a provision allowing for 

disconnecting annexed territory was removed. Bills prohibiting the use of public funds 

for conference attendance, requiring additional burdensome public notice 

requirements, prohibiting units of government from opposing unit consolidation and 

elimination bills, and regulating the amount of reserves a library district may maintain, 

were all defeated. SB 910, a bill to allow a referendum to change the board of the 

Aurora Public Library, a city library, from appointed to elected, passed. For a complete 

list of legislation followed and advocated for or against this year, please visit the 

Legislative Issues page on the ILA web site. 

Unserved residents 

RAILS is working on a survey that will be sent to all public libraries in RAILS, asking 

them about the various ways in which they serve the unserved. Hopefully, this survey 

will provide a full picture of all the ways that libraries are working to provide services to 

untaxed residents. This is one of the tasks that the Universal Service Committee has 

been working on.  In Northbrook, we have two main pockets of unserved residents:  

Mission Hills and Glenbrook Countryside. 

Page 30 of 125

https://www.ila.org/advocacy/legislative-issues


Memorandum 

DATE: July 11, 2019 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director 

RE: Facility Plan 

As we discussed last month, BTC has prepared a facility plan outlining the costs for repairs 
and renovations over the next 20 years.  Anna and I have taken the plan and created three 
scenarios for the board to consider.  These scenarios and the full plan that was presented 
last month are included in your packet.   

1. Current Scenario:  This scenario outlines what the funding would look like if we

continue setting aside money as we have been for the last few years.  In this scenario

we would be in the red by FY21/22.

2. Operating Funding Scenario: This scenario looks at what adding $500,000 a year from

operating to CIF would look like.  In this scenario, we would be in the black, but only

have $34,000 at the end of year five which would mean that for the next five years of

the plan we would need to take out a bond or increase the amount taken from

operating.  This would also mean cutting back on some of the operating budget lines.

3. Bond & Operating Funding Scenario:  This scenario depicts what taking out a small

bond in the first five years looks like and also taking more out of operating to cover

the overall costs.  Taking out a $1,250,000 bond would keep us in the black with a

balance of $120,000 at the end of year five.  We would have bond payments in

FY22/23 and FY23/24 of just under $100,000.

We have also included a schedule of what the bond payments may look like based on 
current interest rates and a breakdown of what the Capital Improvement Fund would look 
like for each scenario.  While these scenarios focus on funding the projects as presented, we 
can also discuss if the board would like to make changes to when the projects are 
happening.   

I look forward to discussing this with the board at the meeting.  

Page 31 of 125



Page 32 of 125



Northbrook Public Library 

Facility Plan 

Current Scenario

July 2019

FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24

Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement 211,382.15        30,000.00       

Concrete Driveway 5,000.00         

Concrete Sidewalks & Stairs 5,000.00         

Concrete Curbing 5,000.00         

Landscaping and Hardscape 150,000.00        

Railing and Handrails 5,000.00 

Pole Mounted Light Fixtures 42,000.00 

Roofing

Barreled roof 630,000.00         

Facada

Brick Masonry

Corrugated Metal Panels 10,000.00          

Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding 275,000.00        

Window Wall System (1999 addition) 40,000.00 

Soffits

Exterior Façade and Painting Project 1,000,000.00     

Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Technology & Communications

Phone System 100,000.00        

Security Cameras 75,000.00          

Alarm System 75,000.00          

Masterplan

Tech services/Main Remodel 425,000.00        

Study Rooms 400,000.00        

Marketplace 340,000.00        

RFID 215,000.00        

Circulation Remodel 855,000.00        

Automated Material Handler 180,000.00        

Fiction & Media Staff Space 575,000.00     

Middle & High School Space 740,000.00         

Youth Services

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing & Fire Protection

Air Handlers 12,000.00          

Split System Air Conditioners 30,000.00 

Boilers 80,000.00          20,000.00 

HVAC and Plumbing Pumps 12,000.00          8,000.00 

Exhaust Fans 5,000.00 3,000.00 12,000.00 

Domestic Water Heater 3,000.00 

Temperature Control Air Compressor 8,000.00 

Boiler Room Venilation Project 30,000.00          

Fire Sprinklers 20,000.00          15,000.00          

Present Day Estimated Expense 1,206,382.15   1,945,000.00   1,340,000.00   620,000.00    1,535,000.00    

Inflation Rate 1.0220 1.0445 1.0675 1.0909 1.1149 

Future Estimated Expense 1,232,922.56   2,031,552.50   1,430,450.00   676,358.00    1,711,371.50    

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance 2,238,459.00   1,599,907.17   133,981.76      (733,468.24)   (846,826.24)      

Regular transfer to CIF from Operating 75,000.00          75,000.00          75,000.00          75,000.00       75,000.00 

Transfer to CIF due to debt service reduction 488,000.00        488,000.00        488,000.00        488,000.00     488,000.00         

Future Estimated Expense (1,232,922.56)    (2,031,552.50)    (1,430,450.00)    (676,358.00)    (1,711,371.50)     

Interest 31,370.73          2,627.09 

Ending Reserve Fund Balance 1,599,907.17   133,981.76      (733,468.24)     (846,826.24)   (1,995,197.74)   

Page 33 of 125



Northbrook Public Library 

Facility Plan

Operating Funding Scenario

July 2019

FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24

Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement 211,382.15        30,000.00      

Concrete Driveway 5,000.00        

Concrete Sidewalks & Stairs 5,000.00        

Concrete Curbing 5,000.00        

Landscaping and Hardscape 150,000.00        

Railing and Handrails 5,000.00 

Pole Mounted Light Fixtures 42,000.00          

Roofing

Barreled roof 630,000.00        

Facada

Brick Masonry

Corrugated Metal Panels 10,000.00          

Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding 275,000.00        

Window Wall System (1999 addition) 40,000.00          

Soffits

Exterior Façade and Painting Project 1,000,000.00    

Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Technology & Communications

Phone System 100,000.00        

Security Cameras 75,000.00          

Alarm System 75,000.00          

masterplan

Tech services/Main Remodel 425,000.00        

Study Rooms 400,000.00        

Marketplace 340,000.00        

RFID 215,000.00        

Circulation Remodel 855,000.00        

Automated Material Handler 180,000.00        

Fiction & Media Staff Space 575,000.00    

Middle & High School Space 740,000.00        

Youth Services

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing & Fire Protection

Air Handlers 12,000.00          

Split System Air Conditioners 30,000.00          

Boilers 80,000.00          20,000.00          

HVAC and Plumbing Pumps 12,000.00          8,000.00 

Exhaust Fans 5,000.00 3,000.00 12,000.00          

Domestic Water Heater 3,000.00 

Temperature Control Air Compressor 8,000.00 

Boiler Room Venilation Project 30,000.00          

Fire Sprinklers 20,000.00          15,000.00          

Present Day Estimated Expense 1,206,382.15   1,945,000.00   1,340,000.00   620,000.00  1,535,000.00   

Inflation Rate 1.0220 1.0445 1.0675 1.0909           1.1149 

Future Estimated Expense 1,232,922.56   2,031,552.50   1,430,450.00   676,358.00  1,711,371.50   

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance 2,238,459.00    1,599,907.17    643,981.76        282,062.40    682,078.49        

Regular transfer to CIF from Operating 75,000.00          75,000.00          75,000.00          75,000.00      75,000.00          

Transfer to CIF due to debt service reduction 488,000.00        488,000.00        488,000.00        488,000.00    488,000.00        

Additional Transfer to CIF from Operating 500,000.00        500,000.00        500,000.00    500,000.00        

Future Estimated Expense (1,232,922.56)    (2,031,552.50)    (1,430,450.00)    (676,358.00)   (1,711,371.50)    

Interest 31,370.73          12,627.09          5,530.64 13,374.09      674.14 

Ending Reserve Fund Balance 1,599,907.17    643,981.76        282,062.40        682,078.49    34,381.13          

Page 34 of 125



Northbrook Public Library

Facility Plan

Bond Operating Scenario

July 2019

FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY23/24

Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement 211,382.15 30,000.00         

Concrete Driveway 5,000.00 

Concrete Sidewalks & Stairs 5,000.00 

Concrete Curbing 5,000.00 

Landscaping and Hardscape 150,000.00         

Railing and Handrails 5,000.00 

Pole Mounted Light Fixtures 42,000.00         

Roofing

Barreled roof 630,000.00 

Facada

Brick Masonry

Corrugated Metal Panels 10,000.00 

Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding 275,000.00         

Window Wall System (1999 addition) 40,000.00         

Soffits

Exterior Façade and Painting Project 1,000,000.00      

Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Technology & Communications

Phone System 100,000.00 

Security Cameras 75,000.00 

Alarm System 75,000.00 

masterplan

Tech services/Main Remodel 425,000.00 

Study Rooms 400,000.00 

Marketplace 340,000.00         

RFID 215,000.00         

Circulation Remodel 855,000.00         

Automated Material Handler 180,000.00         

Fiction & Media Staff Space 575,000.00 

Middle & High School Space 740,000.00 

Youth Services

Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing & Fire Protection

Air Handlers 12,000.00 

Split System Air Conditioners 30,000.00         

Boilers 80,000.00 20,000.00         

HVAC and Plumbing Pumps 12,000.00         8,000.00 

Exhaust Fans 5,000.00 3,000.00 12,000.00         

Domestic Water Heater 3,000.00 

Temperature Control Air Compressor 8,000.00 

Boiler Room Venilation Project 30,000.00         

Fire Sprinklers 20,000.00         15,000.00 

Present Day Estimated Expense 1,206,382.15   1,945,000.00    1,340,000.00    620,000.00      1,535,000.00   

Inflation Rate 1.0220 1.0445 1.0675 1.0909 1.1149 

Future Estimated Expense 1,232,922.56   2,031,552.50    1,430,450.00    676,358.00      1,711,371.50   

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance 2,238,459.00   1,599,907.17    343,081.76       949,244.40      1,061,704.13   

Regular transfer to CIF from Operating 75,000.00         75,000.00 75,000.00 75,000.00         75,000.00         

Transfer to CIF due to debt service reduction 488,000.00       488,000.00         488,000.00         488,000.00 488,000.00 

Additional Transfer to CIF from Operating 205,000.00         205,000.00         205,000.00 205,000.00 

Bond Issuance 1,250,000.00      

Future Estimated Expense (1,232,922.56)    (2,031,552.50)     (1,430,450.00)     (676,358.00)       (1,711,371.50)    

Interest 31,370.73         6,727.09 18,612.64 20,817.73         2,366.65 

Ending Reserve Fund Balance 1,599,907.17   343,081.76       949,244.40       1,061,704.13   120,699.28      

Page 35 of 125



Northbrook Public Library

Facility Plan

Estimated Bond Payment Schedule

July 2019

Principal Interest @ 4% Payment Balance

FY21/22 1,250,000.00 50,000.00         91,977.19        1,208,022.81   

FY22/23 1,208,022.81 48,320.91         91,977.19        1,164,366.53   

FY23/24 1,164,366.53 46,574.66         91,977.19        1,118,964.00   

FY24/25 1,118,964.00 44,758.56         91,977.19        1,071,745.37   

FY25/26 1,071,745.37 42,869.81         91,977.19        1,022,638.00   

FY26/27 1,022,638.00 40,905.52         91,977.19        971,566.33      

FY27/28 971,566.33 38,862.65         91,977.19        918,451.79      

FY28/29 918,451.79 36,738.07         91,977.19        863,212.67      

FY29/30 863,212.67 34,528.51         91,977.19        805,763.99      

FY30/31 805,763.99 32,230.56         91,977.19        746,017.36      

FY31/32 746,017.36 29,840.69         91,977.19        683,880.86      

FY32/33 683,880.86 27,355.23         91,977.19        619,258.91      

FY33/34 619,258.91 24,770.36         91,977.19        552,052.08      

FY34/35 552,052.08 22,082.08         91,977.19        482,156.97      

FY35/36 482,156.97 19,286.28         91,977.19        409,466.06      

FY36/37 409,466.06 16,378.64         91,977.19        333,867.51      

FY37/38 333,867.51 13,354.70         91,977.19        255,245.02      

FY38/39 255,245.02 10,209.80         91,977.19        173,477.63      

FY39/40 173,477.63 6,939.11           91,977.19        88,439.55        

FY40/41 88,439.55 3,537.68           91,977.23        (0.00) 

Totals 589,543.84       1,839,543.84   

Page 36 of 125



Northbrook Public Library

Facility Plan

Funding Plan

July 2019

Year Fiscal Year

Beginning 

Balance of 

Reserve Fund

Annual 

Reserve Fund 

Contribution

Annual Reserve 

Fund Increase

Annual 

Expenses

Annual 

Interest 

Ending Balance 

of reserve 

Fund

1 FY19/20 2,238,459.00    563,000.00      (1,232,922.56)   31,370.73        1,599,907.17    

2 FY20/21 1,599,907.17    563,000.00      - (2,031,552.50)   2,627.09          133,981.76       

3 FY21/22 133,981.76       563,000.00      - (1,430,450.00)   - (733,468.24)      

4 FY22/23 (733,468.24)      563,000.00      - (676,358.00)      - (846,826.24)      

5 FY23/24 (846,826.24)      563,000.00      - (1,711,371.50)   - (1,995,197.74)   

6 FY24/25 (1,995,197.74)   563,000.00      - (866,020.00)      - (2,298,217.74)   

3,378,000.00   (7,948,674.56)   33,997.82        

Year Fiscal Year

Beginning 

Balance of 

Reserve Fund

Annual 

Reserve Fund 

Contribution

Annual Reserve 

Fund Increase

Annual 

Expenses

Annual 

Interest 

Ending Balance 

of reserve 

Fund

1 FY19/20 2,238,459.00    563,000.00      (1,232,922.56)   31,370.73        1,599,907.17    

2 FY20/21 1,599,907.17    1,063,000.00   500,000.00       (2,031,552.50)   12,627.09        643,981.76       

3 FY21/22 643,981.76       1,063,000.00   - (1,430,450.00)   5,530.64          282,062.40       

4 FY22/23 282,062.40       1,063,000.00   - (676,358.00)      13,374.09        682,078.49       

5 FY23/24 682,078.49       1,063,000.00   - (1,711,371.50)   674.14 34,381.13         

6 FY24/25 34,381.13         1,063,000.00   - (866,020.00)      4,627.22          235,988.35       

5,878,000.00   500,000.00       (7,948,674.56)   68,203.91        

Year Fiscal Year

Beginning 

Balance of 

Reserve Fund

Annual 

Reserve Fund 

Contribution

Annual Reserve 

Fund Increase

Annual 

Expenses

Annual 

Interest 

Ending Balance 

of reserve 

Fund

1 FY19/20 2,238,459.00    563,000.00      (1,232,922.56)   31,370.73        1,599,907.17    

2 FY20/21 1,599,907.17    768,000.00      205,000.00       (2,031,552.50)   6,727.09          343,081.76       

3 FY21/22 343,081.76       2,018,000.00   1,250,000.00    (1,430,450.00)   18,612.64        949,244.40       

4 FY22/23 949,244.40       768,000.00      (1,250,000.00)   (676,358.00)      20,817.73        1,061,704.13    

5 FY23/24 1,061,704.13    768,000.00      - (1,711,371.50)   2,366.65          120,699.28       

6 FY24/25 120,699.28       768,000.00      - (866,020.00)      453.59 23,132.87         

5,653,000.00   205,000.00       (7,948,674.56)   80,348.42        

CURRENT SCENARIO

OPERATING FUND SCENARIO

BOND ISSUANCE SCENARIO

Page 37 of 125



Page 38 of 125



Report To

Northbrook Public Library
1201 Cedar Lane

Northbrook, Illinois  60062

Capital Asset Study
Northbrook Public Library

Northbrook, Illinois

By:
Christopher R. Kottra

Kami Farahmandpour

BTC Project No. 19-472
June 14, 2019

Building Technology Consultants, Inc.

1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004BTC

Page 39 of 125



 EXPERT EVALUATIONS 
INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS 
BETTER BUILDINGS 

1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100 
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004 

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1 Background Information ................................................................................................... 1  

2 Objectives and Scope of Work ......................................................................................... 2 

2.1 Background Review................................................................................................ 2 

2.2 Field Assessment .................................................................................................... 2 
2.2.1 Site Elements ............................................................................................... 2 
2.2.2 Roofing ........................................................................................................ 3 
2.2.3 Facade ......................................................................................................... 3 
2.2.4 Interior Finishes .......................................................................................... 3 
2.2.5 Elevators ...................................................................................................... 4 
2.2.6 Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Fire Protection Systems (MEP/FP):

 ..................................................................................................................... 4 

2.3 Analysis and Report ................................................................................................ 4  

2.4 Meeting ................................................................................................................... 4 

3 Findings............................................................................................................................. 5 

3.1 Financial Analysis .................................................................................................. 5 

3.2 Long-Term Review ................................................................................................. 9 

3.3 Assumptions ......................................................................................................... 10 

4 Disclosures ...................................................................................................................... 12 

Appendix A – Component Category Summary Reports 

Appendix B – Financial Analysis 

Page 40 of 125



 EXPERT EVALUATIONS 
INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS 
BETTER BUILDINGS 

1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100 
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004 

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert 

June 14, 2019 

Via E-Mail:  aamen@northbrook.info 

Ms. Anna Amen 
Northbrook Public Library 
1201 Cedar Lane 
Northbrook, Illinois  60062 

Re: Capital Asset Study, Northbrook Public Library 
BTC Project No. 19-472 

Dear Ms. Amen: 

As authorized by execution of our proposal dated November 11, 2018, Building Technology 
Consultants, Inc. (BTC) has performed a capital asset study for the Northbrook Public 
Library.  This report outlines the findings of our study. 

1 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

The Northbrook Public Library was originally constructed as a 27,000 square foot, 2-story, 
library facility in 1969.  A 20,500 square foot addition was constructed in the mid-1970’s.  
The Library was expanded again in 1999 when a 35,000 square foot addition was completed.  
Original heating, ventilating, and cooling equipment were replaced, and exterior components 
were rehabilitated as well during the 1999 expansion.  Several interior renovation projects 
have been performed including the most recent in 2015. 

A master plan for future rehabilitation of interiors spaces was developed by Product 
Architecture + Design in 2017.  The purpose of the master plan was to map out the Library’s 
goals for future growth and accommodate the needs of the community.  The Library has also 
obtained a detailed inventory of fixed assets over $500 in value for purposes of future 
planning.  Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE) has reportedly been involved with 
evaluating building envelope components including water leakage issues.  The Library has 
Other consultants were retained in recent years to evaluate mechanical, electrical, plumbing, 
and fire protection systems. 

Page 41 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 2 of 13 

2 OBJECTIVES AND SCOPE OF WORK 

The objective of BTC’s work was to develop a capital asset program for the Library that sets 
out anticipated expenditures for the next 20 years.  Our scope of work was as follows: 

2.1 Background Review 

1. Reviewed pertinent historical documents related to the subject property including
maintenance records, repair or replacement bid documents, original construction
documents, and prior reports (i.e., master plan, fixed asset list, MEP/FP systems
evaluation, water leakage evaluations, etc.).

2. Interviewed the Library’s engineering staff and Finance and Operations Manager to
obtain information regarding maintenance history of all major building components
covered in the capital asset program.

3. Reviewed the Library's annual budget to become familiar with items that are
covered under operating budget, contributions to the capital improvement fund, and
current status of those funds.

2.2 Field Assessment 

We performed a field assessment to evaluate existing conditions.  Field observations were 
documented with notes and photographs.  Our field assessment included the following: 

2.2.1 Site Elements 

Performed a visual review of site elements to evaluate their overall condition and remaining 
service life.  Our review included the following: 

 Asphalt pavement parking lot and driveways

 Concrete sidewalks, walkways, stairs, ramps, and curbs

 Retaining walls

 Railings and guardrails

 Landscaping

Page 42 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 3 of 13 

2.2.2 Roofing 

Performed a visual review of the low-slope and barreled roof surfaces to evaluate type of 
roofing systems used and to assess their current condition.  Our review included the 
following: 

 EPDM roofing membranes

 Roof drains

 Flashing and roof penetrations

 Equipment curbs

2.2.3 Facade 

Performed a visual review of the facade surfaces from the ground and roofs to evaluate the 
overall condition of the facade and the need for repairs.  Our visual review included the 
following: 

 Metal wall cladding and projecting ornamental features

 Brick masonry

 Overhang soffits

 Storefront windows and doors

 Automatic sliding doors

2.2.4 Interior Finishes 

Performed a visual review of interior finishes and furnishings to evaluate if any major 
rehabilitation is needed.  Our review included the following: 

 Flooring

 Wall finishes

 Ceiling tiles

Page 43 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 4 of 13 

 Shelving

 Storage racks

 Restroom finishes and fixtures

 Library staff offices

2.2.5 Elevators 

1. Reviewed the existing elevator equipment and evaluate the general condition of the
equipment.

2. Evaluated long-term needs for elevator modernization and repairs.

3. Reviewed existing elevator maintenance agreements to evaluate the scope of
services and costs for such services.

2.2.6 Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Fire Protection Systems (MEP/FP): 

Performed a visual review of accessible MEP/FP equipment to evaluate changes in their 
condition since an evaluation was performed by Calor Design Group, Ltd. in 2015. 

2.3 Analysis and Report 

Based on the information obtained during our field assessment, we evaluated the anticipated 
service life of the components included in our condition evaluation.  This information was 
used to develop a capital asset funding report indicating the required funding for replacement 
of the components included in our condition evaluation.  This report covers replacement of 
these components over the next 20 years. 

2.4 Meeting 

If requested, we will meet with the Library’s Board of Trustees to present our findings and 
conclusions.    

Page 44 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 5 of 13 

3 FINDINGS 

Our field assessment involved a visual review of the property to assess the general condition 
of the major components that will likely require repair or replacement over the next 20 years.  
A description of each major component and assessment of overall conditions are included in 
the component category summary reports in Appendix A.  A summary of the property data is 
as follows: 

Property Data 

Description No. of Stories Approx. Floor Area Year Opened 

Original Library 2 27,000 SF 1969 

Addition 2 20,500 1975 

3rd Floor Addition 
1 (above 2-story 

addition) 
35,000 1999 

3.1 Financial Analysis 

We performed an analysis of the future repair or replacement expenses for each qualifying 
component over the next 20 years.  In addition to quantifying the components during the field 
assessment, information was gathered regarding materials used and their configuration for 
each of the component assemblies.  The estimated costs were developed for each 
component's repair/replacement based on 1 or more of the following methods: 

1. Where appropriate, the component configurations were matched with the
assemblies in a national cost data source1.

2. Where available, costs were estimated using historical competitive bids obtained by
BTC for similar assemblies.

3. In some cases, costs were estimated using estimated labor and materials costs.

4. When applicable, costs were estimated based on cost information provided by
Owner.

1 Gordian R.S. Means “Facilities Repair and Remodeling Cost Data”; and BNi Building News “General 
Construction 2017 Costbook” 

Page 45 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 6 of 13 

Unit price costs for each component were derived from the above sources.  The total present-
day expenses were then calculated by multiplying the total units by the unit expenses as 
indicated in Table 1.  The established unit costs generally account for materials, labor, 
overhead, and profit.  For each assembly, allowances for contingencies and engineering costs 
were also added when we believed that engineering design and oversight may be required for 
the project. 

Based on the general condition, age, and average life expectancy of each component, a long-
term repair and replacement expense schedule was established.  To determine these future 
repair or replacement expenses, the present day expenses have been inflated at an annual rate 
of 2.20%2.  This rate of inflation has been incorporated into the analysis to account for 
historical increases in construction costs.  The inflation rate used in our analysis was based 
on the following: 

Given the present day expense, the future expense is calculated using the following formula: 

F = P (1 + IR)n 

where 

F  = future expense 
P  = present day expense 
IR = annual inflation rate expressed as a decimal 
n  = number of years until future expense occurs 

The future repair or replacement expenses for each of the components that are anticipated 
over the next 20 years are illustrated in Table 2 and Table 3.  Table 2 illustrates the yearly 
anticipated expenditures at present-day costs, while Table 3 illustrates these same 
expenditures at the inflated costs expected in the future. 

To prepare for future expenses that will be incurred, an annual levelized series of 
contributions can be placed in an interest-bearing account that will ensure that future reserves 
are available when needed.  The future expenses are aggregated on an annual basis to 
determine the recommended funding plan.  The recommended funding plan has been 
compiled using financial information provided by the Library’s Finance and Operations 

2 For comparison purposes, an average general inflation rate over the last 20 years was calculated to be 
approximately 2.13% based on data obtained from www.inflationdata.com. 

Page 46 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 7 of 13 

Manager.  The information has been deemed reliable and has not been verified.  The 
following table summarizes the status of the current capital improvement fund (CIF). 

Summary of Financial Information 

Projected Year End CIF Balance 
(As of April 30, 2019) 

$2,238,459 

Current Annual CIF Contribution $563,000 

CIF Interest Rate 2% 

Based on the projected year-end CIF balance, the current CIF fund interest rate, and the 
estimated inflation rate, an iterative analysis was performed to determine a recommended 
funding plan.  The intent of the plan is to have adequate funds available for future 
expenditures required for major repairs or replacements so that the potential need of a loan 
can be avoided.  The analysis concluded that the CIF fund with a 2018/2019 fiscal year-end 
balance of $2,238,459, is currently under-funded to finance projects in Years 5 through 12 of 
this study period.  This is based on a contribution of $563,000 to the CIF fund in Year 1 
followed by an annual contribution of $1,040,000 in Years 2 through 5 (and beyond). 

The following table summarizes the recommended annual CIF fund contributions over the 
next 5 years: 

Recommended Annual Reserve Contribution 

Year Calendar Year 

Interest = 2.00%   
Inflation = 2.20% 

(Summary of Exhibits 2 & 3) 

1 2019 / 2020 $563,000 

2 2020 / 2021 $1,040,000 

3 2021 / 2022 $3,000,000 

4 2022 / 2023 $750,000 

5 2023 / 2024 $750,000 

6+ 2024 / 2025 + See Exhibits 2 & 3 

Page 47 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 8 of 13 

The funding plan for the full 20-year period is illustrated in tabular form in Table 4, and in 
graphical form in Table 5.  It is emphasized that the recommended reserve funding plan 
presented is only one of many possible economic scenarios to meet the future reserve 
requirements. 

Table 6 compares the future status of the reserve funds based on recommended contributions 
versus current contributions.  

The following bar chart illustrates the expenses that will be incurred for each of the 
component categories over the 20-year study period.  These expenses are divided into 5- and 
10-year segments to provide a graphical summary that assists the user in identifying the
amount of funding that will be required for each component category over a period of time,
whether it is short-term or long-term.

$0 $2,000 $4,000 $6,000 $8,000 $10,000 $12,000

Site Elements

Roofing

Facade

Interior
Finishes…

MEP/FP

Thousands

Inflated Capital Expenses over 20 Years

1 to 5 Years 6 to 10 Years 11 to 20 Years

Page 48 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 9 of 13 

The following pie chart illustrates which components will have the highest percentage of 
expenses over the 20-year study period. 

3.2 Long-Term Review 

The annual contributions made to the reserve fund are a means to compensate for the 
difference between the ongoing deterioration of a property and its finances.  Since 
components deteriorate at varying rates and the finances of the property are typically 
changing on an annual basis, the need to maintain balance between the 2 is an ongoing 
process.  Therefore, to maintain this balance, periodic updates to the capital asset study are 
recommended.  When considering an update to a study, the following questions should be 
considered: 

Page 49 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 10 of 13 

 Has there been a significant departure (i.e. more than 1%) from the anticipated rates
for interest, inflation, and construction cost increases previously assumed?

 Have any major components been added or replaced since the previous study?

 Have any components sustained premature deterioration due to unseasonable
weather, lack of maintenance, or latent defects since the previous study?

 Have any repairs or replacements been accelerated or deferred from the estimated
schedule previously generated?

 Have there been any changes to the long-term plans for the future of the
development such as major rehabilitation, additions, or technology changes?

If the answer is “yes” to 1 or more of the above questions, then an update to the capital asset 
study should be strongly considered.  

Generally, a property that is relatively new in age and is not undergoing any major repairs or 
replacements should have the capital asset study updated approximately every 3 years to 
maintain the validity of the estimates.  However, if the property is older and is experiencing 
major repairs or replacements, the study should be updated on an annual or bi-annual basis. 

An update to a previous capital asset study can typically be performed for a fraction of the 
original cost of the study.  The re-evaluation can include a brief field assessment of the 
property, or simply an update to the financial analysis. 

3.3 Assumptions 

Several general assumptions have been made for the completion of this study.  These 
assumptions are as follows: 

1. The components will be replaced with like kind unless otherwise noted or directed
by a representative of the property to use alternate materials.

2. There are currently no outstanding building violations.

3. All new installations will comply with current city, state and local building code
requirements.

4. The building structure has a remaining useful life greater than 20 years.

Page 50 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 11 of 13 

5. There are currently no formal plans for major additions to the building.

6. A maintenance program will be implemented to ensure that all building
components, systems, and equipment are maintained and operated at or near
optimum capacities.  Costs associated with such maintenance program are not
included in this capital asset study and should be budgeted for in the Library’s
operating funds.

7. Since cash flow takes place at frequent and varying time intervals within an interest
period, a simplified method of assuming that all cash flow occurs at the midpoint of
the interest period is used in the reserve analysis.

8. The reserve analysis was performed using the baseline funding method by
maintaining a reserve balance above zero for the duration of the study.

9. The study has been limited to include only components that, within reasonable
predictability, will likely require major repair or replacement during the study
period and will also have a significant impact on the financial results of the study.
If the component has an indefinite or unpredictable life expectancy, or can function
indefinitely with minor ongoing maintenance or repair, then there is no major
capital expense to plan for.

10. The following are repair or replacement expenses that are assumed to be funded
from the operating and maintenance budget based on the above-mentioned criteria.
The expenses are associated with, but not limited to the following:

a. Irrigation system

b. Annual roof inspections and repairs

c. Electrical repair and maintenance

d. Painting and decorating

e. Landscaping maintenance

f. Professional services

Page 51 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 12 of 13 

4 DISCLOSURES 

This study and report is based on observations of the visible and apparent conditions of a 
reasonable representative sampling of the property’s components at the time of inspection.  
Although due diligence was performed during the field assessment phase, we make no 
representations regarding latent or concealed defects that may exist.  Our visual review did 
not constitute any invasive investigations and was not intended to determine whether 
applicable building components, systems, or equipment are adequate or in compliance with 
any specific or commonly accepted design requirement, building code, or specification.  
Such tasks as material testing, engineering analysis, destructive testing, or performance 
testing of building systems, components, or equipment are not considered as part of the scope 
of work, nor are they considered standard by the reserve study industry.   

Judgments in this study are based on estimates of the age and typical useful life of the 
various components included in this study.  The predictions of useful life and remaining 
useful life are based on industry and/or statistical comparisons, along with our general 
assessment of each component’s condition.  It is necessary to recognize that the actual 
conditions can alter the useful life of any component.  The methods of installation, deferral of 
maintenance, or other unforeseen conditions make it virtually impossible to predict precisely 
when each component will require major repair or replacement.  The tabulated values for 
expected useful life and remaining useful life are estimates, as noted, and should not be 
construed as a guarantee or warranty, either expressed or implied, as to the performance of 
products, materials, or workmanship. 

If the Library representative has not disclosed any known issues or problems with materials, 
components, or systems, the validity of this study may be impacted.  Where applicable, 
comments regarding the general condition of the property and any significant deficiencies as 
observed at the time of our review have been documented.  A qualified contractor or building 
engineer should be retained to repair, replace, or adjust defective components to ensure 
optimum performance or efficiency.  In the case of major repair/replacement projects, an 
engineering or architectural firm should be retained to design the repairs, and provide 
oversight during construction. 

The material and labor pricing provided are estimates and have been augmented, as 
necessary, to account for specific site conditions (i.e. material handling, scaffolding, etc.).  
The total expenses represent a useful guideline whereby reserve funds can be accumulated 
for future repairs and replacements.  The estimated repair and replacement expenses, unless 
otherwise noted, include allowances for architectural and/or engineering fees for major 
repair/replacement projects. 

Page 52 of 125



Ms. Anna Amen 
BTC Project No. 19-472 
June 14, 2019 
Page 13 of 13 

The information provided by the Library representative regarding the financial, physical, or 
historical data is deemed reliable.  The capital asset study is intended to be a reflection of the 
information provided and is not for the purpose of performing an audit, quality analysis, 
forensic analysis, or background check of historical records. 

The Library’s Board of Trustees assumes full responsibility for determining that the list of 
components is complete.  We have not reviewed any documents or declarations as part of this 
capital asset study and assume no responsibility for the completeness of the inventory. 

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you and the Northbrook Public Library.  If 
you have any questions, or if we can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to call. 

Sincerely, 

Christopher R. Kottra, PE, CCCA 
Associate Principal 

Kami Farahmandpour, PE, FRCI, FNAFE, REWC, RRC, RWC, CCS, CCCA  
Principal 

Attachments:   Appendix A – Component Category Summary Reports 
Appendix B – Financial Analysis 

Copy to: Ms. Kate Hall 

Page 53 of 125



APPENDIX A

COMPONENT CATEGORY SUMMARY REPORTS

Page 54 of 125



Summary Report

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Project: 
Northbrook Public Library
Northbrook, Illinois

Capital Asset Component:
Site Elements

Asset Description:
Site elements that the library is responsible for 
maintaining include asphalt pavement with 
concrete curbs, concrete driveways and 
sidewalks, retaining walls, and site lighting.  There 
are also several landscaped and hardscaped 
areas throughout the site.  
An asphalt pavement parking lot and driveway 
along the perimeter of the building serve as 
primary parking areas for library patrons (Photo 1).  
Some of the parking spaces are located under 
the 2nd floor overhang (Photo 2).  Employees 
utilize an asphalt pavement parking lot northeast 
of the Library (Photo 3).  
A concrete driveway along the east side of the 
1975 expansion provides access to the east 
entrance to the building (Photo 4).   
Concrete sidewalks abut the perimeter of the 
building (Photo 5).  A concrete ramp and stairs 
are located on the west side of the site providing 
pedestrian access to the west entrance to the 
Library (Photo 6).  The stairs have steel handrails 
along both sides with railing posts embedded into 
the concrete.  The ramp has aluminum handrails 
and railings with embedded railing posts.  
Another set of stairs with steel pipe handrails is 
located near the northeast corner of the site 
providing pedestrian access to and from the 
employee parking lot.
Concrete retaining walls line the ramp on the 
west side of the site, and the outside perimeter of 
the parking lot on the east side of the site (Photo 
7).  
The east parking lot and employee parking lot are 
illuminated by pole-mounted dual-fixture lights 
(Photo 8).

Photo 1 

Photo 2 

Photo 3 

Page 55 of 125



Page: 2 of 5

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Other site elements the Library is responsible for 
include bike racks, pipe bollards, signage, parking 
space wheel stops, and furniture.  

Approximate Asset Quantities:
 Asphalt pavement

 Perimeter parking/driveway:
44,000 square feet

 Employee parking lot:  10,500 square feet
 Concrete driveway:  6,300 square feet
 Concrete sidewalks and stairs:

17,800 square feet
 Railings and handrails:  220 linear feet
 Retaining walls:  1,060 linear feet
 Pole-mounted light fixtures:  14 each
 Miscellaneous site elements:

 Bike racks:  8 each
 Pipe bollards:  3 each
 Curb stops:  136 each

Condition:
Asphalt Pavement:  Asphalt pavement was 
generally observed to be in poor condition (Photo 
9).  Wide-spread cracking was observed 
throughout the paved areas.    
Concrete Driveway:  The concrete driveway 
generally appeared to be in fair condition.  
Observed deficiencies were localized and 
included cracking and pitting likely from exposure 
to deicing salts.  
Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs:  Concrete 
walkways were generally observed to be fair 
condition.  The observed deficiencies were 
localized and included the following: 
 Cracking;
 Localized spalling (Photo 10);
 Heaved or settled sections;
 Pitting (Photo 11);
 Evidence of corroding reinforcing steel in

stairs at west side of site (Photo 12);
Railings and Handrails:  Corrosion was observed at 
embedded railing posts at the west side stairs 
(Photo 13).  The railings and handrails along the 
ramp on the west side of the site generally 

Photo 4 

Photo 5 

Photo 6 

Page 56 of 125



Page: 3 of 5

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

appeared to be in good condition.  Handrails at 
the north stairs were in poor condition.   
Retaining Walls:  Typical shrinkage cracking was 
observed on both sides of the concrete retaining 
walls.  Such cracking is not usually an indication of 
a structural issue.  However, the retaining wall 
reinforcing steel is susceptible to corrosion, which 
can eventually lead to spalling of the concrete.
Concrete Curbs:  Concrete curbs were generally 
observed to be in good condition.  Localized 
damage and/or deterioration was observed at 
some locations.
Landscaping and Hardscape:  In general, the 
landscaping and hardscape components were in 
good condition with little sign of deterioration.  
Many of these components have an indefinite life 
expectancy.  A landscaping rehabilitation project 
is reportedly being planned for in 2020.
Site Lighting:  Pole-mounted light fixtures in the 
parking lots generally appeared to be in fair 
condition.  Surface corrosion was observed at the 
base of some light fixtures (Photo 14).
Miscellaneous Site Elements:  Other components 
such as the flag pole, bike racks, and pipe 
bollards were generally in fair condition.  
Corrosion was observed at the base of some of 
these components.

Rehabilitation:
Asphalt Pavement:  A parking lot rehabilitation 
project is reportedly being planned for later in 
2019.  Rehabilitation for this project should include 
full replacement of the asphalt pavement.  
Subsequent rehabilitation should include periodic 
full-depth patch repairs where cracking occurs, 
and seal-coating every 2 to 3 years.
Concrete Repairs:  Rehabilitation of concrete 
components throughout can be performed 
together as a single project.  Such rehabilitation 
will likely consist of the following:  
 Localized patch repairs at concrete

driveway;
 Replace concrete at west stairs;
 Concrete patch repairs at other stairs as

necessary;

Photo 7 

Photo 8 

Photo 9 

Page 57 of 125



Page: 4 of 5

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 Replace concrete sidewalk sections as
necessary;

 Replace deteriorated sections of concrete
curbs as necessary;

 Repair cracks in retaining walls;
Metal site components:  Rehabilitation of metal 
components throughout the site will likely consist 
of preparing surfaces and recoating steel railings 
at stairs, bollards, bike racks, and light fixture 
poles.  No significant rehabilitation to the 
aluminum railings is anticipated during this study 
period.  
Site Lighting:  Site lighting fixtures should be 
replaced as they reach the end of their useful life.  

Approximate Rehabilitation Cost and Schedule: 
The following are estimated costs and schedule 
for the recommended rehabilitation of the site 
elements:
 2019/2020:  Replace asphalt pavement

Actual Cost:  $252,000
 2020/2021:  Landscaping rehabilitation

Approximate Cost:  $150,000
 2022/2023:

 Seal coat asphalt pavement
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

 Perform localized concrete repairs
(driveway, sidewalks, stairs, curbing)
Approximate Cost:  $15,000

 2023/2024:
 Replace select handrails

Approximate Cost:  $5,000
 Replace site lighting fixtures

Approximate Cost:  $42,000
 2025/2026:  Seal coat asphalt pavement

Approximate Cost:  $30,000
 2028/2029:

 Full-depth asphalt pavement repairs;
Seal coat asphalt pavement
Approximate Cost:  $50,000

 Perform localized concrete repairs
(driveway, sidewalks, stairs, curbing)
Approximate Cost:  $15,000

 2031/2032:  Seal coat asphalt pavement
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

Photo 10 

Photo 11 

Photo 12 

Page 58 of 125



Page: 5 of 5

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 2034/2035:  Seal coat asphalt pavement
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

 2037/2038:  Seal coat asphalt pavement
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

Maintenance Recommendations:
The following maintenance items can extend the 
service life of some of the site elements.
 Carefully wash the engraved pavers

between the concrete driveway and east
parking area.

 In lieu of replacing the concrete stairs along
the south elevation, partial depth concrete
patch repairs can be performed at
significantly less cost.  However, such
patches will not likely match adjacent
concrete and will not address potential
deterioration of the adjacent concrete.

 Apply touch-up paint to railing and guardrail
component scratches.

 Maintain a yearly allowance for landscaping
maintenance and minor upgrades in the
operating budget.

Additional Comments: 
Embedded railing posts will require more frequent 
maintenance.  We recommend considering 
surface mounted railing posts when the railings 
are replaced.  

Photo 13 

Photo 14 

Page 59 of 125



Summary Report

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Project: 
Northbrook Public Library
Northbrook, Illinois

Capital Asset Component:
Roofing

Asset Description:
The main low-slope roof consists of an EPDM 
roofing system (Photo 1).  Elevated mechanical 
platforms and penthouses also have an EPDM 
roofing system (Photos 2 and 3).  A similar EPDM 
roofing system exists on the barreled roof over the 
1999 addition (Photo 4).  
A full-building expansion joint separates the 
original 1969 structure from the 1975 expansion.  
The EPDM membrane is continuous over the roof 
divider along the expansion joint.    
Aluminum gutters are located along the low sides 
of the barreled roof and at the mechanical 
penthouse.  The gutters deliver water to aluminum 
downspouts that drain on to the elevated 
mechanical or main low-slope roofs (Photo 5).
The main roof drains to internal roof drains (Photo 
6).  The roof membrane is terminated under 
edge-metal flashing along the outside perimeter 
of the main roof.  The roof membrane is 
terminated with termination bars at transitions to 
vertical surfaces such as the mechanical 
penthouse walls (Photo 7).
Wall-mounted steel ladders provide access to the 
elevated mechanical platforms (Photo 8).
The barreled roof overhangs are supported by 
exposed structural steel members.  Refer to the 
facade component category summary report for 
more information regarding the condition of the 
exposed steel framing.    

Approximate Asset Quantities:
 Main roof:  23,000 square feet
 Elevated mechanical roofs:

6,000 square feet
 Barreled roof:  21,000 square feet

Photo 1 

Photo 2 

Photo 3 

Page 60 of 125



Page: 2 of 3

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Condition:
The roofing systems generally appeared to be in 
good condition.  The Library has a maintenance 
agreement with Olsson Roofing, which includes 2 
inspections per year with minor repairs.  The 
November 13, 2018 inspection report from Olsson 
roofing indicated that multiple punctures and 
tears were found and repaired.  Olsson’s report 
also indicated that flashings and perimeter edge 
details were in good condition.   
The main roof was reportedly last replaced in 
2006.  The mechanical platform roofs were 
replaced in 2014.  The barreled roof EPDM system 
has not been replaced since the 1999 addition 
was constructed.  Many of the repairs performed 
by Olsson Roofing in November of 2018 were on 
the barreled roof.  Given the age of the roof and 
the number of repairs performed, the roof may be 
approaching the end of its useful life.   

Rehabilitation:
Rehabilitation of the roofs will likely consist of the 
following:
 Remove the existing roofing system down to

the structural deck.
 Provide new roofing system complete with all

necessary components including vapor
retarder, insulation, cover board, EPDM
membrane, and sheet metal flashings.

 Salvaging gutters and downspouts during a
roof replacement project is not practical.  As
such, replacement should be planned for in
conjunction with a roof rehabilitation project.

Approximate Rehabilitation Cost and Schedule: 
The following are estimated costs and schedule 
for the recommended rehabilitation of the roofing 
components:
 2023/2024:  Replace roofing system

at barreled roof
Approximate Cost:  $630,000

 2025/2026:  Replace roofing system
at main roof
Approximate Cost:  $575,000

 2033/2034:  Replace roofing system at
elevated mechanical platforms/penthouses
Approximate Cost:  $180,000

Photo 4 

Photo 5 

Photo 6 

Page 61 of 125



Page: 3 of 3

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Maintenance Recommendations:
The following maintenance items can extend the 
service life of the existing roofing systems.  
However, it is not anticipated that the 
recommended routine maintenance can 
significantly delay the anticipated replacement 
time frame for the roofs.
 Continue current program for routine 

maintenance inspections and repairs.
 Periodically remove debris from roof drains, 

gutters, and downspouts.
 Clean all drains and ensure they provide 

unobstructed flow.
 Check all drain screens and ensure that they 

are secured.

Photo 7 

Photo 8 

Page 62 of 125



Summary Report

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Project: 
Northbrook Public Library
Northbrook, Illinois

Capital Asset Component:
Facade

Asset Description:
The facade on the 1st floor of the Library consists 
of a combination of brick masonry, corrugated 
metal panels, and full-height storefront windows 
(Photos 1 and 2).  Most of the 1st floor facade is 
set back from the overhanging 2nd floor.  
The Library was originally constructed in 1969 and 
expanded in 1975.  The facade on the 2nd floor 
along the 1969 and 1975 portions of the building 
consist of floor-to-ceiling steel-framed windows 
with steel plate spandrel panels above and 
below (Photo 3).     
The 2nd and 3rd floor facade along the 1999 
expansion consists of an aluminum and glass 
window wall system (Photo 4).  Ornamental louver 
sunscreen elements project outward at some 
locations.  Portions of the window wall system are 
sloped (Photo 5).  
The mechanical penthouse walls and 
mechanical platform screen walls are clad with 
metal panels (Photo 6).
The main entrance on the west side of the 
building has 2 sets of automatic sliding storefront 
doors (Photo 7).  A similar configuration exists on 
the east side.  Other doors are outswing storefront 
or steel doors used by employees or for 
emergencies only.  
Soffits along the underside of the 2nd floor 
overhangs have an exterior plaster finish on the 
north, south, and west sides of the building (Photo 
8).  The soffit over the concrete driveway along 
the east side of the building is finished with ceiling 
tiles.  
There are several exposed steel components 
other than the metal panel cladding discussed 
above.  These components include the following:

Photo 1 

Photo 2 

Photo 3 

Page 63 of 125



Page: 2 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 Vertically oriented ornamental steel wide
flange sections between 2nd floor windows;

 Columns supporting the 2nd floor overhangs;
 Underside of 1999 addition barreled roof

overhangs (Photo 9)

Approximate Asset Quantities:
 Brick masonry:  1,400 square feet
 Metal panel cladding:

 Corrugated panels:  2,700 square feet
 Spandrel panels:  3,800 square feet
 Penthouse walls:  1,800 square feet

 2nd floor windows (1969 & 1975):  94 each
 Window wall system (1999):  9,600 square feet
 Projecting sunscreens:  420 linear feet
 Storefront system:  1,700 square feet
 Exterior doors:  9 each
 Soffits:  19,800 square feet

Condition:
The 1st floor facade components were generally 
observed to be fair condition.  Brick masonry 
mortar joints appeared to be in good condition.  
Deteriorated sealant was observed at some 
expansion joints.
Metal panel cladding was exhibiting corrosion at 
some locations (Photo 10).  Corrosion observed at 
the base of corrugated metal panel cladding on 
the 1st floor may be related to prolonged 
exposure to moisture such as standing water.  
Evidence of corrosion was also observed at other 
exposed steel components (Photo 11).  Chipped 
paint and debonded sealant were observed at 
the penthouse wall cladding.  Significant leaks 
have been reported behind and below the metal 
panels.  In order to address this, both Product 
Architecture and Pepper Construction have 
recommended replacing the penthouse wall 
cladding.  
The Library has reportedly been experiencing 
water leakage issues at the 2nd floor windows 
along the 1969/1975 portions of the building.  Wiss, 
Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE) performed 
an up-close review of the windows and metal 
panel cladding.  In their preliminary report dated 

Photo 4 

Photo 5 

Photo 6 

Page 64 of 125



Page: 3 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

December 18, 2018, WJE identified significant 
deterioration in steel and sealant components 
that have contributed to the reported leaks.  WJE 
is reportedly preparing a more detailed report 
with recommendations for repairs.  
No significant deficiencies were observed in the 
window wall system along the 1999 addition 
during our cursory review.  Given the age of 
window wall system, an up-close review of some 
areas from the exterior is recommended to 
evaluate the condition of the sealant and gaskets 
in the system.  Some of the sealant and/or 
gaskets may be reaching the end of their useful 
life especially at the more critical areas such as 
the sloped glazing portions of the window wall 
system.  As gaskets age, they can lose elasticity, 
which can leave the window wall system 
susceptible to water infiltration.  
The projecting louver sunscreen elements 
generally appeared to be in good condition.  No 
significant rehabilitation is anticipated at the 
projecting sunscreens.
The automatic sliding doors were installed during 
the 2015 rehabilitation project and appeared to 
be operating well.  Other exterior doors were 
generally in good condition.  No significant 
rehabilitation is anticipated at exterior doors.  
Soffits at the 1st floor were generally in fair 
condition along the north and west elevations.  
Missing, damaged, or dislodged ceiling tiles were 
observed at the soffit along the east elevation 
(Photo 12).

Rehabilitation:
Future facade rehabilitation will likely consist of 
the following:
 Miscellaneous masonry repairs including

repointing deteriorated mortar joints,
replacement of expansion joint sealant,
routing and sealing cracks, etc.;

 Replacement of glazing sealant and gaskets;
 Repair deteriorated soffit finishes.  This may

require localized patching at some locations.
Other locations may require replacing entire
panels.

 Remove corrosion products and recoat
exposed steel components.

Photo 7 

Photo 8 

Photo 9 

Page 65 of 125



Page: 4 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

The extent of future rehabilitation at the 2nd floor 
windows along the 1969/1975 portions of the 
building will depend on the results of WJE’s 
investigation and their recommendations.  We 
recommend addressing the corrosion along the 
base of the corrugated metal wall panels in 
conjunction with the 2nd floor window repairs to 
minimize overall costs.  Repairs would likely 
include replacing the base-of-wall flashing with a 
corrosion-resistant material.  

Approximate Rehabilitation Cost and Schedule: 
The following are estimated costs and schedule 
for the recommended facade rehabilitation:
 2020/2021:

 Replace mechanical penthouse metal
panel wall cladding
Approximate Cost:  $275,000

 Facade repairs to address deficiencies
outlined in WJE report
Approximate Cost:  $1,000,000

 2021/2022:  Repair base of
corrugated metal panels
Approximate Cost:  $10,000

 2023/2024:  Replace sealant and gaskets at
1999 addition 2nd floor window wall system
Approximate Cost:  $40,000

 2024/2025:
 Miscellaneous brick masonry

and sealant repairs
Approximate Cost:  $10,000

 Repair/replace soffit finishes
Approximate Cost:  $10,000

 2029/2030:  Recoat exposed
steel components and miscellaneous
repairs at 2nd floor windows
Approximate Cost:  $250,000

Maintenance Recommendations:
The following maintenance items can extend the 
service life of some components listed above:
 Move standing water away from the bottom

of corrugated metal facade panels.
 Perform localized patch repairs at soffits.
 Apply touch-up paint to exposed steel

component surfaces.

Photo 10 

Photo 11 

Photo 12 

Page 66 of 125



Summary Report

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Project: 
Northbrook Public Library 
Northbrook, Illinois

Capital Asset Component:
Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Asset Description:
Interior finishes and fixtures in the building are 
comprised of various elements, which include the 
following:
 Flooring
 Ceiling finishes
 Restroom finishes and fixtures
 Elevator cab finishes and controls
 Computer equipment
 Furniture and Shelving

 Bookshelves
 Chairs, tables, miscellaneous furniture,

etc.
 Cabinets and countertops

 Office equipment
 Technology and communications

For evaluation purposes, the following 
rooms/areas were reviewed:
1st Floor:
 Lobby and circulation desk (Photo 1)
 Auditorium and backstage areas (Photo 2)
 Pollak Room
 Technical Services and associated staff

offices
 Circulation Workroom and associated staff

offices (Photo 3)
 Staff lounge (Photo 4)
 Mechanical spaces (generator room, chiller

room, boiler room, utility closets, etc.)
 Restrooms (public and employee)

2nd Floor:
 Youth Services and associated workrooms

and activity rooms (Photos 5 and 6)
 Biographies

Photo 1 

Photo 2 

Photo 3 

Page 67 of 125



Page: 2 of 6

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 Non-fiction (Photo 7)
 Main Street
 Atriums One and Two (Photo 8)
 Quiet study rooms (Photo 9)
 Interactive classroom (Photo 10)
 Collaboratory (Photo 11)
 Staff offices
 Restrooms

3rd Floor:
 Atriums One and Two (Photo 12)
 Staff offices
 Restrooms

Approximate Asset Quantities:
Flooring:
 Carpeting:  67,000 square feet total

 1st Floor:  12,000 square feet
 2nd Floor:  40,000 square feet
 3rd Floor:  15,000 square feet

 Tile:  6,500 square feet total
 1st Floor:  6,000 square feet
 2nd Floor:  250 square feet
 3rd Floor:  250 square feet

 Vinyl composition tile:  6,500 square feet
 1st Floor:  4,500 square feet
 2nd Floor:  2,000 square feet

Ceiling Finishes:
 Acoustical ceiling tiles:  36,000 square feet
 Gypsum sheathing:  6,000 square feet
 Exposed steel framing:  15,000 square feet

Inventory Valuation:
According to the “Replacement Cost Appraisal” 
report prepared by Gallagher Basset dated May 
21, 2018, the Library’s inventory of furnishings and 
equipment have the following values:
 Computer equipment:  $525,000
 Furniture and shelving:  $1,410,000
 Office equipment:  $561,000

Photo 4 

Photo 5 

Photo 6 

Page 68 of 125



Page: 3 of 6

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Condition:
Flooring:  Much of the carpeting was replaced 
during the 2015 auditorium addition and interior 
remodeling project.  The carpeting on all 3 levels 
was generally in fair condition.  Localized wearing 
was observed in high traffic areas (Photo 13).  
Flooring in public areas on the 1st floor was 
installed in 2015 and generally appeared to be in 
good condition.    
Vinyl composition tile in service areas was 
generally appeared to be outdated.  
Rehabilitation of the 1st floor service areas is 
reportedly planned for in spring of 2019.  
Ceiling Finishes:  Acoustical ceiling tiles were 
generally in good condition.  No major 
rehabilitation is anticipated during this study.  We 
recommend replacing ceiling tiles in conjunction 
with remodeling projects.
Restroom Finishes and Fixtures:  The public 
restroom on the 1st floor were rehabilitated in 2015 
and are generally in good condition (Photo 14).  
The finishes and fixtures in the 2nd and 3rd floor 
restrooms are assumed to be several years older 
but appeared to be in good condition as well 
(Photo 15). 
Elevator Finishes and Controls:  The elevators were 
added with the 3rd floor addition in 1998.  The 
elevators appeared to be operating well and the 
cab finishes were generally in fair condition 
(Photos 16 and).  
The condition of the computer equipment, 
furniture and shelving, and office equipment 
varied throughout the Library.  

Rehabilitation:
A master plan for future rehabilitation of interiors 
spaces was developed by Product Architecture + 
Design in the fall of 2017.  The mast plan included 
a breakdown of specific projects and estimated 
costs.  The following is a summary of the areas 
covered by each project:
 Project 1A:  First floor Circulation desk,

Circulation work areas, staff lounge
Estimated Construction Cost:  $350,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $75,000

Photo 7 

Photo 8 

Photo 9 

Page 69 of 125



Page: 4 of 6

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 Project 1B:  First Floor Technical Services
and Maintenance areas
Estimated Construction Cost:  $695,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $160,000

 Project 2:  Second Floor Youth Services
Estimated Construction Cost:  $955,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $525,000

 Project 3:  Public areas on Second Floor
other than Youth Services
Estimated Construction Cost:  $1,246,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $367,000

 Project 4:  Second Floor staff offices,
conference rooms, and multi-purpose rooms
Estimated Construction Cost:  $2,025,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $252,000

 Project 5:  Third Floor
Estimated Construction Cost:  $732,000
Estimated Furnishings Cost:  $418,000

After the rehabilitation projects are complete, 
replacement of carpeting should be planned for 
every 8 to 10 years.  We recommend installing 
tiled carpeting for easier replacement in localized 
high traffic areas.  
Elevator Finishes and Controls:  Elevator cab 
finishes typically have useful life of approximately 
20 to 30 years.  We did not observe any significant 
deterioration that would accelerate the need to 
modernize the elevators.  
Furniture and Shelving:  Although furnishings and 
shelving typically have a longer useful life than 
carpeting, replacing some or all of these items at 
the same time as the carpeting aids in 
coordination efforts.  As such, we have included 
an allowance for replacing some furniture and 
shelving in the same years as carpet replacement 
for planning purposes.  
We have assumed that upgrades in computer 
equipment, furniture and shelving, and office 
equipment are included in the master plan 
projects.  
Technology and Communications (Tech/Comm):  
Upgrades will include replacing the current 
phone system, security cameras, alarm system, 
and adding an RFID system and automatic 
material handling equipment.  

Photo 10 

Photo 11 

Photo 12 

Page 70 of 125



Page: 5 of 6

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Approximate Rehabilitation Cost and Schedule:
Based on information provided by the Library, 
and our financial analysis, the following is a 
recommended schedule for the interior 
rehabilitation projects:
 2019/2020:

 Tech/Comm:  Replace phone system
Approximate Cost:  $100,000

 Master Plan Rehabilitation:
 Project 1A

Approximate Cost:  $425,000
 Add study rooms in Reference

(Part of Project 3)
Approximate Cost:  $400,000

 2020/2021:
 Tech/Comm:  Replace security cameras

Approximate Cost:  $75,000
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:

Marketplace (Part of Project 3)
Approximate Cost:   $340,000

 2021/2022:
 Tech/Comm:

 Replace alarm system
Approximate Cost:  $75,000

 RFID system
Approximate Cost:  $150,000

 Automated materials handler
Approximate Cost:   $130,000

 Master Plan Rehabilitation:  Project 1B
Approximate Cost:  $855,000

 2022/2023:
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:  Fiction &

Media staff space rehabilitation
(assumed 50% of Project 5)
Approximate Cost:  $575,000

 2023/2024:
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:

Middle & high school space on 2nd floor
(assumed 50% of Project 2)
Approximate Cost:  $740,000

Photo 13 

Photo 14 

Photo 15 

Page 71 of 125



Page: 6 of 6

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 2024/2025:
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:

Youth Services rehabilitation
(remainder of Project 2)
Approximate Cost:  $740,000

 2025/2026:
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:  Project 5

Approximate Cost:  $1,150,000
 2026/2027:

 Master Plan Rehabilitation:  Reference
rehabilitation (remainder of Project 3)
Approximate Cost:  $533,000

 2027/2028:
 Master Plan Rehabilitation:  Project 4

Approximate Cost:  $2,277,000
 2028/2029:  Elevator cab refurbishment

Approximate Cost:  $50,000
 2029/2030:

 Replace 1st floor carpeting
Approximate Cost:  $96,000

 Allowance for furniture and shelving
Approximate Cost:  $50,000

 2034/2035:
 Replace 2nd floor public area carpeting

Approximate Cost:  $240,000
 Allowance for furniture and shelving

Approximate Cost:  $50,000
 2036/2037:

 Replace 3rd floor public area carpeting
Approximate Cost:  $112,000

 Allowance for furniture and shelving
Approximate Cost:  $50,000

Maintenance Recommendations:
The appearance of interior finishes will rely greatly 
on routine maintenance.  Such maintenance 
should include carpet cleaning, localized 
painting, replacing damaged or discolored 
flooring and ceiling tiles, etc.  Additionally, we 
recommend the following items be addressed 
from the Library’s operating budget:
 Replace kitchen appliances as needed.
 Replace computer hardware as necessary to

ensure availability of parts and functionality.

Photo 16 

Photo 17 

Page 72 of 125



Summary Report

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

Project: 
Northbrook Public Library
Northbrook, Illinois

Capital Asset Component:
Mechanical, Electrical, Plumbing, and Fire 
Protection (MEP/FP)

Asset Quantities:
 Air handlers:  5 each (Photos 1 and 2)
 Roof-top units (RTUs):  2 each (Photo 3)
 Split-system air conditioners: 4 each (Photo 4)
 Chiller (Photo 5)
 Cooling tower
 Boilers:  3 each (Photo 6)
 HVAC pumps:  17 each (Photo 7)
 Exhaust fans:  15 each (Photo 8)
 Fire pump (Photo 9)
 Domestic water heater
 Sewage ejector pump:  2 each
 Sump pumps:  2 each (Photo 10)
 Emergency generator (Photo 11)
 Temperature control air compressors:  2 each

Condition:
Calor Design Group, Ltd. (Calor) established an 
inventory and assessed the condition of the 
Library’s mechanical equipment in 2008.  Calor’s 
“Mechanical Equipment Inventory Update” 
report dated February 16, 2018 included 
recommendations for future rehabilitation of 
some of the mechanical equipment.  Based on 
the report, the central heating and air 
conditioning equipment were given the highest 
priority for repairs.     
Chiller C-1 (used as a back-up for Chiller C-2) 
Cooling Tower CT-2 were removed in 2016.  Chiller 
C-2 was repaired, and the corresponding Cooling
Tower CT-2 was replaced in 2018.
Most of the air handling units have either been 
replaced or rehabilitated in recent years.  Air 
Handling Unit S-3A was installed in 1968 during the 
original construction of the Library.  The Calor 

Photo 1 

Photo 2 

Photo 3 

Page 73 of 125



Page: 2 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

report recommended replacement in 2024.  
However, based on conversations with Library 
staff regarding the performance of the 
equipment, replacement is recommended 
sooner.  
Two of the split-system air conditioning units were 
installed in 2014 and are in good condition.  The 
remaining 2 are nearing the end of their 
anticipated useful life.  As such, replacement 
should be planned for within 5 years.  
The boilers are nearing the end of their useful life.  
As such, replacement should be planned for 
within the next few years.   
Pumps and exhaust fans have been replaced at 
various times.  Their remaining useful lives also vary 
significantly depending on their function.  The 
estimated cost and schedule for replacing the 
pumps and exhaust fans is based solely on the 
expected remaining lives indicated in the Calor 
report.  

Approximate Rehabilitation Cost and Schedule:
The following are estimated costs and schedule 
for the recommended MEP/FP equipment 
rehabilitation:
 2019/2020:

 Replace chilled water pump (P-1)
and condensate pump (P-6)
Approximate Cost:  $12,000

 Replace 2 exhaust fans (E-4 and E-6)
Approximate Cost:  $5,000

 Replace domestic water heater
Approximate Cost:  $3,000

 Boiler room ventilation
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

 Replace fire sprinklers (first phase)
Approximate Cost:  $20,000

 2020/2021:
 Replace air handling unit (S-3A)

Approximate Cost:  $12,000
 Replace exhaust fan (CE-1)

Approximate Cost:  $3,000
 Replace fire sprinklers (second phase)

Approximate Cost:  $15,000

Photo 4 

Photo 5 

Photo 6 

Page 74 of 125



Page: 3 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 2021/2022:
 Replace boilers (B-1 and B-2)

Approximate Cost:  $80,000
 2023/2024:

 Replace split-system air conditioners
(CU-3/CRU-3 and CU-4/CRU-4)
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

 Replace humidifier boiler
Approximate Cost:  $20,000

 Replace condensate water pump (P-12)
Approximate Cost:  $8,000

 Replace 4 exhaust fans (E-5, E-7, E-8, E-10)
Approximate Cost:  $12,000

 Replace temperature control
air compressor
Approximate Cost:  $8,000

 2027/2028:
 Replace hot water pump (P-4)

Approximate Cost:  $5,000
 Replace domestic water heater

Approximate Cost:  $3,000
 2028/2029:

 Replace 6 pumps (P-3, P-11, P-13, P-14,
P-15, and pressure fill system)
Approximate Cost:  $33,000

 Replace 4 exhaust fans (SF-1/2/3/4)
Approximate Cost:  $12,000

 Replace emergency generator
Approximate Cost:  $40,000

 2029/2030:
 Replace ejector pumps

Approximate Cost:  $5,000
 Replace sump pumps

Approximate Cost:  $5,000
 2030/2031:  Replace air handlers (S-3 and S-4)

Approximate Cost:  $240,000
 2031/2032:  Replace 3 pumps (P-5, P-7, P-8)

Approximate Cost:  $13,000
 2032/2033: Replace condensate pump (P-16)

Approximate Cost:  $4,000
 2034/2035:  Replace split-system air

conditioners (CU-1/CRU-1 and CU-2/CRU-2)
Approximate Cost:  $30,000

Photo 7 

Photo 8 

Photo 9 

Page 75 of 125



Page: 4 of 4

Building Technology Consultants, Inc. 1845 East Rand Road, Suite L-100
Arlington Heights, Illinois  60004

Main:  (847) 454-8800   |   www.btc.expert

 2035/2036:
 Replace 3 exhaust fans (EF-1, EF2, EF-3)

Approximate Cost:  $9,000
 Replace domestic water heater

Approximate Cost:  $3,000
 2036/2037:

 Replace air handlers (S-1 and S-2)
Approximate Cost:  $240,000

 Replace exhaust return fans (ER-1, ER-2)
Approximate Cost:  $50,000

 2038/2039
 Replace HVAC units (RTU-1 and RTU-2)

Approximate Cost:  $300,000
 Replace fire pump

Approximate Cost:  $35,000

Maintenance Recommendations:
The following maintenance items can extend the 
service life of some of the existing MEP/FP 
equipment.  However, it is not anticipated that 
the recommended routine maintenance can 
significantly delay the anticipated replacement 
time frame for the equipment.
 Inspect operating motors routinely.  Repair or

replace motors or motor bearings when
needed.

 Replace belts and other miscellaneous items
as necessary to maintain a functioning
system.

 Remove and replace malfunctioning or
defective switch gear or circuit breakers on
an as-needed basis.

 It is our understanding that sprinkler heads for
the dry sprinkler system hanging from the
soffits along the underside of the 2nd floor
overhangs are being replaced
systematically.  As such, this is not considered
a capital expense.  We recommend
continuing the replacement process until
100% of the sprinkler heads have been
replaced.

Photo 10 

Photo 11 

Page 76 of 125



APPENDIX B

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS TABLES

Page 77 of 125



Page 78 of 125



U
n

it C
o

sts
E

xp
en

se
s

T
o

tal fo
r 20

 
Y

ea
r P

erio
d

T
o

tal fo
r 20

 
Y

ea
r P

erio
d

%
 o

f T
o

tal 
fo

r 20
 Y

ea
r 

P
erio

d

S
ite E

lem
en

ts
A

sphalt P
avem

ent
P

oor
15-20

0
54,500

S
quare F

eet
179.4%

$4.62
$252,000

$452,000
$515,029

3.0%
C

oncrete D
rivew

ay
F

air
U

p to 60
10+

6,300
S

quare F
eet

10.6%
$15.00

$94,500
$10,000

$11,671
0.1%

C
oncrete S

idew
alks and S

tairs
F

air
U

p to 60
10+

17,800
S

quare F
eet

3.7%
$15.00

$267,000
$10,000

$11,671
0.1%

C
oncrete C

urbing
G

ood
U

p to 60
10+

800
Linear F

eet
15.6%

$80.00
$64,000

$10,000
$11,671

0.1%
Landscaping and H

ardscape
G

ood
V

aries
V

aries
7,500

S
quare F

eet
100.0%

$20.00
$150,000

$150,000
$156,673

0.9%
R

ailings and H
andrails

G
ood / P

oor
15

V
aries

220
Linear F

eet
100.0%

$22.73
$5,000

$5,000
$5,575

0.0%
R

etaining W
alls

G
ood

40+
20+

1,060
Linear F

eet
$250.00

$265,000
P

ole-m
ounted Light F

ixtures
F

air to P
oor

20-25
5

14
E

ach
100.0%

$3,000
$42,000

$42,000
$46,828

0.3%
M

iscellaneous S
ite E

lem
ents

V
aries

V
aries

V
aries

1
A

llow
ance

$10,000
$10,000

R
o

o
fin

g
M

ain R
oof

G
ood

15-20
7

23,000
S

quare F
eet

100.0%
$25.00

$575,000
$575,000

$669,613
3.9%

E
levated M

echanical E
quipm

ent R
oofs

G
ood

15-20
15

6,000
S

quare F
eet

100.0%
$30.00

$180,000
$180,000

$249,480
1.5%

B
arreled R

oof
F

air
15-20

3-5
21,000

S
quare F

eet
100.0%

$30.00
$630,000

$630,000
$702,417

4.1%

F
acad

e
B

rick M
asonry

G
ood

30-50
V

aries
1,400

S
quare F

eet
23.8%

$30.00
$42,000

$10,000
$11,395

0.1%
C

orrugated M
etal P

anels
F

air
25-35

15+
2,700

S
quare F

eet
24.7%

$15.00
$40,500

$10,000
$10,675

0.1%
M

echanical P
enthouse W

all C
ladding

F
air

25-35
15+

1,800
S

quare F
eet

100.0%
$152.78

$275,000
$275,000

$287,233
1.7%

2nd F
loor W

indow
s (O

riginal S
tructure)

P
oor

30-50
0

94
E

ach
6.6%

$8,000
$752,000

$50,000
$63,523

0.4%
W

indow
 W

all S
ystem

 (1999 A
ddition)

G
ood

30-50
20+

9,600
S

quare F
eet

1.7%
$250.00

$2,400,000
$40,000

$44,598
0.3%

P
rojecting S

unshades
G

ood
30-50

20+
420

Linear F
eet

$200.00
$84,000

S
torefront S

ystem
G

ood
30-50

20+
1,700

S
quare F

eet
$100.00

$170,000
E

xterior D
oors

G
ood

V
aries

V
aries

9
E

ach
$3,000

$27,000
S

offits
F

air
25-30

10+
19,800

S
quare F

eet
10.1%

$5.00
$99,000

$10,000
$11,395

0.1%
E

xposed S
teel F

ram
ing

P
oor

V
aries

V
aries

1
A

llow
ance

100.0%
$200,000

$200,000
$200,000

$254,091
1.5%

E
xterior F

acade R
epairs

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
A

llow
ance

100.0%
$1,000,000

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$1,044,484
6.1%

In
terio

r F
in

ish
es an

d
 F

ixtu
res

F
looring

V
aries

V
aries

V
aries

80,300
S

quare F
eet

69.7%
$8.00

$642,400
$448,000

$627,626
3.7%

C
eiling F

inishes
V

aries
V

aries
V

aries
42,000

S
quare F

eet
R

estroom
 F

inishes and F
ixtures

V
aries

V
aries

V
aries

1,300
S

quare F
eet

E
levator F

inishes and C
ontrols

G
ood

20-30
10

2
E

ach
100.0%

$25,000
$50,000

$50,000
$62,155

0.4%
C

om
puter E

quipm
ent

V
aries

V
aries

V
aries

1
A

llow
ance

$525,000
$525,000

F
urniture and S

helving
G

ood
V

aries
V

aries
1

A
llow

ance
10.6%

$1,410,000
$1,410,000

$150,000
$208,323

1.2%
O

ffice E
quipm

ent
G

ood
N

/A
V

aries
1

A
llow

ance
$561,000

$561,000
T

echnology and C
om

m
unications

V
aries

V
aries

V
aries

1
A

llow
ance

530.0%
$100,000

$100,000
$530,000

$559,485
3.3%

M
aster P

lan R
ehabilitation

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
A

llow
ance

109.9%
$7,800,000

$7,800,000
$8,575,000

$9,726,164
57.1%

M
ech

., E
lect., P

lu
m

b
in

g
, &

 F
ire P

ro
tectio

n
A

ir H
andlers

V
aries

20-40
5 / 12 / 18

5
E

ach
90.3%

$120,000
$600,000

$542,000
$753,208

4.4%
R

T
U

s
G

ood
20-25

20
2

E
ach

100.0%
$150,000

$300,000
$300,000

$463,595
2.7%

S
plit S

ystem
 A

ir C
onditioners

V
aries

15-20
5 / 16

4
E

ach
100.0%

$15,000
$60,000

$60,000
$75,943

0.4%
C

hillers
G

ood
20-25

22
1

E
ach

C
ooling T

ow
ers

G
ood

20-25
22

1
E

ach
B

oilers
P

oor
25-30

1 / 3
3

E
ach

100.0%
$33,333

$100,000
$100,000

$107,696
0.6%

H
V

A
C

 and P
lum

bing P
um

ps
V

aries
15-20

V
aries

17
E

ach
88.2%

$5,000
$85,000

$75,000
$90,965

0.5%
E

xhaust F
ans

V
aries

15-20
V

aries
15

E
ach

91.1%
$3,000

$45,000
$41,000

$49,568
0.3%

F
ire P

um
p

G
ood

25-30
20

1
E

ach
100.0%

$35,000
$35,000

$35,000
$54,086

0.3%
D

om
estic W

ater H
eater

P
oor

8-10
0

1
E

ach
300.0%

$3,000
$3,000

$9,000
$11,058

0.1%
S

ew
age E

jector P
um

p
G

ood
15

11
2

E
ach

100.0%
$2,500

$5,000
$5,000

$6,352
0.0%

S
um

p P
um

p
G

ood
15

11
2

E
ach

100.0%
$2,500

$5,000
$5,000

$6,352
0.0%

E
m

ergency G
enerator

G
ood

20-30
9

1
E

ach
100.0%

$40,000
$40,000

$40,000
$49,724

0.3%
T

em
perature C

ontrol A
ir C

om
pressor

F
air

25-30
5

1
E

ach
100.0%

$8,000
$8,000

$8,000
$8,920

0.1%
B

oiler R
oom

 V
entilation

P
oor

N
/A

N
/A

1
A

llow
ance

100.0%
$30,000

$30,000
$30,000

$30,660
0.2%

F
ire S

prinklers
P

oor
20-25

V
aries

1
A

llow
ance

100.0%
$35,000

$35,000
$35,000

$36,107
0.2%

P
rinted on 14-Jun-19

T
o

tals
$14,697,000

$17,036,009
10

0.0%

P
re

sen
t D

ay
F

u
tu

re
 (In

flated
)

E
xp

en
ses

T
o

tal
U

n
its

T
ab

le 1
E

lem
en

t E
xp

en
se S

u
m

m
ary

N
orthbrook P

ublic Library
P

roject #:  19-472

C
o

m
p

o
n

e
n

t
G

en
eral 

C
u

rren
t 

C
o

n
d

itio
n

T
yp

ica
l 

U
sefu

l L
ife

R
em

ain
in

g
 

U
sefu

l L
ife

V
ersion #:  D

R
A

F
T

 2.0
L

ife A
n

alysis (Y
ea

rs)

%
 o

f T
o

tal 
R

ep
aired

 / 
R

ep
lace

d
 

O
ver 20 Y

ea
r 

P
erio

d

Q
u

an
tities

Page 79 of 125



1 2 3 4 5

2019 / 2020 2020 / 2021 2021 / 2022 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement $252,000 #N/A #N/A $30,000 #N/A $282,000 4.0%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 #N/A $5,000 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 #N/A $5,000 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 #N/A $5,000 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A $150,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $150,000 2.1%
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 $5,000 0.1%

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $42,000 $42,000 0.6%
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $630,000 $630,000 8.9%

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A $10,000 #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A $275,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $275,000 3.9%

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $40,000 $40,000 0.6%

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A $1,000,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $1,000,000 14.1%

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Flooring #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications $100,000 $75,000 $355,000 #N/A #N/A $530,000 7.5%

Master Plan Rehabilitation $825,000 $340,000 $1,395,000 $575,000 $740,000 $3,875,000 54.5%
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection
Air Handlers #N/A $12,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $12,000 0.2%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,000 $30,000 0.4%

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A $80,000 #N/A $20,000 $100,000 1.4%
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps $12,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,000 $20,000 0.3%

Exhaust Fans $5,000 $3,000 #N/A #N/A $12,000 $20,000 0.3%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater $3,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $3,000 0.0%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,000 $8,000 0.1%
Boiler Room Ventilation $30,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,000 0.4%

Fire Sprinklers $20,000 $15,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $35,000 0.5%
Present Day Expense Totals $1,247,000 $1,870,000 $1,840,000 $620,000 $1,535,000 $7,112,000 100.0%

Inflation Rate (1+IR)n 1.0220 1.0445 1.0675 1.0909 1.1149
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $1,253,994 $1,953,185 $1,964,131 $676,387 $1,711,445

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $2,238,459 $1,585,324 $694,714 $1,754,836 $1,864,282
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $563,000 $1,040,000 $3,000,000 $750,000 $750,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($1,253,994) ($1,953,185) ($1,964,131) ($676,387) ($1,711,445)
Interest $37,859 $22,575 $24,253 $35,833 $27,671

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $1,585,324 $694,714 $1,754,836 $1,864,282 $930,508
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$7,579,582 100.0%

Years 1 thru 5

Table 2 Page 1 of 4

Northbrook Public Library
Project #:  19-472

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Present Day Annual Expense Summary (Years 1 thru 5)

Component

Page 80 of 125



6 7 8 9 10

2024 / 2025 2025 / 2026 2026 / 2027 2027 / 2028 2028 / 2029 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement #N/A $30,000 #N/A #N/A $50,000 $80,000 1.4%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 $5,000 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 $5,000 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 $5,000 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing
Main Roof #N/A $575,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $575,000 10.4%

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade
Brick Masonry $10,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.2%

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits $10,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.2%

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Flooring #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $50,000 $50,000 0.9%

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Master Plan Rehabilitation $740,000 $1,150,000 $533,000 $2,277,000 #N/A $4,700,000 84.9%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection
Air Handlers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 $33,000 $38,000 0.7%

Exhaust Fans #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $12,000 $12,000 0.2%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater #N/A #N/A #N/A $3,000 #N/A $3,000 0.1%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $40,000 $40,000 0.7%

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Present Day Expense Totals $760,000 $1,755,000 $533,000 $2,285,000 $200,000 $5,533,000 100.0%

Inflation Rate (1+IR)n 1.1395 1.1645 1.1902 1.2163 1.2431
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $866,003 $2,043,776 $634,358 $2,779,357 $248,622

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $930,508 $831,955 $1,814,380 $2,118,966 $81,395
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $750,000 $3,000,000 $900,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($866,003) ($2,043,776) ($634,358) ($2,779,357) ($248,622)
Interest $17,450 $26,201 $38,944 $21,786 $6,342

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $831,955 $1,814,380 $2,118,966 $81,395 $559,115
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$6,572,116 100.0%

Years 6 thru 10
Component

Table 2 Page 2 of 4

Northbrook Public Library
Project #:  19-472

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Present Day Annual Expense Summary (Years 6 thru 10)

Page 81 of 125



11 12 13 14 15

2029 / 2030 2030 / 2031 2031 / 2032 2032 / 2033 2033 / 2034 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements

Asphalt Pavement #N/A #N/A $30,000 #N/A #N/A $30,000 3.4%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $180,000 $180,000 20.6%
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) $50,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $50,000 5.7%
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exposed Steel Framing $200,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $200,000 22.9%
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Flooring $96,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $96,000 11.0%
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving $50,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $50,000 5.7%

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Master Plan Rehabilitation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection
Air Handlers #N/A $240,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $240,000 27.5%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A $13,000 $4,000 #N/A $17,000 1.9%

Exhaust Fans #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Sewage Ejector Pump $5,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 0.6%

Sump Pump $5,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 0.6%
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Present Day Expense Totals $406,000 $240,000 $43,000 $4,000 $180,000 $873,000 100.0%

Inflation Rate (1+IR)n 1.2705 1.2984 1.3270 1.3562 1.3860
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $515,805 $311,618 $57,060 $5,425 $249,480

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $559,115 $776,534 $1,204,531 $1,898,191 $2,657,876
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($515,805) ($311,618) ($57,060) ($5,425) ($249,480)
Interest $13,224 $19,615 $30,720 $45,110 $57,863

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $776,534 $1,204,531 $1,898,191 $2,657,876 $3,186,259
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$1,139,388 100.0%

Component

Northbrook Public Library

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0
Project #:  19-472

Present Day Annual Expense Summary (Years 11 thru 15)

Years 11 thru 15

Table 2 Page 3 of 4

Page 82 of 125



16 17 18 19 20

2034 / 2035 2035 / 2036 2036 / 2037 2037 / 2038 2038 / 2039 Totals
% of 

Totals
Totals

% of 
Totals

Site Elements
Asphalt Pavement $30,000 #N/A #N/A $30,000 #N/A $60,000 5.1% $452,000 3.1%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $150,000 1.0%
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 0.0%

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $42,000 0.3%
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $575,000 3.9%

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $180,000 1.2%
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $630,000 4.3%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $275,000 1.9%

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $50,000 0.3%
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $40,000 0.3%

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,000 0.1%

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $200,000 1.4%
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $1,000,000 6.8%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures

Flooring $240,000 #N/A $112,000 #N/A #N/A $352,000 29.9% $448,000 3.0%
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $50,000 0.3%

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving $50,000 #N/A $50,000 #N/A #N/A $100,000 8.5% $150,000 1.0%

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $530,000 3.6%

Master Plan Rehabilitation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,575,000 58.3%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection
Air Handlers #N/A #N/A $290,000 #N/A #N/A $290,000 24.6% $542,000 3.7%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $300,000 $300,000 25.4% $300,000 2.0%
Split System Air Conditioners $30,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,000 2.5% $60,000 0.4%

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $100,000 0.7%
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $75,000 0.5%

Exhaust Fans #N/A $9,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $9,000 0.8% $41,000 0.3%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $35,000 $35,000 3.0% $35,000 0.2%

Domestic Water Heater #N/A $3,000 #N/A #N/A #N/A $3,000 0.3% $9,000 0.1%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 0.0%

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,000 0.0%
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $40,000 0.3%

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,000 0.1%
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,000 0.2%

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $35,000 0.2%
Present Day Expense Totals $350,000 $12,000 $452,000 $30,000 $335,000 $1,179,000 100.0% $14,697,000 100.0%

Inflation Rate (1+IR)n 1.4165 1.4477 1.4795 1.5121 1.5453
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $495,773 $17,372 $668,735 $45,362 $517,681

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $3,186,259 $3,476,453 $4,255,636 $4,392,526 $5,161,761
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($495,773) ($17,372) ($668,735) ($45,362) ($517,681)
Interest $65,967 $76,555 $85,625 $94,597 $105,258

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $3,476,453 $4,255,636 $4,392,526 $5,161,761 $5,469,338
Printed on 14-Jun-19

Years 1 thru 20

$17,036,009 100.0%$1,744,923 100.0%

Component
Years 16 thru 20

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0
Project #:  19-472

Northbrook Public Library

Present Day Annual Expense Summary (Years 16 thru 20)

Page 4 of 4Table 2

Page 83 of 125



1 2 3 4 5

2019 / 2020 2020 / 2021 2021 / 2022 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 Totals
% of 

Totals
Technology and Communications

Phone Sytem $100,000 $100,000 18.9%
Security Cameras $75,000 $75,000 14.2%

Alarm System $75,000 $75,000 14.2%
RFID $150,000 $150,000 28.3%

Automated Material Handler $130,000 $130,000 24.5%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Present Day Expense Totals $100,000 $75,000 $355,000 $530,000 100.0%
Printed on 14-Jun-19

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Component
Years 1 thru 5

Northbrook Public Library
Project #:  19-472

Technology and Communications Breakdown (Years 1 thru 5)
Table 2a

Page 84 of 125



1 2 3 4 5

2019 / 2020 2020 / 2021 2021 / 2022 2022 / 2023 2023 / 2024 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements $0

Asphalt Pavement $257,544 #N/A #N/A $32,728 #N/A $290,272 3.8%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,455 #N/A $5,455 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,455 #N/A $5,455 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,455 #N/A $5,455 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A $156,673 #N/A #N/A #N/A $156,673 2.1%
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,575 $5,575 0.1%

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $46,828 $46,828 0.6%
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing $0
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $702,417 $702,417 9.3%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade $0
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A $10,675 #N/A #N/A $10,675 0.1%
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A $287,233 #N/A #N/A #N/A $287,233 3.8%

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $44,598 $44,598 0.6%

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A $1,044,484 #N/A #N/A #N/A $1,044,484 13.8%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures $0

Flooring #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications $102,200 $78,336 $378,949 #N/A #N/A $559,485 7.4%

Master Plan Rehabilitation $843,150 $355,125 $1,489,110 $627,294 $825,061 $4,139,740 54.6%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection $0
Air Handlers #N/A $12,534 #N/A #N/A #N/A $12,534 0.2%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $33,448 $33,448 0.4%

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A $85,397 #N/A $22,299 $107,696 1.4%
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps $12,264 #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,920 $21,184 0.3%

Exhaust Fans $5,110 $3,133 #N/A #N/A $13,379 $21,622 0.3%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater $3,066 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $3,066 0.0%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,920 $8,920 0.1%
Boiler Room Ventilation $30,660 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,660 0.4%

Fire Sprinklers $20,440 $15,667 #N/A #N/A #N/A $36,107 0.5%
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $1,253,994 $1,953,185 $1,964,131 $676,387 $1,711,445 $7,579,582 100.0%

Reciprocal of Inflation Rate 1/(1+IR)n 0.9785 0.9574 0.9368 0.9166 0.8969
Present Day Expense Totals $1,247,000 $1,870,000 $1,840,000 $620,000 $1,535,000

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $2,238,459 $1,585,324 $694,714 $1,754,836 $1,864,282
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $563,000 $1,040,000 $3,000,000 $750,000 $750,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($1,253,994) ($1,953,185) ($1,964,131) ($676,387) ($1,711,445)
Interest $37,859 $22,575 $24,253 $35,833 $27,671

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $1,585,324 $694,714 $1,754,836 $1,864,282 $930,508
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$7,112,000 100.0%

Years 1 thru 5

Table 3 Page 1 of 4

Component

Inflated Annual Expense Summary (Years 1 thru 5)
Northbrook Public Library

Project #:  19-472
Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Page 85 of 125



6 7 8 9 10

2024 / 2025 2025 / 2026 2026 / 2027 2027 / 2028 2028 / 2029 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements $0

Asphalt Pavement #N/A $34,936 #N/A #N/A $62,155 $97,091 1.5%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,216 $6,216 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,216 $6,216 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,216 $6,216 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing $0
Main Roof #N/A $669,613 #N/A #N/A #N/A $669,613 10.2%

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade $0
Brick Masonry $11,395 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,395 0.2%

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits $11,395 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,395 0.2%

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures $0

Flooring #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $62,155 $62,155 0.9%

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Master Plan Rehabilitation $843,213 $1,339,227 $634,358 $2,769,626 #N/A $5,586,424 85.0%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection $0
Air Handlers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,082 $41,023 $47,105 0.7%

Exhaust Fans #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $14,917 $14,917 0.2%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater #N/A #N/A #N/A $3,649 #N/A $3,649 0.1%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $49,724 $49,724 0.8%

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $866,003 $2,043,776 $634,358 $2,779,357 $248,622 $6,572,116 100.0%

Reciprocal of Inflation Rate 1/(1+IR)n 0.8776 0.8587 0.8402 0.8221 0.8044
Present Day Expense Totals $760,000 $1,755,000 $533,000 $2,285,000 $200,000

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $930,508 $831,955 $1,814,380 $2,118,966 $81,395
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $750,000 $3,000,000 $900,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($866,003) ($2,043,776) ($634,358) ($2,779,357) ($248,622)
Interest $17,450 $26,201 $38,944 $21,786 $6,342

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $831,955 $1,814,380 $2,118,966 $81,395 $559,115
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$5,533,000 100.0%

Years 6 thru 10

Table 3 Page 2 of 4

Component

Inflated Annual Expense Summary (Years 6 thru 10)
Northbrook Public Library

Project #:  19-472
Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Page 86 of 125



11 12 13 14 15

2029 / 2030 2030 / 2031 2031 / 2032 2032 / 2033 2033 / 2034 Totals
% of 

Totals
Site Elements $0

Asphalt Pavement #N/A #N/A $39,809 #N/A #N/A $39,809 3.5%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing $0
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $249,480 $249,480 21.9%
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade $0
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) $63,523 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $63,523 5.6%
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exposed Steel Framing $254,091 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $254,091 22.3%
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures $0

Flooring $121,964 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $121,964 10.7%
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving $63,523 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $63,523 5.6%

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Master Plan Rehabilitation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection $0
Air Handlers #N/A $311,618 #N/A #N/A #N/A $311,618 27.3%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Split System Air Conditioners #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A $17,251 $5,425 #N/A $22,676 2.0%

Exhaust Fans #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Domestic Water Heater #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Sewage Ejector Pump $6,352 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,352 0.6%

Sump Pump $6,352 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,352 0.6%
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $515,805 $311,618 $57,060 $5,425 $249,480 $1,139,388 100.0%

Reciprocal of Inflation Rate 1/(1+IR)n 0.7871 0.7702 0.7536 0.7374 0.7215
Present Day Expense Totals $406,000 $240,000 $43,000 $4,000 $180,000

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $559,115 $776,534 $1,204,531 $1,898,191 $2,657,876
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($515,805) ($311,618) ($57,060) ($5,425) ($249,480)
Interest $13,224 $19,615 $30,720 $45,110 $57,863

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $776,534 $1,204,531 $1,898,191 $2,657,876 $3,186,259
Printed on 14-Jun-19

Page 3 of 4

$873,000 100.0%

Years 11 thru 15

Table 3

Component

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

Inflated Annual Expense Summary (Years 11 thru 15)
Northbrook Public Library

Project #:  19-472

Page 87 of 125



16 17 18 19 20

2034 / 2035 2035 / 2036 2036 / 2037 2037 / 2038 2038 / 2039 Totals
% of 

Totals
Totals

% of 
Totals

Site Elements $0
Asphalt Pavement $42,495 #N/A #N/A $45,362 #N/A $87,857 5.0% $515,029 3.0%
Concrete Driveway #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,671 0.1%

Concrete Sidewalks and Stairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,671 0.1%
Concrete Curbing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,671 0.1%

Landscaping and Hardscape #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $156,673 0.9%
Railings and Handrails #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $5,575 0.0%

Retaining Walls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Pole-mounted Light Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $46,828 0.3%
Miscellaneous Site Elements #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Roofing $0
Main Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $669,613 3.9%

Elevated Mechanical Equipment Roofs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $249,480 1.5%
Barreled Roof #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $702,417 4.1%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Facade $0
Brick Masonry #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,395 0.1%

Corrugated Metal Panels #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $10,675 0.1%
Mechanical Penthouse Wall Cladding #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $287,233 1.7%

2nd Floor Windows (Original Structure) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $63,523 0.4%
Window Wall System (1999 Addition) #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $44,598 0.3%

Projecting Sunshades #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Storefront System #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Exterior Doors #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Soffits #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $11,395 0.1%

Exposed Steel Framing #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $254,091 1.5%
Exterior Facade Repairs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $1,044,484 6.1%

#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Interior Finishes and Fixtures $0

Flooring $339,958 #N/A $165,704 #N/A #N/A $505,662 29.0% $627,626 3.7%
Ceiling Finishes #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Restroom Finishes and Fixtures #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Elevator Finishes and Controls #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $62,155 0.4%

Computer Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Furniture and Shelving $70,825 #N/A $73,975 #N/A #N/A $144,800 8.3% $208,323 1.2%

Office Equipment #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Technology and Communications #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $559,485 3.3%

Master Plan Rehabilitation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $9,726,164 57.1%
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
#N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Mech., Elect., Plumbing, & Fire Protection $0
Air Handlers #N/A #N/A $429,056 #N/A #N/A $429,056 24.6% $753,208 4.4%

RTUs #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $463,595 $463,595 26.6% $463,595 2.7%
Split System Air Conditioners $42,495 #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $42,495 2.4% $75,943 0.4%

Chillers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A
Cooling Towers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A

Boilers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $107,696 0.6%
HVAC and Plumbing Pumps #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $90,965 0.5%

Exhaust Fans #N/A $13,029 #N/A #N/A #N/A $13,029 0.7% $49,568 0.3%
Fire Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $54,086 $54,086 3.1% $54,086 0.3%

Domestic Water Heater #N/A $4,343 #N/A #N/A #N/A $4,343 0.2% $11,058 0.1%
Sewage Ejector Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,352 0.0%

Sump Pump #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $6,352 0.0%
Emergency Generator #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $49,724 0.3%

Temperature Control Air Compressor #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $8,920 0.1%
Boiler Room Ventilation #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $30,660 0.2%

Fire Sprinklers #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A #N/A $36,107 0.2%
Future Expense Totals (Inflated) $495,773 $17,372 $668,735 $45,362 $517,681 $1,744,923 100.0% $17,036,009 100.0%

Reciprocal of Inflation Rate 1/(1+IR)n 0.7060 0.6908 0.6759 0.6614 0.6471
Present Day Expense Totals $350,000 $12,000 $452,000 $30,000 $335,000

Beginning Reserve Fund Balance $3,186,259 $3,476,453 $4,255,636 $4,392,526 $5,161,761
Recommended Reserve Fund Contribution $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000 $720,000

Future Expenses (Inflated) ($495,773) ($17,372) ($668,735) ($45,362) ($517,681)
Interest $65,967 $76,555 $85,625 $94,597 $105,258

Ending Reserve Fund Balance $3,476,453 $4,255,636 $4,392,526 $5,161,761 $5,469,338
Printed on 14-Jun-19

$14,697,000 100.0%

Page 4 of 4

Years 16 thru 20 Years 1 thru 20

$1,179,000

Inflated Annual Expense Summary (Years 16 thru 20)

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

100.0%

Table 3

Component

Project #:  19-472
Northbrook Public Library

Page 88 of 125



Year Fiscal Year

Beginning 
Balance of 

Reserve 
Fund

Annual 
Reserve Fund 
Contribution

Annual 
Reserve 

Fund 
Increase

Annual 
Expenses

Annual 
Interest

Ending 
Balance of 

Reserve 
Fund

0 2018 / 2019 $2,238,459

1 2019 / 2020 $2,238,459 $563,000 0.0% $1,253,994 $37,859 $1,585,324

2 2020 / 2021 $1,585,324 $1,040,000 84.7% $1,953,185 $22,575 $694,714

3 2021 / 2022 $694,714 $3,000,000 188.5% $1,964,131 $24,253 $1,754,836

4 2022 / 2023 $1,754,836 $750,000 -75.0% $676,387 $35,833 $1,864,282

5 2023 / 2024 $1,864,282 $750,000 0.0% $1,711,445 $27,671 $930,508

6 2024 / 2025 $930,508 $750,000 0.0% $866,003 $17,450 $831,955

7 2025 / 2026 $831,955 $3,000,000 300.0% $2,043,776 $26,201 $1,814,380

8 2026 / 2027 $1,814,380 $900,000 -70.0% $634,358 $38,944 $2,118,966

9 2027 / 2028 $2,118,966 $720,000 -20.0% $2,779,357 $21,786 $81,395

10 2028 / 2029 $81,395 $720,000 0.0% $248,622 $6,342 $559,115

11 2029 / 2030 $559,115 $720,000 0.0% $515,805 $13,224 $776,534

12 2030 / 2031 $776,534 $720,000 0.0% $311,618 $19,615 $1,204,531

13 2031 / 2032 $1,204,531 $720,000 0.0% $57,060 $30,720 $1,898,191

14 2032 / 2033 $1,898,191 $720,000 0.0% $5,425 $45,110 $2,657,876

15 2033 / 2034 $2,657,876 $720,000 0.0% $249,480 $57,863 $3,186,259

16 2034 / 2035 $3,186,259 $720,000 0.0% $495,773 $65,967 $3,476,453

17 2035 / 2036 $3,476,453 $720,000 0.0% $17,372 $76,555 $4,255,636

18 2036 / 2037 $4,255,636 $720,000 0.0% $668,735 $85,625 $4,392,526

19 2037 / 2038 $4,392,526 $720,000 0.0% $45,362 $94,597 $5,161,761

20 2038 / 2039 $5,161,761 $720,000 0.0% $517,681 $105,258 $5,469,338

Totals $19,393,000 $17,015,569 $853,448

Table 4

Projected Reserve Fund Balance of $2,238,459 as of April 30, 2018 / 2019.

Printed on 14-Jun-19

Recommended Reserve Funding Plan

Northbrook Public Library

Project #:  19-472

Version #:  DRAFT 2.0

(2.00% Interest  and  2.20% Inflation)

Page 89 of 125



Table 5

Printed on 14-Jun-19

Recommended Reserve Funding Plan
(2.00% Interest  and  2.20% Inflation)

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

YEAR

Annual Reserve Fund Contributions

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

$3,000,000

YEAR

Annual Expenses (Inflated)

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

YEAR

Annual Reserve Fund Balance

Page 90 of 125



Table 6
Current Fund Status

(2.00% Interest  and  2.20% Inflation)

Printed on 14-Jun-19

($8,000,000)

($6,000,000)

($4,000,000)

($2,000,000)

$0

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

Year

Projected Fund Balances Using Current Contributions
Fund Balances Using Recommended Funding Plan

Page 91 of 125



Page 92 of 125



Memorandum 

DATE: July 11, 2019 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director 

RE:  Parking Lot Barrier 

We have not had another parking lot truck incident, but have run into obstacles in putting a 
solution in place.   

To recap what we have done: 

 

 

 Installed a sign at the entrance to the parking lot advising trucks not to enter

 Contacted local senior centers and schools and asked them to remind drivers about
height restrictions.

After the last truck incident this spring, we worked with Product Architecture & Design to 
find a cost effective solution.  The best option for that was to have a barrier put at the 
entrance.  After working with the Tom Poupard at the Village and Kelly Hamill at Public 
Works, we learned that the solution we found would not work as it was not wide enough.  
We learned that barriers such as the one we are investigating typically do not come in widths 
of 16 ft., which is the width we need.  We looked into putting a frame across the entrance, 
but that was not an option as we still need to allow the garbage trucks to enter.   

After speaking more with the architect and village, we determined that we needed another 
solution.  We spoke with Carlos and he suggested putting a laser across the lot that would 
make a noise if someone crossed it.  While Brodie is looking into that option, we continued 
looking for other solutions.   

We learned that there are engineering and architecture firms that specialize in these types of 
parking lot and building design issues.  We looked into different firms and recently spoke 
with Dennis Williams at Desman Design Management (www.desman.com). Dennis said his 
firm would be able to work on this project and is preparing a proposal for our review.   

I apologize that this issue is not yet resolved. I am happy to explore other options and look 

Page 93 of 125

http://www.desman.com/


Page 94 of 125



IL
L
IN

O
IS

 P
U

B
L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (IP

L
A

R
) 

2
0

1
9

N
O

R
TH

B
R

O
O

K
 P

U
B

L
IC

 L
IB

R
A

R
Y

rllP
L

A
R

---------------------------------------------------

ID
E

N
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N
 (1

.1
 - 1

.3
1

)----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This section is in
fo

rm
atio

n
 ab

o
u

t th
e ad

m
in

istrative en
tity. "A

d
m

in
istrative E

n
tity" is d

efin
ed

 as th
e ag

en
cy th

a
t is leg

ally estab
lish

ed
 

u
n

d
er local o

r state law
 to

 p
ro

vid
e p

u
b

lic lib
rary service to

 th
e p

o
p

u
latio

n
 o

f a lo
cal ju

risd
ictio

n
. T

h
e ad

m
in

istrative e
n

tity
 m

ay h
ave a

 

sin
g

le o
u

tlet o
r it m

ay h
ave m

o
re th

an
 o

n
e o

u
tlet (a

n
 o

u
tle

t is a lo
catio

n
, w

h
e

th
e

r a cen
tral lib

rary, b
ran

ch
 o

r b
o

o
km

o
b

ile). T
h

e m
a

jo
rity

 

o
f th

e in
fo

rm
atio

n
 in th

is sectio
n is p

re-filled
. If in

fo
rm

atio
n
 n

eed
s to

 b
e u

p
d

ated
, e

n
ter th

e
 co

rrected
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 in th

e
 b

o
x p

ro
vid

ed
 on

 

th
e n

ext lin
e o

f th
e su

rvey.

1.1 IS
L

 C
ontrol #

 [P
LS

C
 151, PLSC

 701]
3

0
5

0
3

1.2 IS
L
 B

ranch #
 [P

LS
C
 151, PLSC

 701]
0

0
1.3a FSC

S ID
 [P

LS
C
 150, PLSC

 700]
IL

0
3
8
8

1.3b
 FS

C
S

_S
E

Q
 [P

LS
C

 700]
0
0
2

1.4a Legal N
am

e o
f L

ib
rary [P

LS
C

 152]
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k
 P

u
b

lic L
ib

rary
1.4b

 If th
e lib

rary's n
am

e has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
dated

 an
sw

er h
ere.

1.4c W
as th

is an o
fficial n

am
e change?

1.5a F
acility S

treet A
ddress [P

LS
C

 153]
1

2
0

1
 C

e
d

a
r L

an
e

1.5b
 If th

e facility's street ad
d

ress has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated an
sw

er h
ere.

1.5c W
as th

is a physical lo
catio

n change?
1.6a F

acility C
ity [P

LS
C

 154]
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

1.6b
 If th

e facility's city has ch
an

ged
, th

en en
ter th

e u
p

d
ated an

sw
er h

ere.
1.7a Facility Z

ip [P
LS

C
 155]

6
0

0
6

2
1.7b

 If th
e facility's zip

 code has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated an
sw

er h
ere.

1.8a M
ailing A

ddress [P
LS

C
 157]

1
2

0
1
 C

e
d

a
r L

an
e

1.8b
 If th

e facility's m
ailing

 ad
d

ress has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated
 an

sw
er h

ere.
1.9a M

ailing C
ity [P

LS
C

 158]
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

1.9b
 If th

e facility's m
ailin

g city has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated an
sw

er h
ere.

1.10a M
ailing Z

ip [P
LS

C
 159]

6
0

0
6

2
1.10b

 If th
e facility's m

ailin
g zip

 co
d

e has ch
ang

ed
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated an
sw

er h
ere.

1.11a Library T
eleph

o
ne N

u
m

b
er [P

LS
C

 162]
(8

4
7

) 2
7
2
-6

2
2
4

l.llb
 If th

e telep
h

o
n

e n
u

m
b

er has ch
an

ged
, th

en
 en

ter th
e u

p
d

ated an
sw

er h
ere.

1
1.12a Library FA

X N
u

m
b

er
(8

4
7

) 2
7
2
-5

3
6
2

1.12b
 If th

e fax n
u

m
b

er has ch
an

ged
, th

en en
ter th

e u
p

d
ated an

sw
er h

ere.
1.13 W

eb
site

h
ttp

://w
w

w
.n

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

.in
fo

L
ibrary D

irecto
r's In

fo
rm

atio
n

P
lease en

ter th
e fu

ll n
am

e, title
 an

d
 e

-m
a

il ad
d

ress o
f th

e lib
rary d

irecto
r.

1.14 N
am

e
K

a
te

 H
a
ll

1.15 T
itle

E
x
e
c
u

tiv
e
 D

ire
c
to

r
1.16 L

ib
rary D

irecto
r's E

-m
ail

k
h

a
ll@

n
o

rth
b

ro
o

k
.in

fo

L
ibrary In

fo
rm

atio
n

P
lease p

ro
vid

e th
e
 req

u
ested

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
 ab

o
u

t th
e
 lib

rary typ
e.

1.17a T
yp

e o
f lib

rary
V

illa
g

e

1.17b
 If th

e lib
rary typ

e h
as ch

an
g

ed
, th

en
 e

n
te

r th
e u

p
d

ated
 an

sw
er h

ere.
1.18 Is

 th
e m

ain
 lib

rary a co
m

b
in

ed
 p

u
b

lic an
d
 school lib

rary?
N

o

Page 95 of 125

http://www.northbrook.info


Page 96 of 125



S
E

R
V

IC
E
 O

U
TLE

TS
 (2

.1
 - 2

.1
4

)---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------—
---------------------------------------—

This section g
ath

ers in
fo

rm
atio

n
 ab

o
u

t th
e service o

u
tlets (cen

trals, b
ran

ch
es, b

o
o

km
o

b
iles) o

f yo
u

r lib
rary. If yo

u
 d

o n
o

t h
ave service

 

lo
catio

n
s b

eyo
nd th

e
 cen

tral lib
rary, th

is sectio
n
 w

ill n
o

t o
p

en
 fo

r co
m

p
letio

n
. L

ocation
s can o

n
ly be ad

d
ed

 to
 th

is su
rvey by S

tate L
ib

rary
 

staff. If you h
ave a b

ran
ch o

r b
o

o
km

o
b

ile an
d
 do n

o
t see its n

am
e listed

 in q
u

estio
n
 2

.3
a
, p

lease co
n

tact P
at B

urg (2
1
7
-7

8
5
-1

1
6
8
, 

p
b

u
rg

@
ilso

s.net) so th
a

t it can be ad
d

ed
.

2.1a T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f bookm

obiles [P
LS

C
 211 &

 P
LS

C
 712]

0
2.1b

 T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f b

ran
ch lib

raries [P
LSC

 210]
0

2.2a A
re an

y o
f th

e branch lib
raries a com

bined public and school lib
rary?

2.2b
 If Y

ES
, p

ro
vid

e th
e n

am
e o

f th
e branch o

r b
ranch

es in th
e box p

ro
vid

ed
.

A
N

N
U

A
L R

E
P

O
R

T D
A

TA
 (3

.1
 - 3

.7
)

P
lease en

ter th
e tim

e period co
vered

 by th
is an

n
u

al rep
o

rt an
d th

e
 n

am
e an

d
 co

n
tact in

fo
rm

atio
n
 fo

r th
e
 p

erson
 p

rep
arin

g
 th

e
 rep

o
rt. 

T
h

e rep
o

rt p
erio

d sh
o

uld co
ver th

e
 tim

e fro
m

 th
e en

d o
f th

e
 p

revio
u

s IP
L

A
R

 th
ro

u
g

h
 th

e
 en

d
 o

f yo
u

r m
o

st cu
rren

t fiscal year. If yo
u

r
 

lib
rary sw

itch
ed

 to
 a n

ew
 fiscal year d

u
rin

g
 th

e latest p
erio

d
, th

is m
ay m

ean
 th

a
t yo

u
r rep

o
rt n

eed
s to

 co
ver m

o
re o

r less th
an

 a tw
e

lv
e

 
(1

2
) m

o
n

th
 p

erio
d

.

3.1 Fiscal Y
ear S

tart D
ate (m

m
/d

d
/y

e
a

r) [P
LS

C
 206]

0
5
/0

1
/2

0
1
8

3.2 Fiscal Y
ear E

nd D
ate (m

m
/d

d
/y

e
a
r) [P

LS
C

 207]
0
4
/3

0
/2

0
1
9

3.3 N
u

m
ber o

f m
o

n
th

s in th
is fiscal year

12
3.4 N

am
e o

f person p
rep

arin
g
 th

is an
n

u
al rep

o
rt

A
n

n
a A

m
en

3.5 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er o

f P
erson P

reparing R
ep

o
rt

8
4
7
-2

7
2
-6

2
2
9

3.6 FA
X N

um
ber

8
4
7
-2

7
2
-5

3
6
2

j 3.7 E
-M

ail A
ddress

a
a
m

e
n

@
n

o
rth

b
ro

o
k
.in

fo

R
E

FE
R

E
N

D
A
 (4

.1
 - 4

.1
1
)

P
lease en

ter in
fo

rm
atio

n
 reg

ard
in

g
 an

y referen
d

a th
e lib

rary w
as^in

vo
lved

 in d
u

rin
g
 th

e
 fiscal y

e
a

r rep
o

rt p
erio

d
. A

 referen
d

u
m

 is a
 

p
articu

lar issu
e th

a
t is taken

 to
 th

e
 p

u
b

lic fo
r a vo

te. E
xam

p
les are: b

o
nd

 issu
e, d

istrict estab
lish

m
en

t, ta
x
 in

crease.'

： 4.1a W
as yo

u
r lib

rary in
vo

lved
 in a referen

d
u

m
 d

u
ring

 th
e fiscal year rep

o
rtin

g
 period?

N
o

|4.1b
 H

o
w

 m
an

y referen
d

a w
as yo

ur lib
rary in

vo
lved

 in?
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

._
_

R
eferen

d
u

m
 1

4
.2
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 

T
yp

e
4.3 If O

th
er, w

h
a
t w

as th
e

 

referen
d

u
m

 typ
e?

4
.4
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 D
ate

 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

4
.5
 

P
assed

 

o
r Failed?

4
.6
 

E
ffective D

ate
 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

4
.7
 

R
eferen

d
u

m
 b

allo
t 

lan
g

u
ag

e d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n

4
.2
 R

eferen
d

u
m

Type
4

.3
 If O

th
er, w

h
a
t w

as th
e

 

referen
d

u
m

 typ
e?

4
.4
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 D
ate

 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

4
.5
 

P
assed

 

o
r Failed?

4
.6
 

E
ffective D

ate
 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e

a
r)

4
.7
 

R
eferen

d
u

m
 b

allo
t 

lan
g

u
ag

e d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n

4
.2
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 

T
yp

e
4.3 If O

th
er, w

h
a
t w

as th
e

 

referen
d

u
m

 typ
e?

4
.4
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 D
ate

 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

4
.5
 

P
assed

 

o
r Failed?

4
.6
 

E
ffective D

ate
 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e

a
r)

4
.7
 

R
eferen

d
u

m
 b

allo
t 

lan
g

u
ag

e d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n

4
.2
 R

eferen
d

u
m

4
.3
 If O

th
er, w

h
a
t w

as th
e

4
.4
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 D
ate

4
.5
 

P
assed

4
.6
 E

ffective D
ate

4
.7
 

R
eferen

d
u

m
 b

allo
t

Page 97 of 125

mailto:pburg@ilsos.net


Jjyp
e

referen
d

u
m

 typ
e?

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

o
r Failed?

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e

a
r)

lan
g

u
ag

e d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n
i

4
.2
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 

Type
4

.3
 If O

th
er, w

h
a
t w

as th
e

 

referen
d

u
m

 typ
e?

4
.4
 R

eferen
d

u
m

 D
ate

 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e
a
r)

4
.5
 

P
assed

 

o
r Failed?

4
.6
 

E
ffective D

ate
 

(m
m

/d
d

/y
e

a
r)

4
.7
 

R
eferen

d
u

m
 b

allo
t 

lan
g

u
ag

e d
o

cu
m

en
tatio

n

If, d
u

rin
g th

e fiscal year rep
o

rt p
erio

d
, th

e lib
rary b

oard
 to

o
k actio

n
 to

 a
) co

n
vert to

 p
u

b
lic lib

rary d
istrict statu

s by ap
p

ro
val o

f th
e

 

co
rp

o
rate au

th
o

rity [7
5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/1

0
-1

5
]; a

n
d

/o
r b

) th
e p

u
b

lic lib
rary d

istrict an
n

exed
 ad

d
itio

n
al te

rrito
ry

 in an u
n

in
co

rp
o

rated
 area by

 

b
ackd

oo
r referen

d
u

m
 [7

5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/1

5
-5

, et seq
.]; a

n
d

/o
r c

) yo
u

r p
u

b
lic lib

rary d
istrict to

o
k an

y o
th

er actio
n
 by b

ackd
o

o
r referen

d
u

m
, 

in
d

icate th
e effective d

ate o
f th

e
 actio

n
. "B

ackdo
o

r referen
d

u
m

" m
ean

s th
e su

b
m

issio
n
 o

f a p
u

b
lic q

u
estio

n
 to

 th
e
 vo

ters o
f a

 

g
o

vern
m

en
tal u

n
it, in

itiated
 by a p

etitio
n
 o

f vo
ters, resid

en
ts o

r p
ro

p
erty o

w
n

ers o
f such g

o
vern

m
en

tal u
n

it, to
 d

eterm
in

e w
h

e
th

e
r an

 

actio
n by th

e
 g

o
vern

in
g
 b

o
dy o

f su
ch g

o
vern

m
en

tal u
n

it sh
all be effective, ad

o
p

ted
 o

r rejected
.

4
.8

 D
istrict C

onversion - E
ffective D

ate (m
m

/d
d

/y
ear)

4
.9

 T
errito

ry A
n

n
exatio

n
 - E

ffective D
ate (m

m
/d

d
/y

e
a
r)

4.10a O
th

er A
ction b

y B
ackdoor R

eferen
du

m
 (p

lease sp
ecify)

4
.1

0
b O

th
er - E

ffective D
ate (m

m
/d

d
/y

e
a
r)__

______________
4.11a O

th
er A

ction b
y B

ackdoor R
eferen

d
u

m
 (p

le
ase sp

ecify)
4

.1
1

b O
th

er - E
ffective D

ate (m
m

/d
d

/year)__________________

C
U

R
R

E
N

T L
IB

R
A

R
Y
 B

O
A

R
D
 [5

.1
 - 5.13)1----1

P
lease rep

o
rt th

e n
u

m
b

er o
f b

o
ard

 seats an
d th

e
 n

u
m

b
er o

f vacan
cies. B

e su
re to

 p
ro

vid
e cu

rren
t b

oard
 m

em
b

er in
fo

rm
atio

n
; in

clu
d

in
g

 
n

am
e, position/¿£elephone n

u
m

b
er, e-m

ail ad
d

ress, h
o

m
e address,^and te

rm
 exp

iratio
n
 d

ate. If th
e
re are vacan

cies, p
lease exp

lain
.

A
ll p

erso
n

al Id
en

tifyin
g
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 is F

O
IA

 exem
p

t an
d w

ill N
O

T-be released
 to

 th
e p

u
b

lic. T
h

e o
n

ly in
fo

rm
atio

n
 th

a
t th

e
 Illin

o
is

 S
tate

 

L
ib

rary w
ill-release upon req

u
est is th

e
 b

o
ard m

em
b

er n
am

e, tru
ste

e p
o

sitio
n an

d
 te

rm
 exp

iratio
n
 d

ate.

R
ep

o
rt th

e
 m

o
st cu

rren
t in

fo
rm

atio
n
 availab

le.

5.1 T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f b

o
ard

 seats
5.2 T

o
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f vacan
t b

oard seats
5

.2
b
 P

lease exp
lain

5.3 T
h

is p
u

b
lic lib

rary b
o

ard
 o

f tru
stees a

ttes
ts th

a
t th

e cu
rren

t b
o

ard
 is leg

ally estab
lish

ed
, 

o
rg

an
ized

, an
d
 th

e term
s o

f o
ffice fo

r lib
ra

ry tru
stees a

re all u
n

exp
ired

.
Y

e
s

5.4 IF
 N

O
, p

lease exp
lain

F
irst M

em
b

er

5
.5 

N
am

e 
ic

a
rio

s
 M

 F
ru

m

5
.6 T

ru
stee P

o
sition

P
re

s
id

e
n
t

5
.7 

P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a

r)
4
/2

0
2
1

5
.8 T

elep
h

o
n

e N
u

m
b

er
8

4
7

-4
8

0
-1

7
1

6
5
.9 E

-m
ail A

d
dress

c
a
rlo

s
@

fru
m

.c
o

m
5
.1

0
 H

o
m

e A
d

dress
3
2
1
1
 G

le
n

b
ro

o
k
 D

riv
e

5
.11

 C
ity

N
o

rth
b

ro
o

k
5

.1
2
 S

tate
IL

5
.13

 Z
ip

 C
ode

6
0

0
6

2

17+—0

Page 98 of 125

mailto:carlos@frum.com


n
s
e
c
o

n
a
 m

e
m

o
e
ri---------—

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

5.5 N
am

e
M

a
rc

 L
o

n
o

ff
5.6 T

ru
stee P

o
sition

O
th

e
r

5.7 P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a
r)

4
/2

0
1
9

5.8 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-5

6
4
-2

3
1

3
5.9 E

-m
ail A

d
dress

lo
n

o
ffm

@
g

m
a
il.c

o
m

5.10 H
o

m
e A

d
d

ress
9
0
0

 A
p

p
le

tre
e
 C

o
u

rt
5.11 C

ity
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

5.12 S
tate

IL
5

.1
3 Z

ip
 C

ode
6
0
0
6
2

5.5 N
am

e
A

b
b

y
 Y

o
u

n
g

5.6 T
ru

stee P
osition

S
e
c
re

ta
ry

5.7 P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a
r)

4
/2

0
2
1

5.8 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

7
7

3
-7

9
1
-8

6
7

9
5.9 E

-m
ail A

d
dress

a
m

y
o

u
n

g
0
1
@

g
m

a
il.c

o
m

5
.1

0 H
o

m
e A

d
dress

2
2
3
9
 C

ra
b

tre
e
 L

an
e

5.11 C
ity

N
o

rth
b

ro
o

k
5

.1
2 S

tate
IL

5.13 Z
ip C

ode
.-i" 

—
6

0
0

6
2

5.5 N
am

e
M

iria
m

 Im
re

m
 

,,.
5.6 T

ru
stee

 P
o

sition
T

re
a

s
u

re
r

5.7 P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a
r)

4
/2

0
1
9

5.8 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-5

6
4
-3

4
7

5
5.9 E

-m
ail A

d
dress

m
irfa

ith
@

a
o

l.c
o

m
5.10 H

o
m

e A
d

d
ress

4
1

5
3
 R

id
g

e
la

n
d
 L

a
n

e
5.11 C

ity
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

5
.12

 S
tate

IL
5.13 Z

ip
 C

ode
6

0
0

6
2

F
ifth

 m
e
m

b
e
r

5.5 N
am

e
H

o
w

a
rd

 J
a

y
 G

la
u

b
in

g
e

r
5

.6
 T

ru
stee P

o
sition

V
ic

e
-P

re
s
id

e
n

t

5.7 P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a
r)

4
/2

0
1
9

5.8 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

8
4

7
-4

8
0

-0
4
9
4

5.9 E
-m

ail A
d

d
ress

ja
y
g

la
u

b
in

g
e
r@

g
m

a
il.c

o
m

5.10 H
o

m
e A

d
d

ress
2

6
3

0
 C

h
e

rry
 L

a
n

e
5.11 C

ity
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

5.12 S
tate

IL
5

.1
3 Z

ip
 C

ode
6

0
0

6
2

Page 99 of 125

mailto:lonoffm@gmail.com
mailto:amyoung01@gmail.com
mailto:mirfaith@aol.com
mailto:jayglaubinger@gmail.com


-jS
ixth

 m
em

berh

5.5 N
am

e
J

a
m

i X
u

5
.6
 T

ru
stee P

osition
O

th
e

r

5.7 P
resen

t T
erm

 E
nds (m

m
/y

e
a
r)

4
/2

0
2
1

5
.8
 T

elep
h

o
n

e N
u

m
b

er
8
4
7
-2

7
5
-9

3
3
7

5
.9
 E

-m
ail A

d
d

ress
ja

m
ix

u
@

g
m

a
il.c

o
m

5
.1

0
 H

o
m

e A
d

d
ress

1
6

2
5
 B

rig
h

to
n
 C

t
5

.1
1 C

ity
N

o
rth

b
ro

o
k

5
.1

2
 S

tate
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip C
ode

6
0

0
6

2

S
even

th
 m

em
b

er

5
.5
 N

am
e

S
h

a
ro

n
 B

e
rg

s
te

in
5

.6
 T

ru
stee P

o
sition

O
th

e
r

5
.7
 P

resen
t T

erm
 E

nds (m
m

/y
e
a
r)

4
/2

0
1
9

5
.8
 T

elep
h

o
n

e N
u

m
b

er
8

4
7

-4
8

0
-2

2
7

9
5

.9
 E

-m
ail A

d
d

ress
s

h
a

rib
e

rg
ie

@
g

m
a

il.c
o

m
5
.1

0
 H

o
m

e A
ddress

1
9

1
0
 B

irch
 R

o
a
d

5
.1

1 C
ity

N
o

rth
b

ro
o

k
5
.1

2
 S

tate
IL

5
.1

3
 Z

ip C
ode

6
0

0
6

2

E
ig

h
th m

em
b

er

5
.5
 N

am
e

-----------------r*-----*-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

5
.6
 T

ru
stee P

o
sition

5
.7
 P

resen
t T

erm
 E

nds (m
m

/y
e
a
r)

5
.8

 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

5
.9
 E

-m
ail A

d
d

ress
5

.1
0
 H

o
m

e A
d

d
ress

5
.11

 C
ity

5
.1

2
 S

tate
5
.1

3
 Z

ip C
ode

N
in

th
 m

em
b

er

5
.5
 N

am
e

5
.6

 T
ru

stee P
o

sition
5

.7
 P

resen
t T

erm
 E

nds (m
m

/y
e
a
r)

5
.8

 T
elep

h
o

n
e N

u
m

b
er

5
.9
 E

-m
ail A

d
d

ress
5

.1
0
 H

o
m

e A
d

d
ress

5
.1

1
 C

ity
5
.1

2
 S

tate
5
.1

3
 Z

ip C
ode

Page 100 of 125

mailto:jamixu@gmail.com
mailto:sharibergie@gmail.com


F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

/F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 (6

.1
-6

.4
)

P
lease p

ro
vid

e th
e req

uested
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 ab

o
u

t th
e lib

rary's facilities.

6.1a T
o

tal sq
u

are fo
o

tag
e o

f th
e m

ain
 lib

rary b
u

ild
in

g
 [P

LS
C
 7

1
1]

8
7
,2

2
3

6.1b
 If th

e m
ain

 lib
rary's sq

u
are fo

o
tag

e h
as ch

an
g

ed
, th

en
 e

n
ter th

e
 u

p
d

ated
 a

n
s

w
e

r h
ere.

6.1c In
d

ic
a

te
 th

e reaso
n fo

r th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

/v
a

ria
n

c
e in sq

u
are fo

o
tag

e fo
r th

is an
n

u
al re

p
o

rt as
 

co
m

p
ared

 to
 th

e p
revio

u
s an

n
u

al rep
o

rt.
6.2a D

oes th
e lib

rary ad
d

ress th
e en

viro
n

m
en

tal n
eed

s o
f p

atro
n

s o
n th

e
 au

tism
 sp

ectru
m

?
Y

e
s

6.2b
 If so, p

lease d
escribe

C
le

a
r d

ire
c

tio
n
 s

ig
n

a
g

e
; p

ro
v

id
e
 e

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t w
ith

 lo
w

e
rin

g
 

lig
h

tin
g
 a

n
d
 le

s
s s

tim
u

lu
s

6.3a T
o

tal N
u

m
b

er o
f M

eetin
g
 R

oom
s

4
6.3b

 T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f tim

es m
eetin

g
 ro

o
m

(s) used b
y th

e p
u

blic d
u

rin
g
 th

e
 fiscal y

e
a
r

3
1

4
6.4a T

o
tal N

u
m

b
er o

f S
tu

d
y R

oom
s

5
6.4b

 T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f tim

es stu
d

y ro
o

m
(s

) used b
y th

e p
u

blic d
u

rin
g
 th

e
 fiscal year

5
,7

4
1

C
apital N

eeds A
ssessm

ent^

P
ublic A

ct 9
6

-0
0

3
7

, th
e P

ublic L
ib

rary C
o

n
stru

ctio
n
 A

ct, req
u

ires th
e
 Illin

o
is S

ecretary o
f S

tate to
 file a co

m
p

reh
en

sive assessm
en

t 
rep

o
rt o

f th
e cap

ital n
eed

s o
f all Illin

o
is p

u
b

lic lib
raries to

 th
e
 G

en
eral A

ssem
b

ly every tw
o

 years. In
 an

 e
ffo

rt to
 co

m
p

ile th
is d

ata, p
lease

 

fill in th
e req

u
ested

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
 b

elo
w

. If you
 h

ave an
y q

u
estio

n
s ab

o
u

t th
is sectio

n
, p

lease co
n

tact M
ark S

h
affer (2

1
7

-5
2

4
-4

9
0

1
 o

r 
m

sh
affer@

ilso
s.n

et) a
t th

e
 Illin

o
is S

tate L
ib

rary.

A
ge o

f F
acility!-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------—

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

P
lease in

d
icate th

e n
u

m
b

er o
f b

u
ild

in
g

s in each
 categ

o
ry b

elo
w

.

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

|5 years o
r less

¡6-10.years 
lll-2

5
 years

2
6

-5
0
 years

. 
¡5

1
-10

0
 years

1
0

0
+
 years

N
u
m

b
e
r o

f F
a

c
ilitie

s
¡
i
r
 

' 
r
 

T
yp

e o
f W

o
rk N

eed
ed

P
lease p

ro
vid

e estim
ates o

f th
e
 costs fo

r th
e
 typ

e o
f w

o
rk n

eed
ed

. If you
 do n

o
t h

ave b
ran

ch lo
catio

n
s, th

e "O
th

er F
acilities" co

lu
m

ns
 

should be p
re-p

o
p

u
lated

 w
ith

 zero
s. If n

o
t, p

lease e
n

ter zero
s to

 co
m

p
lete th

e sectio
n

.

H
ead

q
u

arters - N
u

m
b

er o
f

H
ead

q
u

arters -
O

th
er F

acilities - N
u

m
b

er o
f

O
th

er F
acilities -

B
uild

in
gs

E
stim

ate $
B

u
ild

in
g

s
E

stim
ate $

G
e

n
e

ra
l re

p
a
ir/re

m
o
d
e
lin

g
1

................................... . 
 

. 
$4,072,000

0
$0

S
tru

c
tu

ra
l re

p
a
irs

 (w
a
lls

, fo
u

n
d
a

tio
n

s
, e

tc
.)

1
$1,325,000

0
$o

R
o
o
f re

p
a
ir/re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

1 
 

......
$630,000

0
$0

H
e
a
tin

g
/v

e
n
tila

tio
n
/a

ir c
o

n
d

itio
n

in
g

1
$220,000

0
$0

E
le

c
tric

a
l s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

th
e

r th
a

n
 a

la
rm

s
0

$0
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s

1
$3,000

0
$0

E
g

re
s
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 (d

o
o

rs
, s

ta
irs

, e
tc

.)
0

$0
F

ire
 p

ro
te

c
tio

n
 (d

e
te

c
to

rs
, a

la
rm

s
, e

tc
.)

1
$35,000

0
$0

A
s
b
e
s
to

s
 a

b
a
te

m
e
n
t

0
$0

S
e

c
u

rity
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s

$150,000
0

$0
E

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
0

$0
R

e
p
a
ir o

f s
id

e
w

a
lk

s
, c

u
rb

in
g
, p

a
rk

in
g
 a

re
a

s
1

$45,000
0

$0
A

c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
0

$0
T

e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 u

p
g
ra

d
in

g
1

$380,000
0

$0
N

e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g

 c
o

n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 (c

o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 o

f a
$0

0
$0

Page 101 of 125

mailto:mshaffer@ilsos.net


n
e

w
 fa

c
ility

)
---------------------------------------------

---
---------

--------------------------

B
u

ild
in

g
 a

d
d
itio

n
s
 (a

d
d

in
g
 s

q
u
a
re

 fe
e
t to

 

e
x
is

tin
g

 fa
c
ility

)
$
0

0
$

0

T
yp

e o
f W

o
rk in P

ro
g

ress------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

P
lease p

ro
vid

e estim
ates o

f th
e costs fo

r th
e typ

e o
f w

o
rk cu

rren
tly in p

ro
g

ress. If yo
u
 d

o n
o

t h
ave b

ranch
 lo

catio
n

s, th
e "O

th
er

 

F
acilities" co

lu
m

n
s sh

ou
ld be p

re-p
o

p
u

lated
 w

ith
 zero

s. If n
o

t, p
lease e

n
ter zero

s to
 co

m
p

lete th
e sectio

n
.

H
ead

q
u

arters - N
u

m
b

er o
f 

B
uild

in
gs

H
ead

q
u

arters - 
E

stim
ate $

O
th

er F
acilities - N

u
m

b
er o

f 
B

uild
in

gs
O

th
er F

acilities - 
E

stim
ate $

G
e

n
e

ra
l re

p
a

ir/re
m

o
d

e
lin

g
1

$441,700
0

$0
S

tru
c
tu

ra
l re

p
a

irs
 (w

a
lls

, fo
u
n
d
a
tio

n
s
, e

tc
.)

1
$24,066

0
$0

R
o
o
f re

p
a
ir/re

p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t

0
$0

H
e
a
tin

g
/v

e
n
tila

tio
n
/a

ir c
o

n
d

itio
n
in

g
0

$0
E

le
c
tric

a
l s

y
s
te

m
s
 o

th
e

r th
a

n
 a

la
rm

s
0

$0
P

lu
m

b
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s

0
$0

E
g

re
s
s
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 (d

o
o
rs

, s
ta

irs
, e

tc
.)

0
$o

F
ire

 p
ro

te
c
tio

n
 (d

e
te

c
to

rs
, a

la
rm

s
, e

tc
.)

0
$0

A
s
b

e
s
to

s
 a

b
a
te

m
e
n
t

0
$0

S
e

c
u
rity

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s

0
$0

E
n
e
rg

y
 c

o
n
s
e
rv

a
tio

n
0

R
e
p
a
ir o

f s
id

e
w

a
lk

s
, c

u
rb

in
g
, p

a
rk

in
g

 a
re

a
s

1
$212,398

0
$0

A
c
c
e
s
s
ib

ility
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s

0
$0

T
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 u

p
g
ra

d
in

g
0

$0
N

e
w

 b
u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 (c

o
n
s
tru

c
tio

n
 o

f a

n
e
w

 fa
c
ility

)
0

$0
B

u
ild

in
g
 a

d
d
itio

n
s
 (a

d
d
in

g
 s

q
u
a
re

 fe
e
t to

 

e
x
is

tin
g

 fa
c
ility

)
0

$0

A
S

S
E

TS
 A

N
D
 L

IA
B

IL
IT

IE
S
 (7

.1
 - 7

.1
3

)-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

T
h

e b
elo

w
 section

s req
u

est in
fo

rm
atio

n
 reg

ard
in

g
 p

ro
p

erty, fiscal accu
m

u
latio

n
s an

d
 o

u
tstan

d
in

g
 liab

ilities. T
h

ese sectio
n

s are req
u

ired
 

by statu
te

 [ [7
5
 IL

C
S
 5

/4
-1

0
, 75 IL

C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
] to

 b
e in

clu
d

ed
 in th

e
 an

n
u

al rep
o

rt. P
lease p

ro
vid

e th
e
 req

u
ested

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
 in each

 
sectio

n
.

P
ro

p
e
rty

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

L
ib

raries are req
u

ired
 by statu

te [7
5
 IL

C
S

 5
/4

-1
0
(4

), 7
5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
(a

)(3
)] to

 p
ro

vid
e a statem

en
t as to

 p
ro

p
erty acq

u
ired

 th
ro

u
g

h
 

leg
acy, p

u
rchase, g

ift o
r o

th
erw

ise. P
lease p

ro
vid

e th
is in

fo
rm

atio
n
 in th

e sectio
n b

elo
w

.

7
.1 W

h
at is th

e estim
ated

 cu
rren

t fa
ir m

a
rke

t valu
e fo

r th
e
 lib

rary's real e
s
tate (la

n
d
 an

d
 

b
u

ild
in

g
s in

clu
d

in
g
 g

arag
es, sh

ed
s, e

tc.)?
 1

$
3

5
,7

6
8
,0

0
0

7
.2 D

u
rin

g
 th

e last fiscal year, did th
e
 lib

rary acq
u

ire a
n

y real a
n

d
/o

r p
erso

n
al p

ro
p

erty?
N

o

IF
 Y

E
S

, h
o

w
 m

uch o
f th

e p
ro

p
erty w

as acq
u

ired
 th

ro
u

g
h
 th

e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
 o

p
tio

n
s?

 (E
n

ter d
o

llar am
o

u
n

t fo
r each o

p
tio

n
 7

.3
-7

.6
 th

a
t ap

p
lies) —

7
.3
 P

u
rchase

7
.4
 Legacy

7.5 G
ift

7.6 O
th

er
7.7 P

ro
vid

e a g
en

eral d
escrip

tio
n
 o

f th
e p

ro
p

erty acq
u

ired
.

Page 102 of 125



Page 103 of 125



If you are n
o

t su
re if fu

n
d

s you received
 th

ro
u

g
h
 th

e S
tate o

f Illin
o

is are fed
eral o

f state fu
n

d
s, p

lease co
n

tact P
at B

urg (2
1
7
-7

8
5
-1

1
6
8
, 

p
b

u
rg

@
ilso

s.n
et).

8
.2  P

er cap
ita g

ran
t

$
4
1
,4

6
3

8
.3
 E

q
u

alizatio
n
 aid

 g
ran

t
$0

8
.4
 P

erso
n

al p
ro

p
erty rep

lacem
en

t ta
x

$
1
2
1
,3

8
9

8
.5
 O

th
er S

tate G
o

vern
m

en
t fu

n
d

s received
$0

8
.6
 If O

th
er, p

lease sp
ecify

8.7 T
o

tal S
tate G

o
vern

m
en

t F
u

nd
s (8

.2
 +

 8
.3

 +
 8

.4
 +

 8
.5

) [P
LS

C
 3

0
1

]
$
1
6
2
,8

5
2

This in
clud

es all fed«
 

d
istrib

u
ted

 by th
e S

t

If you are u
n

su
re if 

1168, pburg@
ilsos.n

iral g
o

vern
m

en
t fu

n
d

s d
istrib

u
ted

 to
 p

u
b

lic lib
raries fo

r exp
en

d
itu

re b
y th

e
 p

u
b

lic lib
raries, in

clu
d

in
g
 fed

eral m
o

n
ey

 
ate o

f Illin
o

is (e
.g

., LS
TA

 g
ran

ts p
aid d

irectly to
 yo

u
r lib

ra
ry

).

the fu
n

d
s you received

 th
ro

u
g

h
 th

e S
tate o

f Illin
o

is
 w

e
re

 fed
eral o

r s
ta

te fu
n

d
s, p

lease co
n

tact P
at B

urg (2
1
7
-7

8
5
- 

e
t).

8
.8 LS

TA
 fu

n
d

s received
$0

8.9 E
-R

ate fu
n

d
s received

$0
8

.1
0 O

th
er fed

eral fu
n

d
s received

$0
8

.1
1 If O

th
er, p

lease sp
ecify

|
^8.12 T

o
tal F

ed
eral G

o
vern

m
en

t Funds (8
.8

 +
 8

.9
 +

 8
.1

0
) [P

LS
C

 3
0

2
]

$0 
I

This is all ope
 

d
o

n
atio

n
s rec

 

o
r g

ran
ts. D

o

ratin
g
 reven

u
e o

th
e

r th
an

 th
a

t rep
o

rted
 u

n
d

er lo
cal, state, an

d
 fed

eral fu
n

d
s. In

c
lu

d
e

, fo
r exam

p
le, m

o
n

etary g
ifts an

d
 

eived in th
e cu

rren
t year, in

terest, lib
rary fin

es, fees fo
r lib

rary services,
n

o
t  in

clud
e th

e valu
e o

f an
y co

n
trib

u
ted

 o
r in

-kin
d
 services o

r th
e valu

e o
f an

y n
o

n
-m

o
n

etary g
ifts an

d
 d

o
n

atio
n

s.

8
.13

 M
o

n
etary G

ifts an
d
 D

o
natio

n
s

$0
8

.1
4
 O

th
er receip

ts in
ten

d
ed

 to
 be used fo

r o
p

eratin
g
 exp

en
d

itu
res

$
2

5
4
,2

9
3

8
.15

 TO
TA

L all o
th

e
r receip

ts (8
.1

3
 +

 8
.1

4
) [P

LS
C

 3
0

3
]

$
2

5
4
,2

9
3

8
.16

 O
th

er n
o

n
-cap

ital receip
ts p

laced in reserve fu
n

d
s

$0
T

o
tal O

p
eratin

g
 R

ece

[8.17 TO
TA

L receip
ts ( 8

.1 +
 8

.7
 + 8

.1
2
 +

 8
.1

5
) [P

LS
C

 3
0

4
] 

$
8
,1

6
7
,9

0
8

H
S

afegu
ardin

g o
f Libr.

This section
 req

u
est! 

IL
C

S
 5

/4
-9

 an
d 75 II 

lib
rary's certificate o

For m
u

n
icip

alities o
f 

received b
y th

e lib
ra

 

am
o

u
n

t a
t least equc

For p
ub

lic lib
rary dis

 

by th
e d

istrict in th
e

 

am
o

u
n

t a
t least equc > in

fo
rm

atio
n
 to

 verify th
a
t lib

raries m
e
e
t th

e statu
to

ry req
u

ired
 m

in
im

u
m

 level o
f in

su
ran

ce fo
r lib

rary fu
n

d
s [7

5
 

-C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-4

5
(e

)]. A
cco

rd
in

g
 to

 th
ese statu

tes, "th
e lib

rary sh
all p

ro
vid

e th
e Illin

o
is S

tate L
ib

rary a co
p

y o
f th

e
 

f in
su

ran
ce a

t th
e tim

e
 th

e lib
rary's an

n
u

al rep
o

rt is filed
."

less th
an

 5
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
latio

n
, 7

5
 IL

C
S
 5

/4
-9

 req
u

ires th
a
t th

e bond be "...n
o

t less th
an

 5
0

%
 o

f th
e
 to

ta
l fu

n
d

s
 

ry in th
e last fiscal y

e
a
r...," o

r th
e in

su
ran

ce p
o

licy o
r o

th
er in

su
ran

ce in
stru

m
en

t's co
verag

e "...sh
all be in an

 

il to
 5

0
%

 o
f th

e
 averag

e am
o

u
n

t o
f th

e
 lib

rary's o
p

eratin
g
 fu

n
d
 fro

m
 th

e p
rio

r 3 fiscal years."

tricts, 75 IL
C

S
 1

6
/3

0
-4

5
(e

) req
u

ires th
a
t th

e bond b
e "...b

ased
 upon a m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 5

0
%

 o
f th

e
 to

ta
l fu

n
d

s received
 

last p
revio

us fiscal y
e
a
r...," o

r th
e
 in

su
ran

ce p
o

licy o
r o

th
er in

su
ran

ce in
stru

m
en

t's co
verag

e "... sh
all be in an

 

il to
 5

0
%

 o
f th

e
 averag

e am
o

u
n

t o
f th

e
 d

istrict's o
p

eratin
g
 fu

n
d
 fro

m
 th

e
 p

rio
r 3 fiscal years."

Page 104 of 125

mailto:pburg@ilsos.net


8
.1

8
a T

h
e lib

rary safeg
u

ard
s its fu

n
d

s u
sin

g w
h

ich
 o

p
tio

n
?

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

o
lic

y
/In

s
tru

m
e
n
t

8
.1

8b
 P

ro
o

f o
f C

ertificate o
f In

su
ran

ce fo
r L

ib
rary Funds

C
O

I.pdf
8

.1
9 W

h
at is th

e co
verag

e am
o

u
n

t o
f e

ith
e

r th
e su

rety b
o

n
d O

R
 th

e in
su

ran
ce p

o
licy/in

su
ran

ce
 

in
stru

m
en

t?
$

4
,2

0
0

,0
0

0

8
.2

0
 Is

 th
e
 am

o
u

n
t o

f th
e su

rety b
o

n
d

, in
su

ran
ce p

o
licy o

r o
th

e
r in

su
ran

ce in
stru

m
en

t in
 

co
m

p
lian

ce w
ith

 lib
rary law

?
Y

e
s

8
.2

1 T
h

e d
esig

n
ated

 cu
sto

d
ian

 of th
e lib

rary's fu
n

d
s is:

L
ib

ra
ry

 T
re

a
s
u
re

r

O
P

E
R

A
TIN

G
 E

X
P

E
N

D
ITU

R
E

S
 B

Y C
A

TE
G

O
R

Y

p
ro

vid
e an

 item
ized

 s
ta

te
m

e
n

t as to
 h

o
w

 o
p

eratin
g

 

en
d

itu
res" are th

e cu
rren

t an
d recu

rren
t costs

axing ag
en

cies (g
o

vern
m

en
t ag

en
cies w

ith
 th

e
 

is availab
le to

 th
e rep

o
rtin

g
 ag

en
cy. O

n
ly such fu

n
d

s
 

reco
rd

s, e
tc

.) a
t th

e p
o

in
t o

f d
isb

u
rsem

en
t sh

o
u

ld
 be

itu
res.

L
ibraries are req

u
ired

 by statu
te [7

5
 IL

C
S
 5

/4
-1

0
(2

), 7
5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
(a

)(6
)] to

 

reven
u

es h
ave been exp

en
d

ed
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 fiscal year rep

o
rt p

erio
d

. "O
p

eratin
g
 exp

 

n
ecessary to

 su
p

p
o

rt th
e p

ro
visio

n o
f lib

rary services.

In
clu

d
e: S

ig
n

ifican
t costs, esp

ecially b
en

efits an
d salaries, th

a
t are paid by o

th
e

r t 
au

th
o

rity to
 levy ta

x
) "on b

eh
alf o

f" th
e lib

rary m
ay be in

clud
ed

 if th
e
 in

fo
rm

atio
n

 

th
a

t are su
p

p
o

rted
 by exp

en
d

itu
re d

o
cu

m
en

ts (su
ch

 as in
vo

ices, co
n

tracts, p
ayro

ll 
in

clud
ed

.

E
xclude: D

o n
ot rep

o
rt th

e
 valu

e o
f fre

e item
s, estim

ated
 co

sts, an
d
 cap

ital exp
en

d

N
O

TE
: R

ound an
sw

ers to
 th

e n
earest w

h
o

le d
o

llar.

T
h

is section
 g

athers, in
fo

rm
atio

n
 o

n s
ta

ff b
en

efits an
d salaries. If th

e
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 is availab

le, in
clu

d
e b

en
efits an

d salaries fo
r s

ta
ff th

a
t 

are paid by o
th

er taxin
g

 -agencies (g
o

vern
m

en
t ag

en
cies w

ith
 th

e au
th

o
rity to

 levy ta
x

) "o
n b

eh
alf o

f" th
e lib

rary. 
- 

• 
v

v 4 ； • v, ► 
* 

/ 
. *•* 

/fi«'
N

O
TE

: R
ound an

sw
ers to

 th
e n

earest w
h

o
le d

o
llar.

9.1 S
alaries an

d
 w

ag
es fo

r all lib
rary s

ta
ff [P

LS
C

 3
5

0
]

$
3

,6
4

5
,0

2
7

9
.2

a F
ring

e b
en

efits, fo
r all lib

rary s
ta

ff, p
aid

 fo
r fro

m
 e

ith
e

r th
e lib

rary
's o

r th
e m

u
n

icip
al 

co
rp

o
rate au

th
o

rity's ap
p

ro
p

riatio
n
 [P

LS
C
 3

5
1

]
$

1
,2

1
6

,5
0

5

9
.2b

 If th
is lib

rary an
sw

ered
 q

u
estio

n
 9

.2
a
 as zero

, p
lease select an

 exp
lan

atio
n
 fro

m
 th

e d
ro

p


d
o

w
n
 box.

9.3 T
o

tal S
ta

ff E
xp

en
d

itu
res (9

.1
 +

 9
.2

) [P
LS

C
 3

5
2

]
$
4
,8

6
1
,5

3
2

C
O

LLE
C

TIO
N
 E

X
P

E
N

D
ITU

R
E

S
 (1

0
.1

 - 1
0
.4

)

In
clu

d
e exp

en
d

itu
res fo

r all m
aterials in al 

ch
arg

es o
r fees fo

r in
terlib

rary lo
an

s an
d
 e

N
O

TE
: R

ound an
sw

ers to
 th

e n
earest w

h
o

l

1 fo
rm

ats (e
.g

., p
rin

t, m
icro

fo
rm

, electro
n

ic) w
h

e
th

e
r p

u
rch

ased
, leased

 o
r licen

sed
. E

xclu
de

 

xp
en

d
itu

res fo
r d

o
cu

m
en

t d
elivery.

e d
o

llar.

10.1 P
rin

ted
 M

aterials (b
o

o
ks, n

ew
sp

ap
ers, e

tc
.) [P

LS
C

 3
5

3
]

$
4

0
3

,0
9

9
1

0
.2 E

lectro
n

ic M
aterials (e-b

o
o

ks, d
atab

ases, e
tc

.) [P
LS

C
 3

5
4

]
$

3
1

1
,8

4
0

10.3a O
th

er M
aterials (C

D
s, D

V
D

s, vid
eo

 g
am

es, e
tc

.) [P
LS

C
 3

5
5

]
$

1
4

4
,8

0
8

10.3b
 P

lease p
ro

vid
e an

 exp
lan

atio
n
 o

f th
e
 o

th
e
r typ

es o
f m

a
te

ria
l exp

en
d

itu
res.

audio visual item
s (audio books, video gam

es, m
usic) 8t 

D
V

D
/B

lu-ray
1

0
.4
 TO

TA
L C

o
llectio

n
 E

xp
en

d
itu

res (1
0
.1

 +
 1

0
.2

 +
 1

0
.3

) [P
LS

C
 3

5
6

]
$

8
5

9
,7

4
7

Page 105 of 125



O
TH

E
R

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IN
G

 E
X

P
E

N
D

ITU
R

E
S
 (1

1
.1

 - 1
1
.2

)

T
h

is in
clud

es all exp
en

d
itu

res o
th

e
r th

an
 th

o
se rep

o
rted

 fo
r S

taff E
xp

en
d

itu
res an

d
 C

o
llectio

n
 E

xp
en

d
itu

res. 
E

xclude p
u

rchases o
f m

ajo
r fixed

 assets, w
h

ich
 sh

ou
ld be rep

o
rted

 in cap
ital exp

en
d

itu
res (1

2
.7

).

N
O

TE
: R

ound an
sw

ers to
 th

e n
earest w

h
o

le d
o

llar.

11.1 A
ll o

th
er o

p
eratin

g
 exp

en
d

itu
res n

o
t in

clu
d

ed
 ab

o
ve (su

p
p

lies, u
tilitie

s
, leg

al fees, etc.) 
[P

LS
C

 3
5

7
]

$2,300,655
11.2 TO

TA
L o

p
eratin

g
 exp

en
d

itu
res (9

.3
 +

 1
0

.4
 +

 1
1

.1
) [P

LS
C

 3
5

8
]

$8,021,934

C
A

P
ITA

L R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

N
D
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S
 (1

2
.1

 - 1
2

.7
)

This section g
ath

ers in
fo

rm
atio

n
 o

n cap
ital reven

u
e an

d exp
en

d
itu

res. P
ro

vid
e in

fo
rm

atio
n

 fo
r fu

n
d

s received
 an

d
 sp

en
t d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 fiscal 

year rep
o

rt p
erio

d o
n

ly. If th
e lib

rary w
as aw

ard
ed

 a g
ra

n
t, b

u
t o

n
ly received

 p
a
rt o

f th
e fu

n
d

s d
u

rin
g
 th

e
 rep

o
rt p

erio
d

, rep
o

rt o
n

ly th
e

 
am

o
u

n
t o

f th
e fu

n
d

s received
, n

o
t th

e
 e

n
tire

 g
ran

t aw
ard

.

C
apital R

even
ue

In
clu

d
e fu

n
d

s received
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 fiscal y

e
a

r rep
o

rt p
erio

d fo
r: site acq

u
isitio

n
s; n

ew
 b

u
ild

in
g

(s); ad
d

itio
n

s to
 o

r ren
o

vatio
n

s o
f existin

g
 

b
u

ildin
g

s; fu
rn

ish
in

g
s, eq

u
ip

m
en

t, an
d
 in

itial co
llectio

n
s fo

r n
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g
s, b

u
ild

in
g
 ad

d
itio

n
s, o

r b
u

ild
in

g
 ren

o
vatio

n
s; co

m
p

u
ter 

h
ard

w
are an

d so
ftw

are used to
 su

p
p

o
rt lib

rary o
p

eratio
n

s, to
 lin

k to
 n

etw
o

rks, o
r to

 ru
n
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 p

ro
du

cts; n
ew

 veh
icles; o

r o
th

e
r
 

o
n

e-tim
e m

ajo
r p

ro
jects.

E
xclude reven

u
e fo

r: rep
lacem

en
t a

n
d

/o
r rep

air o
f existin

g
 fu

rn
ish

in
g

s an
d
 eq

u
ip

m
en

t, reg
u

lar p
u

rch
ase o

f lib
rary m

aterials, 
in

vestm
en

ts fo
r cap

ital ap
p

reciatio
n

, in
co

m
e passed th

ro
u

g
h
 to

 an
o

th
er ag

en
cy (e

.g
., fin

e
s

), an
d fu

n
d

s u
n

sp
en

t in p
revio

u
s fiscal year

 
(e.g

., carryo
ver).

N
O

TE
: R

ound an
sw

ers to
 th

e n
earest w

h
o

le d
o

llar.

12.1a Local G
o

vern
m

en
t: C

ap
ital In

co
m

e fro
m

 B
ond S

ales
$
0

12.1b
 Local G

o
vern

m
en

t: O
th

er
$
0

12.1c T
o

tal Local G
o

vern
m

en
t (1

2
.1

a
 +

 1
2
.1

b
) [P

LS
C

 4
0

0
]

$
0

12.2 S
tate G

o
vern

m
en

t [P
LS

C
 4

0
1

]
$
0

12.3 F
ed

eral G
o

vern
m

en
t [P

LS
C

 4
0

2
]

$
0

1
2

.4 O
th

er C
ap

ital R
even

u
e [P

LS
C

 4
0

3
]

$
0

12.5 If O
th

er, p
lease sp

ecify
12.6 T

o
tal C

ap
ital R

even
u

e (1
2
.1

c
 +

 1
2

.2
 +

 1
2
.3

 +
 1

2
.4

) [P
LS

C
 4

0
4

]
$
0

C
apital E

xp
en

d
itu

res

In
clu

d
e fu

n
d

s exp
en

d
ed

 d
u

rin
g
 th

e fiscal year rep
o

rt p
erio

d
 fo

r: site acq
u

isitio
n

s; n
e

w
 b

u
ild

in
g

(s); ad
d

itio
n

s to
 o

r ren
o

vatio
n

s o
f existin

g
 

b
u

ild
ing

s; fu
rn

ish
in

g
s, eq

u
ip

m
en

t, an
d
 in

itial co
llectio

n
s fo

r n
ew

 b
u

ild
in

g
s, b

u
ild

in
g
 ad

d
itio

n
s, o

r b
u

ild
in

g ren
o

vatio
n

s; co
m

p
u

ter 
h

ard
w

are an
d so

ftw
are used to

 su
p

p
o

rt lib
rary o

p
eratio

n
s, to

 lin
k to

 n
etw

o
rks, o

r to
 ru

n
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 p

ro
d

u
cts; n

ew
 veh

icles; o
r o

th
er

 
o

n
e-tim

e m
ajo

r p
ro

jects.

E
xclude exp

en
d

itu
res fo

r: rep
lacem

en
t a

n
d

/o
r rep

air o
f existin

g
 fu

rn
ish

in
g

s an
d eq

u
ip

m
en

t, reg
u

lar p
u

rch
ase o

f lib
rary m

aterials, 
in

vestm
en

ts fo
r cap

ital ap
p

reciatio
n

, in
co

m
e passed th

ro
u

g
h
 to

 an
o

th
er ag

en
cy (e

.g
., fin

es
), an

d
 fu

n
d

s u
n

sp
en

t in p
revio

u
s fiscal year

 
(e

.g
., carryo

ver).

N
O

TE
: R

ound an
sw

ers to
 th

e n
earest w

h
o

le d
o

llar.

12.7 T
o

tal C
ap

ital E
xp

en
d

itu
res [P

LS
C

 4
0

5
]

$540,034

Page 106 of 125



P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L (1
3

.1
 - 1

3
.4

6
)------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

In
clu

d
e all p

osition
s fu

n
d

ed
 in th

e lib
rary's b

u
d

g
et w

h
e

th
e

r th
o

se p
o

sitio
n

s are filled
 o

r n
o

t. R
ep

o
rt p

o
sitio

n
 fig

u
res as o

f th
e
 last d

ay o
f 

th
e fiscal year. In

clu
d

e o
n

ly p
aid

 em
p

lo
yees. D

o N
O

T in
clu

d
e vo

lu
n

teers.

R
ep

o
rt p

erson
nel in th

e ap
p

ro
p

riate categ
o

ries b
ased

 on th
e typ

e o
f lib

rary w
o

rk b
ein

g p
erfo

rm
ed

 ra
th

e
r th

an
 on an

 em
p

lo
yee's

 

ed
u

catio
n

al q
u

alificatio
n

s.

T
h

e FTE (fu
ll-tim

e
 e

q
u

iv
a
le

n
t/e

m
p

lo
y
e
e
) calcu

lato
r u

tilizes th
e IM

L
S

/P
L

S
C

 n
atio

n
al stan

d
ard

 fo
r a fu

ll-tim
e
 w

o
rk w

eek as 4
0
 h

o
u

rs p
er 

w
eek. Illin

o
is lib

raries sh
o

uld rep
o

rt each s
ta

ff m
em

b
er's h

ou
rs p

er w
e
e
k
 based on th

e n
u

m
b

er o
f h

o
u

rs w
o

rked
. If yo

u
r lib

rary
 

co
n

sid
ers 3

5
-3

9
+
 h

ou
rs p

er w
e
e
k
 as a fu

ll-tim
e
 w

o
rk w

eek, th
en

 rep
o

rt u
sing th

o
se fig

u
res. D

O
 N

O
T in

flate th
e h

ou
rs yo

u
r lib

rary
 

co
n

sid
ers as a fu

ll-tim
e w

o
rk w

eek in o
rd

er to
 fo

rce th
e resu

ltin
g
 calcu

latio
n
 to

 eq
u

al 1 FTE
. F

or n
atio

n
al co

m
p

ariso
n
 p

urp
oses, yo

u
r
 

lib
rary m

u
st rep

o
rt th

e to
tal h

ou
rs p

er w
eek b

ased o
n yo

u
r local stan

d
ard

. For exam
p

le, fo
r an

 Illin
o

is
 lib

rary th
a
t co

n
sid

ers 3
7

.5
 h

ou
rs

 

p
er w

eek as a fu
ll-tim

e w
o

rk w
eek, th

e FTE calcu
latio

n
 rep

o
rted

 n
atio

n
ally w

ill be .9
3
7
5
 o

r .9
4
 ra

th
e

r th
an

 1.00.

r G
roup A

 —

T
h

is categ
o

ry in
clu

des all L
IB

R
A

R
IA

N
S

 w
ith

 M
A

S
TE

R
'S

 D
E

G
R

E
E

S
 fro

m
 an

 A
m

erican
 L

ib
rary A

sso
ciatio

n
 (A

L
A

) A
C

C
R

E
D

ITE
D
 p

ro
g

ram
 o

f 
L

ib
rary an

d In
fo

rm
atio

n
 S

tu
d

ies. A
n

o
th

er ro
w

 w
ill au

to
m

atically ap
p

ear o
n

ce d
ata is en

tered
 in th

e
 cu

rren
t ro

w
.

Sum
m

ary
3

6
3

6
3
1
,1

9
0
.6

2
1

.0
7

9
.0

0

jl3
.1
 

P
o

sitio
n T

itle
1

3
.2
 P

rim
ary W

o
rk A

rea
1

3
.3 H

o
u

rly R
ate

13.4 T
o

tal H
o

u
rs

/W
e
e
k

C
ataloging

C
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
$25.18

35.00
Fiction &

 M
edia

A
d

u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$28.74
35.00

C
hildren's S

ervices
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$30.63
35.00

R
eference

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

$29.54
35.00

R
eference M

anager
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

$38.80
35.00 

. 
. 
.
.
o
í
s
*

Fiction &
 M

edia 
：

~'}C -
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$26.60
10.00

A
ssistant Library D

irector
A

s
s
is

ta
n
t L

ib
ra

ry
 D

ire
c
to

r
$45.95

35.00
Fiction &

 M
edia

A
d

u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$24.43
35.00

Fiction &
 M

edia M
anager

A
d

u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$38.89
35.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$30.32
35.00

R
eference

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

$39.87
35.00

C
hildren's S

ervices
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$40.10
10.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$31.05
21.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$34.29
8.00

C
hildren's S

ervice M
anager

C
h
ild

re
n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$44.87
35.00

C
hildren’s S

ervices
C

h
ild

re
n

's
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$26.25
35.00

R
eference

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

$27.41
35.00

R
eference

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

$26.36
3.00

{Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$37.37
35.00

¡R
eference

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

$35.45
35.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$27.12
35.00

C
ataloging

C
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
$39.87

35.00
Library D

irector
L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ire

c
to

r
$71.43

35.00
C

hildren's S
ervices

C
h

ild
re

n
's

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

$25.19
35.00

C
hildren's S

ervices
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$35.45
11.00

¡R
eference

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

$25.24
28.00

Page 107 of 125



D
igital S

ervics M
anager

A
u

to
m

a
tio

n
/T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
/S

y
s
te

m
s

$38.00
35.00

C
irculation M

anager
C

irc
u
la

tio
n

$34.35
35.00

C
ataloging

C
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
$26.25

35.00
Fiction &

 M
edia

A
d

u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$26.81
28.00

C
hildren's Services

C
h
ild

re
n
V

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$27.61
15.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u
lt S

e
rv

ic
e
s

$26.00
35.00

R
eference

R
e
fe

re
n
c
e

$26.03
35.00

C
hildren's S

ervices
C

h
ild

re
n
V

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
$30.45

35.00
Technical Services M

anager
C

a
ta

lo
g
in

g
$38.40

35.00
D

igital Services
A

u
to

m
a
tio

n
/T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
/S

y
s
te

m
s

$30.32
35.00

13.5 T
o

tal G
ro

u
p A

: FTE A
LA

-M
LS

 (1
3
.4

 / 4
0

) [P
LS

C
 2

5
0

]
26.98

iG
ro

up A
 h

id
den g

ro
u

p
 hours

-jG
ro

up B

T
h

is categ
o

ry in
clud

es o
th

er lib
rarian

s. In
clu

d
e em

p
lo

yees w
ith

 th
e

 T
IT

L
E
 o

f L
IB

R
A

R
IA

N
 w

h
o

 e
ith

er h
ave o

th
e
r typ

es o
f lib

rary ed
u

catio
n

 

(n
o

n
-A

m
erican

 L
ib

rary A
sso

ciation (A
L

A
) accred

ited
 lib

rary d
eg

rees; u
n

d
erg

rad
u

ate lib
rary science m

ajo
rs o

r m
in

o
rs) O

R
 d

o p
aid w

o
rk

 

th
a

t u
su

ally req
uires p

ro
fessio

n
al train

in
g
 an

d skill in th
e
 th

eo
retical o

r scien
tific asp

ects o
f lib

rary w
o

rk
, o

r b
o

th
, as d

istin
ct fro

m
 its

 

m
ech

an
ical o

r clerical asp
ects. A

n
o

th
er ro

w
 w

ill au
to

m
atically ap

p
ear o

n
ce d

ata is en
tered

 in th
e
 cu

rren
t ro

w
.

Sum
m

ary
7

7
7
 

$
1
4
1
.8

2
1
6
8
.0

0

13.6 
P

o
sitio

n T
itle

1
3

.7 
P

rim
ary W

o
rk A

rea
1
3
.8
 E

d
ucatio

n L
evel 

13.9 
H

o
u

rly R
ate

1
3

.1
0
 T

o
tal H

o
u

rs
/W

e
e

k
C

hildren's Services
C

h
ild

re
n

V
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

M
a

s
te

r’s
 D

e
g

re
e

: N
o
t in

 lib
ra

ry
 s

c
ie

n
c
e

$16.95
20.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a

c
h

e
lo

r's
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e
 

' i . 
.

$18.46
20.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
h
e
lo

r's
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

$21.66
10.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
h
e
lo

r’s
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

$21.01
35.00

C
ataloging

C
a
ta

lo
g
in

g
B

a
c
h
e
lo

r's
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

$24.09
35.00

Fiction &
 M

edia
A

d
u

lt S
e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a

c
h

e
lo

r’s
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

$23.05
35.00

C
hildren's Services

C
h
ild

re
n
V

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

B
a
c
h
e
lo

r's
 D

e
g
re

e
: N

o
 lib

ra
ry

 s
c
ie

n
c
e

$16.60
13.00

G
roup B T

o
tal

1
3

.1
1 T

o
tal G

ro
up B

: FTE O
th

er L
ib

rarian
s (1

3
.1

0
/4

0
)

4
.2

0
1

3
.1

2 T
o

tal FTE L
ib

rarian
s (1

3
.5

 +
 1

3
.1

1
] [P

LS
C
 2

5
1

]
3
1
.1

8

G
roup C

T
h

is categ
o

ry in
clud

es fu
ll-tim

e
 an

d
 p

a
rt-tim

e
 p

ro
fessio

n
al s

ta
ff w

ith
o

u
t th

e
 title

 o
f lib

rarian
 an

d ad
m

in
istrative su

p
p

o
rt sp

ecialists
 

(p
erso

n
n

el d
irecto

r, business m
an

ag
er, p

u
b

lic relatio
n

s, o
th

e
r n

o
n

-lib
rary sp

ecialists), in
fo

rm
atio

n
 tech

n
o

lo
g

y p
ro

fessio
n

als (IT
 d

irecto
r, 

w
eb

m
aster) an

d o
th

er tech
n

ical an
d
 clerical em

p
lo

yees.

1
3
.1

3 T
o

tal h
o

u
rs w

o
rked

 in a typ
ical w

e
e

k b
y all G

ro
u

p
 C

 em
p

lo
yees

1
,1

6
7

.0
0

1
3

.1
4 M

in
im

u
m

 h
o

u
rly rate actu

ally p
aid

$
1
4
.2

5
1

3
.1

5 M
axim

u
m

 h
o

u
rly ra

te actu
ally p

aid
$
5
3
.1

1
1
3
.1

6 T
o

tal FTE G
rou

p
 C

 em
p

lo
yees (1

3
.1

3
 / 4

0
)

2
9
.1

8

G
roup D

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
--------------------------------------------------

Page 108 of 125



This categ
o

ry in
clud

es fu
ll-tim

e
 an

d
 p

a
rt-tim

e
 p

ag
es o

r sh
elvers.

1
3
.1

7 T
o

tal h
o

u
rs w

o
rked

 in a typ
ical w

e
e

k by all G
ro

u
p
 D

 em
p

lo
yees

1
8
2
.0

0
1
3
.1

8 M
in

im
u

m
 h

o
u

rly ra
te actu

ally p
aid

$
9

.8
8

13.19 
M

axim
u

m
 h

o
u

rly ra
te actu

ally p
aid

$
1
3
.9

9
13.20 T

o
tal FTE G

rou
p D

 em
p

lo
yees (1

3
.1

7
 / 4

0
)

4
.5

5

G
roup E

..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

This categ
o

ry in
clud

es fu
ll-tim

e an
d
 p

a
rt-tim

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 m

ain
ten

an
ce, secu

rity o
r p

lan
t o

p
eratio

n
 em

p
lo

yees.

13.21 T
o

tal h
o

u
rs w

o
rked

 in a typ
ical w

e
e

k b
y all G

ro
u

p
 E em

p
lo

yees
1
3
2
.0

0
1
3
.2

2 M
in

im
u

m
 h

o
u

rly ra
te actu

ally p
aid

$
1
9
.6

8
1
3
.2

3 M
axim

u
m

 h
o

u
rly ra

te actu
ally p

aid
$
3
9
.8

7
1

3
.2

4 T
o

tal FTE G
ro

up E em
p

lo
yees (1

3
.2

1
 / 4

0
)

3
.3

0
1
3
.2

5 T
o

tal FTE O
th

er P
aid E

m
p

loyees fro
m

 G
ro

up
s C

, D
, an

d
 E (1

3
.1

6
 +

 1
3

.2
0 +

 1
3
.2

4
) [P

LS
C

 
2

5
2]

3
7
.0

3

1
3
.2

6 T
o

tal FTE P
aid E

m
p

loyees (1
3

.1
2
 +

 1
3

.2
5

) [P
LS

C
 2

5
3

]
6
8
.2

1

L
ib

rarian
 V

acan
cies

In
clu

d
e o

n
ly th

o
se b

u
d

g
eted

 lib
rarian

 p
o

sitio
n

s vacan
t on th

e
 last d

ay o
f th

is fiscal year fo
r w

h
ich

 th
e

re w
as an

 active search
 w

h
ile th

e
 

p
osition

 rem
ain

ed
 vacan

t. A
n

o
th

er ro
w

 w
ill au

to
m

atically ap
p

ear o
n

ce d
ata is en

tered
 in th

e cu
rren

t ro
w

.

Sum
m

ary

13.27 P
o

sitio
n

 

T
itle

13.28 P
rim

ary W
o

rk
 

A
rea 

"s'W
eé^

r
1

3
.2

9
 

E
d

ucatio
n Level

1
3

.3
0
 T

o
tal 

H
o

u
rs

/W
e
e
k

1
3
.3

1 
N

u
m

b
er 

o
f W

eeks
 

V
acan

t d
u

rin
g

 

rep
o

rt p
erio

d
.

1
3
.3

2
 A

n
n

u
al 

S
alary R

an
ge

 

M
in

im
u

m

13.33 A
n

n
u

al 
S

alary R
an

g
e

 

M
axim

u
m

N
ew

ly C
reated L

ib
rarian

 P
o

sitio
n

s

In
clu

d
e an

y n
ew

ly created
 lib

rarian
 p

o
sition

s w
h

ich
 w

e
re

 created
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 fiscal y

e
a

r rep
o

rtin
g
 p

erio
d

. A
n

o
th

er ro
w

 w
ill au

to
m

atically
 

ap
p

ear once d
ata is en

tered
 in th

e cu
rren

t ro
w

.

Sum
m

ary

1
3

.3
4
 P

o
sitio

n
 

T
itle

13.35 
P

rim
ary W

o
rk

 
A

rea
1

3
.3

6
 

E
d

ucatio
n Level

1
3

.3
7
 T

o
tal 

H
o

u
rs

/W
e

e
k

1
3
.3

8
 C

u
rren

t 
S

tatu
s: F

illed o
r 

U
n

filled

1
3

.3
9
 

D
ate Filled

 

(m
m

/y
e
a
r, if 

ap
p

licab
le)

E
lim

in
ated

 L
ib

rarian
 P

ositions

A
n elim

in
ated

 lib
rarian

 p
o

sitio
n
 is o

n
e th

a
t w

as b
u

d
g

eted
 fo

r d
u

rin
g
 th

e
 p

revio
u

s fiscal year p
erio

d b
u

t w
as n

o
t in th

e
 b

u
d

g
et fo

r th
e

 

cu
rren

t rep
o

rt p
erio

d
. A

n
o

th
er ro

w
 w

ill au
to

m
atically ap

p
ear o

n
ce d

ata is en
tered

 in th
e
 cu

rren
t ro

w
.

Sum
m

ary
i

13.40 P
o

sitio
n

 

T
itle

13.41 
P

rim
ary W

o
rk

 

A
rea

1
3
.4

2
 E

d
ucatio

n Level
1

3
.4

3
 T

o
tal 

H
o

u
rs

/W
e

e
k

1
3

.4
4
 

D
ate

E
lim

in
ated

(m
m

/y
e
a
r)

1
3

.4
5
 

Last 
A

n
n

u
al

S
alary P

aid

13.46 
R

eason
 

E
lim

in
ated

Page 109 of 125



■tsf»

S
E

R
V

IC
E
 H

O
U

R
S

/L
IB

R
A

R
Y

 V
IS

IT
S
 (1

4
.1

 - 1
4

.3
)-------------------------------------------------------------U

se an actu
al an

n
u

al co
u

n
t, if availab

le; o
th

erw
ise, 

w
eeks o

p
en

.

m
sive h

o
u

rs clo
sed to

 th
e p

ub
lic d

u
e to

 n
atu

ral

T
h

is sectio
n co

llects in
fo

rm
atio

n
 o

n th
e n

u
m

b
er o

f lib
rary service h

ou
rs an

d visits, 
calcu

late an
 estim

ate based on a typ
ical w

eek an
d th

en
 m

u
ltip

ly by th
e n

u
m

b
er o

f

M
in

o
r variatio

n
s in actu

al p
ub

lic service h
o

u
rs n

eed
 n

o
t be in

clu
d

ed
; h

o
w

ever, extc
 

d
isasters o

r o
th

er critical even
ts sh

o
uld be exclu

d
ed

 fro
m

 th
e an

n
u

al calcu
latio

n
.

14.1a T
o

tal p
u

b
lic service h

o
u

rs P
E

R
 Y

E
A

R
 fo

r th
e
 M

A
IN

/C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 [P

L
S

C
 7

1
3

]
3
,5

8
8

14.1b
 T

o
tal p

u
blic service h

o
urs P

E
R

 Y
E

A
R

 fo
r all B

R
A

N
C

H
 L

IB
R

A
R

IE
S
 &

 B
O

O
K

M
O

B
ILE

S
0

14.1c T
o

tal sch
ed

uled p
u

b
lic service h

o
u

rs P
E

R
 Y

E
A

R
 fo

r A
LL S

E
R

V
IC

E
 O

U
TLE

TS
 (1

4
.1

a
 +

 1
4

.1
b

) 
[P

LS
C
 5

0
0

]
3

,5
8

8

1
4

.2
 T

o
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f w
eeks, d

u
rin

g th
e fiscal year, th

e
 M

A
IN

/C
E

N
T

R
A

L
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 w

as o
p

en
 fo

r 
service to

 th
e
 p

u
b

lic [P
LS

C
 7

1
4

]
5

2

14.3 T
o

tal an
n

u
al v

is
its

/atten
d

a
n

c
e in th

e
 lib

rary [P
LS

C
 5

0
1

]
3
6
5
,0

7
7

r
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

S
 &

 A
TTE

N
D

A
N

C
E
 (1

5
.1

 - 1
5

.1
7

)-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

P
ro

g
ram

s:
A
 p

ro
g

ram
 is an

y p
lann

ed
 even

t w
h

ich
 in

tro
d

u
ces th

e
 g

ro
u

p
 atten

d
in

g
 to

 an
y o

f th
e b

ro
ad

 ran
g

e o
f lib

rary services o
r activities o

r w
h

ich
 

d
irectly p

rovid
es in

fo
rm

atio
n
 to

 p
articip

an
ts. P

ro
g

ram
s m

ay co
ver u

se o
f th

e
 lib

rary, lib
rary services, o

r lib
rary to

u
rs. P

ro
g

ram
s m

ay also
 

p
ro

vid
e cu

ltu
ral, recreatio

n
al, o

r ed
u

catio
n

al in
fo

rm
atio

n
, o

ften
 d

esig
n

ed
 to

 m
eet a sp

ecific so
cial n

eed
. E

xam
p

les o
f th

ese typ
es o

f 
p

ro
g

ram
s in

clud
e film

 sh
o

w
ing

s; lectu
res; sto

ry h
o

u
rs; literacy, E

nglish as a seco
nd lan

g
u

ag
e, citizen

sh
ip

 classes; an
d
 b

o
ok d

iscussio
ns.

C
o

u
n

t all p
ro

g
ram

s, w
h

eth
er h

eld o
n

- o
r o

ff-site, th
a

t are sp
o

nso
red o

r co
-sp

o
n

so
red

 by th
e
 lib

rary. E
xclu

de p
ro

g
ram

s
sp

on
sored

 by o
th

er g
ro

up
s th

a
t u

se lib
rary facilities. If p

ro
g

ram
s are o

ffered
 as a series, co

u
n

t each p
ro

g
ram

 in th
e
 series. For exam

p
le,

a film
 series o

ffered
 once a w

eek fo
r eig

h
t w

eeks sh
o

u
ld

 b
e co

u
n

ted
 as eig

h
t p

ro
g

ram
s.

N
o

te: E
xclude lib

rary activities d
elivered

 on a o
n

e-to
-o

n
e basis, ra

th
e

r th
an

 to
 a g

ro
u

p
, such as o

n
e-to

-o
n

e literacy
 

tu
to

rin
g

, services to
 h

o
m

eb
o

u
n

d
, resu

m
e w

ritin
g
 assistan

ce, h
o

m
ew

o
rk assistan

ce, an
d
 m

en
to

rin
g
 activities.

P
assive P

rogram
s:

A
 p

assive p
ro

g
ram

 is an
y p

lan
n

ed
 even

t fo
r w

h
ich

 th
e
 p

atro
n
 can p

articip
ate on th

e
ir o

w
n
 (in

stead
 o

f a
t a d

esig
n

ated
 tim

e
 w

ith
 a g

ro
u

p
). 

R
eg

istratio
n
 is n

ot req
u

ired
. A

 s
ta

ff m
em

b
er m

ay m
o

n
ito

r th
e
 activity, b

u
t m

ay o
r m

ay n
o

t d
irectly in

teract w
ith

 th
e p

articip
an

ts. 
E

xam
p

les o
f th

ese typ
es o

f even
ts in

clu
d

e d
ro

p
-in

 craft sessio
n

s, lib
rary scaven

g
er h

u
n

ts (w
h

e
n
 n

o
t d

o
n

e as p
art o

f a g
ro

u
p

), etc.

C
o

un
t all p

assive p
ro

g
ram

s, w
h

e
th

e
r h

eld o
n

- o
r o

ff-site, th
a
t are sp

o
nso

red o
r co

-sp
o

n
so

red
 by th

e lib
rary. E

xclu
de p

ro
g

ram
s sp

o
n

so
red

 

by o
th

er g
ro

u
ps th

a
t u

se lib
rary facilities. If p

ro
g

ram
s are o

ffered
 as a series, co

u
n

t each
 p

ro
g

ram
 in th

e
 series.

15.1 
P

ro
g

ram
s

15.2 A
tten

d
an

ce
1
5
.3
 

P
assive

 

P
ro

g
ram

s
1

5
.4 P

assive P
ro

g
ram

 

A
tten

d
an

ce
C

hildren's
554

15,065
352

3,300
Young A

dult
68

2,100
1

48
O

ther
21,005

332,473
363

3,823
Total

1,627
49,638

716
7,171

15.17a 
D

id th
e lib

rary p
ro

vid
e an

y sp
ecial p

ro
g

ram
m

in
g
 fo

r p
atro

n
s on

 

th
e au

tism
 sp

ectru
m

?
Y

e
s

15.17b
 

P
lease d

escrib
e th

e p
ro

g
ram

m
in

g
 p

ro
vid

ed
.

w
e offered accessibility hours, sensory m

ovies, m
usic &

 story tim
e program

s for 
children w

ith autism

Page 110 of 125



R
E

G
IS

TE
R

E
D

 U
S

E
R

S
 (1

6
.1

 - 1
6

.4
)-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

This section
 co

llects in
fo

rm
atio

n
 ab

o
u

t th
e n

u
m

b
er o

f resid
en

t an
d
 n

o
n

-resid
en

t lib
rary u

sers. A
 reg

istered
 u

ser is a lib
rary u

ser w
h

o
 has

 

ap
p

lied fo
r an

d received
 an id

en
tificatio

n
 n

u
m

b
er o

r card fro
m

 th
e
 p

u
b

lic lib
rary th

a
t h

as estab
lish

ed
 co

n
d

itio
n

s u
n

d
er w

h
ich

 th
e u

ser 
m

ay b
o

rro
w

 lib
rary m

aterials an
d g

ain
 access to

 o
th

er lib
rary reso

u
rces.

N
o

te: Files sh
o

uld h
ave been p

u
rg

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e p

ast th
ree (3

) years.

16.1 T
o

tal N
u

m
b

er o
f U

n
exp

ired
 R

esid
en

t U
sers C

ards
2
2
,7

1
5

16.2a T
o

tal N
u

m
b

er o
f U

n
exp

ired
 N

o
n

-resid
en

t U
sers C

ards
3
1
0

16.2b
 W

h
a
t w

as th
e to

ta
l am

o
u

n
t o

f th
e

 fe
es

 co
llected

 fro
m

 th
e sale o

f n
o

n
-re

s
id

e
n

t u
ser's cards

 

d
u

rin
g
 th

e p
ast fiscal year?

$
1

1
,2

1
3
.0

0

16.3 T
o

tal N
u

m
b

er o
f R

eg
istered U

sers (1
6

.1
 +

 1
6
.2

a
) [P

LS
C
 5

0
3]

2
3
,0

2
5

16.4 Is
 yo

u
r lib

rary's reg
istered

 u
s
e
r/p

a
tro

n
 file

 p
u

rg
ed

 a m
in

im
u

m
 o

f o
n

e tim
e
 every th

ree
 

years?
Y

e
s

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S O
W

N
E

D
 (1

7
.1

 - 1
7

.9
)

L
ibraries are req

u
ired

 by statu
te [7

5
 IL

C
S
 5

/4
-1

0
(3

), 7
5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
(a

)(6
)] to

 p
ro

vid
e a statem

en
t as to

 th
e n

u
m

b
er and

 ch
aracter o

f 
item

s in th
e
 lib

rary's co
llectio

n availab
le

 fo
r u

se as o
f th

e last d
ay o

f th
e

 fiscal year rep
o

rt p
erio

d
.

This section
 o

f th
e su

rvey co
llects d

ata on selected
 typ

es o
f m

aterials. It d
o

es n
o

t co
ver all m

aterials (i.e
., m

icro
fo

rm
s, loose sh

eet 
m

usic, m
ap

s, and p
ictu

res) fo
r w

h
ich

 exp
en

d
itu

res are rep
o

rted
 u

n
d

er P
rin

t M
aterials E

xp
en

d
itu

res, E
lectro

n
ic M

aterials E
xp

en
d

itu
res, 

and O
th

er M
aterial E

xp
en

d
itu

res. U
n

d
er th

is categ
o

ry rep
o

rt o
n

ly item
s th

e
 lib

rary h
as acq

u
ired

 as p
art o

f th
e co

llectio
n
 an

d catalo
g

ed
, 

w
h

eth
er p

urch
ased, lease, licen

sed
, o

r d
o

n
ated

 as g
ifts th

a
t h

ave b
een

 p
u

rch
ased

, leased
 o

r licensed
 by th

e lib
rary, a co

n
so

rtiu
m

, th
e

 

state lib
rary, a d

o
n

o
r o

r o
th

er p
erson

 o
r e

n
tity

. In
clu

d
ed

 item
s m

u
st o

n
ly be accessib

le w
ith

 a valid
 lib

rary card
 o

r a
t a p

h
ysical lib

rary
 

lo
cation

; in
c
lu

s
io

n
^
 th

e catalo
g is n

o
t req

u
ired

. D
o n

o
t in

clu
d

e item
s'freely availab

le w
ith

o
u

t m
o

n
etary exch

an
g

e. D
o n

o
t in

clu
d

e item
s

 

th
a

t are p
erm

an
en

tly retain
ed

 by th
e
 p

atro
n

; co
u

n
t o

n
ly item

s thatch ave a set circu
latio

n
 p

erio
d
 w

h
ere it is availab

le fo
r th

e
ir u

se. C
o

u
n

t 
electro

n
ic m

aterials a
t th

e ad
m

in
istrative e

n
tity

 level; do n
o

t d
u

p
licate n

u
m

b
ers a

t each
 b

ran
ch

. 
-

For g
u

id
an

ce in co
u

n
tin

g
 electro

n
ic m

aterials, p
lease referen

ce th
e
 fo

llo
w

in
g
 g

u
id

e: C
o

u
n

tin
g E

lectro
n

ic M
aterials fo

r th
e
 IP

L
A

R

17.1 P
rin

t M
aterials [P

LS
C

 4
5

0
]

2
1
9
,2

0
9

17.2 C
u

rren
t P

rin
t S

erial S
u

b
scrip

tion
s [P

L
S

C
 4

6
0

]
4

3
7

17.3 T
o

tal P
rin

t M
aterials (1

7
.1

+
1
7
.2

)
2
1
9
,6

4
6

17.4 E
-b

oo
ks H

eld a
t en

d
 o

f th
e

 fiscal y
e
a
r [P

L
S

C
 4

5
1

]
6
1
,5

4
0

17.5a A
u

d
io R

ecord
in

g
s: P

hysical U
n

its H
eld

 a
t en

d
 o

f th
e

 fiscal year [P
L

S
C

 4
5

2
]

2
7
,0

0
7

17.5b
 A

u
d

io R
eco

rd
in

g
s: D

o
w

n
lo

ad
ab

le U
n

its H
eld

 a
t en

d
 o

f th
e fiscal y

e
a
r [P

LS
C

 4
5

3
]

3
0
,6

7
4

17.6a D
V

D
s/V

id
eo

s: P
h

ysical U
n

its H
eld

 a
t en

d
 o

f th
e
 fiscal y

e
a
r [P

LS
C

 4
5

4
]

2
4
,6

1
4

17.6b
 D

V
D

s/V
id

eo
s: D

o
w

n
lo

ad
ab

le U
n

its H
eld

 a
t en

d
 o

f th
e

 fiscal y
e
a
r [P

L
S

C
 4

5
5

] 4

E
lectro

nic C
o

llectio
n

s------—
—

----------------------------------—
—

----------------—
—

------------------------------

5
,2

8
7

R
ep

o
rt th

e
 n

u
m

b
er o

f electro
n

ic co
llectio

n
s. A

n electro
n

ic co
llectio

n
 is a co

llectio
n
 o

f electro
n

ically sto
red

 d
ata o

r u
n

it reco
rds (facts, 

b
ib

lio
g

rap
h

ic d
ata, ab

stracts, texts, p
h

o
to

g
rap

h
s, m

u
sic, vid

eo
, e

tc
.) w

ith
 a co

m
m

o
n
 u

ser in
terface an

d so
ftw

are fo
r th

e retrieval an
d
 use

 

o
f th

e d
ata. A

n electro
n

ic co
llectio

n
 m

ay b
e o

rg
an

ized
, cu

rated
 an

d
 electro

n
ically sh

ared
 b

y th
e
 lib

rary, o
r rig

h
ts m

ay be p
ro

vid
ed

 b
y a

 

th
ird

 p
arty ven

d
o

r. A
n electro

n
ic co

llectio
n
 m

ay be fu
n

d
ed

 by th
e
 lib

rary, o
r p

ro
vid

ed
 th

ro
u

g
h
 co

o
p

erative ag
reem

en
t w

ith
 o

th
er

 

lib
raries, o

r th
ro

u
g

h
 th

e S
tate L

ib
rary. D

o n
o

t in
clu

d
e electro

n
ic co

llectio
n

s th
a

t are p
ro

vid
ed

 by th
ird

 p
arties an

d freely lin
ked

 to
 o

n th
e

 
w

eb
.

E
lectro

nic C
ollectio

ns do n
o

t h
ave a circu

latio
n
 p

erio
d

, an
d m

ay b
e retain

ed
 by th

e
 p

atro
n

. R
em

o
te access to

 th
e
 co

llectio
n m

ay o
r m

ay

Page 111 of 125



h
ttn

s
7

/il m
im

tin
n
n
n
in

in
n
r. m

m
/n

ire
s
n
o
rts

/n
in

rin
t 

n
d

f n
h

n
9

n
i 

rn
llp

rtin
n
 

irta
1

1
3

?
&

v
¡e

w
 

Is
 

id
=

Q
1
S

7
&

v
ip

w
 
b
ra

n
c
h
 

¡d
=

0
&

n
ia

rin
d
 

id
=

9
n
iP

&
s
u
h
n
p
rio

d
 

id
=

0
&

v
ie

»
w
 
n

s
fir 

id
=

0
&

v
ifiw

 
d
s
 

id
^

Page 112 of 125



N
O

TE
: It is essen

tial th
a

t lib
raries d

o n
o

t in
clu

d
e d

irectio
n

al tran
sactio

n
s in th

e rep
o

rt o
f referen

ce tran
sactio

n
s. D

irectio
n

al tran
sactio

n
s

 

in
clu

d
e g

ivin
g
 in

stru
ctio

n
 fo

r lo
catin

g
 staff, lib

rary u
sers, o

r p
h

ysical featu
res w

ith
in

 th
e lib

rary. E
xam

p
les o

f d
irectio

n
al tran

sactio
n

s
 

in
clu

d
e, "W

h
ere is th

e referen
ce lib

rarian
?
 W

h
ere is S

u
san S

m
ith

?
 W

h
ere is th

e rest ro
om

?
 W

h
ere are th

e
 600s?

 C
an yo

u h
elp

 m
e m

ake a
 

p
ho

to
cop

y?"

If an an
n

u
al co

u
n

t is n
ot availab

le, th
en

 select a typ
ical w

e
e
k
 an

d
 m

u
ltip

ly by 5
2
 to

 estim
ate th

e
 an

n
u

al co
u

n
t.

(1
9
.1
 T

o
tal A

n
n

u
al R

eferen
ce T

ran
sactio

n
s [P

LS
C

 5
0

2
]

9
8
,2

0
5

O
n

e-o
n

-o
n

e tu
to

rials are w
h

en
 a s

ta
ff m

em
b

er sp
en

d
s a co

n
sid

erab
le am

o
u

n
t o

f tim
e
 tu

to
rin

g
 o

r teach
in

g
 a p

atro
n
 on a sp

ecific su
b

ject. 
N

o
te th

a
t th

ese are d
ifferen

t fro
m

 p
ro

g
ram

s, w
h

ich
 a

re p
u

t on fo
r a g

ro
u

p
, an

d
 referen

ce tran
sactio

n
s, w

h
ich

 are lim
ited

 to
 in

fo
rm

atio
n

 
co

n
su

ltatio
n

s (see d
efin

itio
n
 ab

o
ve).

1
9

.2 T
o

tal A
n

n
u

al O
n

e-o
n

-O
n

e T
u

to
rials 

¡8
0
5

-A
U

T
O

M
A

T
IO

N
 (2

0
.1

 - 2
0
.5

)

T
h

is section
 is co

llectin
g in1Form

ation ab
o

u
t au

to
m

atio
n
 tech

n
o

lo
g

y in yo
u

r lib
rary. P

lease p
ro

vid
e th

e req
u

ested
 in

fo
rm

atio
n
 b

elo
w

.

2
0

.1
 T

o
tal n

u
m

b
er o

f A
LL co

m
p

u
ters in th

e
 lib

rary
2

0
2

2
0
.2

 T
o

tal n
u

m
b

er o
f P

U
B

LIC
 U

SE (In
te

rn
e

t an
d
 n

o
n

-In
te

rn
e
t accessib

le) co
m

p
u

ters in th
e

 

lib
ra

ry)
8
2

2
0

.3
 Is

 yo
u

r lib
rary's catalo

g
 au

to
m

ated
?

Y
e
s

2
0

.4
 Is

 yo
u

r lib
rary's catalo

g
 accessib

le via th
e w

eb
?

Y
e
s

2
0

.5 D
o

es yo
u

r lib
rary h

ave a teleco
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s m

essag
in

g
 d

evice fo
r th

e
 h

earin
g
 im

p
aired

?
Y

e
s
 

-.

T
h

is sectio
n co

llects in
fo

rm
atio

n
 ab

o
u

t in
tern

et services in th
e lib

rary facility. P
lease p

ro
vid

e th
e req

u
ested

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
 b

elo
w

.

2
1

.1 
D

o
es yo

u
r lib

rary h
ave In

te
rn

e
t access?

Y
e
s

2
1

.2
a W

h
at is th

e m
axim

u
m

 sp
eed

 o
f yo

u
r lib

rary's In
te

rn
e

t co
n

n
ectio

n
?
 (S

ele
c

t o
n

e)
O

th
e

r (s
p

e
c
ify

)

2
1

.2
b
 If O

th
er, p

lease sp
ecify

5
0

0
 M

b
p

s
2

1
.3 W

h
a
t is th

e
 m

o
n

th
ly co

st o
f th

e
 lib

rary
's in

te
rn

e
t access?

$
2

1
8

2
1
.4
 N

u
m

b
er o

f In
te

rn
e

t C
o

m
p

u
ters A

vailab
le fo

r P
u

blic U
se [P

LS
C
 6

5
0

]
5
2

2
1
.5
 N

u
m

b
er o

f U
ses (S

essio
n

s) o
f P

u
b

lic In
te

rn
e

t C
o

m
p

u
ters P

er Y
e
a
r [P

LS
C

 6
5

1
]

3
0
,6

8
3

2
1
.6
 W

ireless S
essions P

er Y
ear [P

L
S

C
 6

5
2

] 6
1
6
4
,5

0
9

2
1
.7
 D

o
es yo

u
r lib

rary u
tilize In

te
rn

e
t filte

rs
 o

n so
m

e o
r a

ll o
f th

e
 p

u
b

lic access co
m

p
u

ters?
N

o

2
1
.8
 D

o
es yo

u
r lib

rary p
ro

vid
e in

stru
ctio

n
 (w

o
rksh

o
p

s, classes) to
 p

atro
n

s o
n

 th
e
 u

se o
f th

e
 

In
te

rn
e

t?
Y

e
s

2
1

.9 N
u

m
b

er o
f w

eb
site visits o

r sessio
n

s to
 yo

u
r lib

rary w
eb

site [P
LS

C
 6

5
3

]
6
9
1
,3

9
8

Page 113 of 125



E
-R

A
TE

 (2
2

.1
 - 2

2
.3

)|—
 

-----—
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

E
-R

ate is th
e co

m
m

o
n

ly used n
am

e fo
r th

e S
chools an

d
 L

ib
raries P

ro
g

ram
 o

f th
e U

n
iversal S

ervice Fund, w
h

ich
 is ad

m
in

istered
 by th

e
 

U
niversal S

ervice A
d

m
in

istrative C
o

m
p

any (U
S

A
C

) u
n

d
er th

e
 d

irectio
n
 o

f th
e
 F

ed
eral C

o
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s C

om
m

issio
n (F

C
C

). T
h

e p
ro

g
ram

 

p
rovid

es d
iscou

n
ts to

 assist schools an
d lib

raries in th
e U

n
ited

 S
tates to

 o
b

tain
 affo

rd
ab

le teleco
m

m
u

n
icatio

n
s an

d
 In

te
rn

e
t access.

22.1 D
id yo

u
r lib

rary ap
p

ly d
irectly fo

r E
-rate d

isco
u

n
ts fo

r th
e fiscal year?

N
o

2
2
.2

a If Y
E

S
, d

id yo
u

r lib
rary ap

p
ly fo

r C
ateg

o
ry 1, C

ateg
o

ry 2 o
r b

o
th?

22.2b
 IF

 Y
E

S
, w

h
a

t is th
e d

o
llar am

o
u

n
t th

a
t yo

u
r lib

rary w
as aw

ard
ed

 fo
r th

e
 fiscal y

e
a
r rep

o
rt 

period?
22.3 If N

O
, w

h
y d

id yo
u

r lib
rary N

O
T
 p

articip
ate in th

e E
-rate p

ro
g

ram
?

N
egligible benefit

S
TA

FF D
E

V
E

LO
P

M
E

N
T &

 T
R

A
IN

IN
G

 (2
3

.1
 - 2

3
.5

)---------------------»e p
ro

vid
e th

e
 req

u
ested

 in
fo

rm
atio

n
 b

elo
w

.
This section

 fo
cuses on s

ta
ff d

evelo
p

m
en

t an
d
 train

in
g

. P
leas

23.1 
H

o
w

 m
u

ch m
o

n
ey d

id yo
u

r lib
rary sp

en
d o

n s
ta

ff d
evelo

p
m

en
t an

d
 train

in
g
 th

is fiscal year?
 

(R
o

u
n

d
 an

sw
er to

 th
e
 n

earest w
h

o
le d

o
lla

r.)
$62,958

2
3

.2 D
o

es th
e

 ab
o

ve am
o

u
n

t in
clu

d
e tra

ve
l exp

enses?
Y

e
s

23.3 H
o

w
 m

an
y h

o
u

rs o
f train

in
g
 d

id em
p

lo
yees receive th

is year?
2,345.00

2
3

.4 D
o

es yo
u

r lib
rary p

ro
vid

e train
in

g
 to

 en
ab

le s
ta

ff to
 b

e
tte

r serve th
e
ir p

atro
n

s o
n th

e au
tism

 

sp
ectrum

?
Y

e
s

2
3

.5 W
o

uld
 yo

u
 like to

 receive au
tism

 train
in

g
 a

t yo
u

r lib
rary?

Y
e
s

P
lease u

se th
is section to

 p
ro

vid
e fu

rth
e
r in

fo
rm

atio
n
 ab

o
u

t yo
u

r lib
rary a

n
d

/o
r co

m
m

en
ts o

r su
g

g
estio

n
s fo

r ch
an

g
es to

 th
e

 IP
L

A
R

 

process. W
e w

ill u
se th

e co
m

m
en

ts yo
u su

p
p

ly-to
 b

e
tte

r rep
resen

t yo
u

r d
ata to

 th
e P

u
b

lic L
ib

rary S
u

rvey an
d
 to

 h
elp

 im
p

ro
ve fu

tu
re

 
versio

n
s o

f th
e
 IP

L
A

R
.

24.1 A
re th

ere
 an

y o
th

er facto
rs th

a
t m

ay h
ave affected

 yo
u

r lib
rary

's an
n

u
al re

p
o

rt d
ata o

f 
w

h
ich

 yo
u w

o
u

ld
 like to

 m
ake us aw

are?

1 - ILS
 m

igration com
pleted in A

pril 2018 - FY
19 contains

 

data from
 en

tire year on new
 ILS

. 2 - changed how
 w

e
 

tracked data in FY
19 fo

r clearer reporting
2

4
.2 A

re th
ere

 an
y u

n
iq

u
e p

ro
g

ram
s o

r services yo
u

r lib
rary p

ro
vid

ed
 d

u
rin

g
 th

e
 re

p
o

rt p
erio

d
 o

f 
w

h
ich

 yo
u w

o
u

ld
 like to

 m
ake us aw

are?
C

raft B
rew

ing W
eek Illin

o
is B

icentennial C
elebration

O
pened C

ollaboratory in M
ay 2018

2
4

.3 P
lease p

ro
vid

e an
y co

m
m

en
ts, su

g
g

estio
n

s o
r co

n
cern

s ab
o

u
t th

e
 Illin

o
is

 P
u

b
lic L

ib
rary

 

A
n

nu
al R

ep
o

rt (IP
L

A
R

).
W

e w
ould like to see a statew

id
e w

eb
inar discussing data

 

collection and analysis as it relates to th
e IP

LA
R

r
 P

U
B

LIC
 L

IB
R

A
R

Y
 D

IS
T

R
IC

T
 S

E
C

R
E

TA
R

Y
'S

 A
U

D
IT

 (2
5

.1
-2

5
.5

)

P
ublic L

ib
rary D

istricts are req
u

ired
 by s

ta
tu

te [7
5
 IL

C
S
 1

6
/3

0
-6

5
(a

)(l),(c
)(d

)] to
 su

b
m

it th
e
 P

u
b

lic L
ib

rary D
istrict S

ecretary's A
u

d
it.

N
O

TE
: If th

ere A
R

E
 an

y erro
rs o

r d
iscrep

an
cies, p

lease list an
d exp

lain
 fu

lly.

25.1 W
ere th

e secretary's record
s fo

u
n

d
 to

 b
e co

m
p

lete an
d
 accu

rate?
N

ot A
pplicable

2
5

.2
 If N

O
, p

lease list an
d
 exp

lain
 an

y erro
rs o

r d
iscrep

an
cies.

25.3 F
irst b

o
ard

 m
em

b
er co

m
p

letin
g
 th

e
 au

d
it

-1 N
ot A

pplicable
2

5
.4 S

econd b
o

ard m
em

b
er co

m
p

letin
g
 th

e
 a

u
d

it
-1 N

ot A
pplicable

2
5

.5 D
ate th

e
 S

ecretary's A
u

d
it w

as co
m

p
leted

-1 N
ot A

pplicable

Page 114 of 125



IP
L

A
R

 C
E

R
TIF

IC
A

T
IO

N
!-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

P
lease h

ave th
e lib

rary d
irecto

r, b
o

ard
 p

resid
en

t an
d
 b

o
ard

 secretary typ
e th

e
ir n

am
es in th

e
 b

o
xes p

ro
vid

ed
 to

 certify th
a
t th

e
y ag

ree
 

w
ith

 th
e fo

llo
w

in
g
 statem

en
t:

T
h

is Illin
o

is P
ublic L

ib
rary A

n
nu

al R
ep

o
rt (IP

L
A

R
) is b

ein
g
 filed

 in acco
rd

an
ce w

ith
 7

5
 IL

C
S
 5

/4
-1

0
 (m

u
n

icip
al lib

raries) o
r 7

5
 ILC

S
 

1
6

/3
0

-6
5
 (p

u
b

lic lib
rary d

istricts). T
h

e u
n

d
ersig

n
ed

 au
th

o
rized

 ag
en

ts fo
r th

is p
u

b
lic lib

rary: (1
) accep

t and ackn
o

w
led

g
e th

a
t th

e
 

ap
p

en
d

ed
 IP

L
A

R
 is essen

tially accu
rate an

d
 co

rrect; (2
) tran

sm
it th

e
 ap

p
en

d
ed

 IP
L

A
R

 fo
r review

 an
d
 an

y su
b

seq
u

en
t reso

lu
tio

n
; an

d
, 

(3
) ag

ree th
a

t th
e electro

n
ic IP

L
A

R
 co

p
y su

b
m

itted
 to

 th
e
 Illin

o
is S

tate L
ib

rary sh
all serve as th

e o
fficial file co

p
y.

E
lectro

n
ic S

ig
n

atu
re

D
ate

L
ib

ra
ry

 D
ire

c
to

r
K

ate H
all

6
/2

8
/1

9
P

re
s
id

e
n

t
C

arlos M
 Frum

6
/2

8
/1

9
S

e
c
re

ta
ry

A
bby Y

oung
6

/2
8

/1
9

IP
L

A
R

 S
U

B
M

IS
S

IO
N
 R

E
M

IN
D

E
R

S

F
o

llo
w

 th
ese steps fo

r IP
L

A
R

 su
bm

issio
n:

1. S
elect th

e "V
erify" b

u
tto

n
 lo

cated
 a

t th
e to

p
 o

f th
e
 screen

.
2. R

eview
 th

e fo
rm

 an
d reso

lve an
y req

u
ired

 field
s o

r ed
it ch

ecks (th
e
y
 w

ill b
e h

ig
h

lig
h

ted
 in re

d
). In

 th
e
 case o

f e
d

it ch
ecks, exp

lain
 

p
rag

m
atically w

h
y th

is year's an
sw

er is eq
u

al to
, less th

an
, o

r m
o

re th
an

 th
e
 p

revio
u

s year's an
sw

er.
3. S

elect th
e "S

u
b

m
it/L

o
ck" b

u
tto

n
 a

t th
e
 to

p
 o

f th
e p

age.

N
O

TE
: A

ll req
u

ired
 q

uestion
s m

u
st b

e an
sw

ered
 an

d all e
d

it ch
ecks m

u
st co

n
tain

 n
arrative n

o
tes in o

rd
er fo

r th
e
 su

rvey to
 electro

n
ically

 

su
b

m
it, o

th
erw

ise you w
ill be taken

 to
 a review

 screen
 listin

g
 th

e
 q

u
estio

n
s th

a
t req

u
ire ad

d
itio

n
al in

fo
rm

atio
n

. If yo
u h

ave tro
u

b
le

 

g
ettin

g
 th

e fo
rm

 to
 su

b
m

it/lo
ck, p

lease co
n

tact P
at B

urg (2
1

7
-7

8
5

-1
1

6
8

, p
b

u
rg

@
ilso

s.n
et).

1, 7
.1
 

F
Y

1
9
 h

ire
d
 G

a
lla

g
h

e
r B

a
s
s
e

t to
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
 in

v
e
n
to

ry
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 - F

M
V
 is

 b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o

n
 v

a
lu

a
tio

n
 re

s
u

lts
 (0

-2019
-06

-2
8

)

2
, 1

5
.1

7
b
 

F
Y

1
8
 d

a
ta
 in

c
lu

d
e
d
 m

e
e
tin

g
 ro

o
m
 u

s
a

g
e
 in

c
o

rre
c
tly

 (0
-2019

-06
-28

)

3
, 

1
5
.1

7
b
 

F
Y

1
8
 d

a
ta
 in

c
lu

d
e
d
 m

e
e

tin
g
 ro

o
m

 u
s
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 s

tu
d
y
 ro

o
m
 u

s
a
g
e
 in

c
o
rre

c
tly

 (0
-2019

-06-28
)

4
, 

1
7
.6

b
 

F
Y

1
9
 n

u
m

b
e
r in

c
lu

d
e

s
 e

v
id

e
o
s
 fro

m
 H

o
o

p
la
 a

n
d
 K

a
n
o
p
y
 - F

Y
1
8
 n

u
m

b
e

r d
id
 
n
o
t in

c
lu

d
e
 th

o
s
e
 (0

-2019
-06

-2
7

)

5
, 

1
8
.1

3
 

F
Y

1
9
 D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

d
 - R

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 U

S
A

, G
a

le
 a

n
d
 M

o
rn

in
g
s
ta

r (0
-2019

-06
-2

7
)

6
, 2

1
.6
 

F
Y

1
8
 n

u
m

b
e

r is
 n

o
t c

o
rre

c
t - n

u
m

b
e
r s

h
o

u
ld
 b

e
 1

2
7
0
2
8
 (0

-2019
-06

-2
6

)

Page 115 of 125

mailto:pburg@ilsos.net


Page 116 of 125



May 10, 2019 

Executive Summary 

Northbrook Public Library 

This serves as a summary of the investigation of the exterior facade of the Northbrook Public Library (NPL) 

located in Northbrook, Illinois by Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE).  The purpose of the 

investigation was to determine the source(s) of leakage that have been reported by building engineering 

staff and to evaluate the existing exterior coating on the steel elements. The investigation was performed 

between November 2018 and March 2019.  

The NPL is a two-story structure that was originally constructed in multiple phases. The original building 

(north portion) was completed in 1969, and an addition (south portion) was completed circa 1975. The first 

floor is clad primarily with storefront windows and opaque wall areas. The second floor facade is composed 

of a steel-framed window wall system that projects out over the first floor. The building was expanded to 

the east in 1999 with an aluminum and glass window wall system and was not included in our scope of 

work. 

The scope of our investigation included: observing conditions up-close from a personnel lift, reviewing 

original architectural drawings, testing for water leakage at select areas, and evaluating of the existing coating 

at select areas.  Significant observations included:  

1. Corrosion exists at the sill glass stop and frame below at the north and west facades of the original

building.

2. Corrosion on spandrels and steel framing on the west and south facades of the south addition.

3. Cracked and peeling paint exists at areas of corrosion on all facades.

4. Deteriorated glazing sealant at the sill at the majority of locations on all facades and at the joint

between the sill framing and spandrel.

5. Isolated cracked welds.

6. Water leakage testing revealed that leakage is occurring via debonded sealant at the metal to metal

joint between the sill framing and spandrel as well as deteriorated glazing sealant.

7. The coating has exceeded its service life and should be removed and replaced.

Based on our investigation we recommend removal of all existing coatings and preparing the surface using 

abrasive blasting, and applying a three layer high performance coating system including an organic zinc 

rich primer, either an epoxy or urethane intermediate coat, and a fluoropolymer finish coat. This system 

would be expected to provide corrosion protection for between fifteen and twenty years with minimal touch-

up and color and gloss retention for twenty years. This system would require abatement of any hazardous 

materials in the coating and containment. Our recommendation also includes the installation of new silicone 

glazing sealant at all glass to metal joints as well as all metal-to-metal butt joints between the sill stop and 

framing and framing and spandrel. We recommend the use of silicone sealants as they are more resistant to 

UV degradation and have a longer service life than their counterparts. However, silicone sealant is not 

paintable so it will need to be installed after the facade is re-coated.  Our opinion of probable cost for this 

scope of work would be $750,000 to $900,000. WJE has been retained to prepare bid documents for this 

work to acquire competitive bids for this work.  

Page 117 of 125



Page 118 of 125



Memorandum 

DATE: July 11, 2019 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Kate Hall, Executive Director 

RE: Axis 360 Community Share Intergovernmental Agreement 

We are moving to a new platform for our eBook and eAudiobook lending for 

students.  Where we previously offered young patrons the option of using Overdrive and 

Cloudlibrary, we are moving all our content for K-8 to Axis 360.  With Axis 360 becoming our 

primary ebook vendor for K-8, we will be better able to market these titles to our patrons. 

This platform has the option to share content with local school districts, giving students a 

more substantial collection to check out from and an easier way for us to connect with this 

demographic. 

To facilitate this new service, we need to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(IGA) with any school district that is interested.  At this point, all four school districts are 

interested in partnering. Our attorney has crafted the IGA, and it is included in your packet. 

The library will bear the cost for the platform and content and will be asking the schools to 

provide staffing support to set-  and onsite technical support for 

the platform.  With Axis 360 Community Share, the students would have access to our 

collection of ebook and eaudiobook materials that are available using their student id 

number and/or device. 

Youth Services Manager, Kelly Durov, will be joining us at the meeting to give you a more 

detailed overview of Axis 360 and the Community Share function.   

Page 119 of 125

http://btol.com/PDFs/CommunityShareBrochure.pdf


Page 120 of 125



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR LIBRARY SERVICES 

This intergovernmental agreement (“Agreement”) for library services is made this 18 day of 

July, 2019 by, between, and among the Northbrook Public Library (“Library”), Northbrook 

School District 27 (“District 27”), Northbrook District 28 (“District 28”), Northbrook/Glenview 

School District 30 (“District 30”), and West Northfield School District 31 (“District 31”) 

(Districts 27, 28, 30 and 31 are collectively, the “Districts,” the Library and the Districts are 

collectively the “Parties”).  

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article VII, Sec. 10 of the Illinois Constitution of 1970, the 

Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, (5 ILCS 220/1 et seq.), and the Illinois Local Library Act 

(75 ILCS 5/4-7(8)), the Library and the Districts are authorized to enter into intergovernmental 

agreements for library services; and  

WHEREAS, the Library wishes to cooperate with the Districts to provide access to eContent 

through the Axis 360 System & Services (“Services”) provided to Library by Baker & Taylor, 

LLC and/or any affiliate thereof (“Baker & Taylor”) to currently enrolled students at the Districts 

(“Students”) in order to further the Library’s mission of stimulating lifelong learning through 

innovative, responsive programming, partnerships, resources, and services; and 

WHEREAS, the Districts wish to cooperate with the Library to provide Students greater access 

to books, audiobooks, video and other works in digital format that are contained in the Axis 360 

System to further the School’s mission of preparing students to reach their full potential as 

lifelong learners; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties believe that the provision of Services by the Library and the principles 

of equity or costs of services described herein provide benefits to the Library, Districts, and the 

general public and believe it is in the best interests of the community to enter into this 

Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Services.

A. Library.  The Library shall coordinate with Baker & Taylor to establish an online

system whereby Students may view and check out approved eContent from the Axis 360

System including: (i) enabling the Districts to view a subset of selected eContent titles

under license by the Library from Baker & Taylor, (ii) providing an authentication

system at or for the Districts whereby Students are eligible to become authorized users

with authority to check out eContent, (iii) controlling access to the Axis 360 System by

valid IP address, referring URL, identification codes and passwords and/or other

commercially reasonable methods, as determined by Baker & Taylor, and (iv) executing

check outs of eContent with appropriate recognition of such check outs in the Axis 360

System.

Page 121 of 125



B. Districts.  Each District shall be responsible for providing Baker & Taylor an API

or SIP connection to their Follet based library management system to enable

implementation of the authentication system described in 1.A.(ii).  Districts shall ensure

the numeric IDs do not contain personally identifiable information.

2. District Liaison.  Annually on or before the first day of the new school year, each

District shall provide the Library with the name, title, telephone number and e-mail

address of a contact person at the District who is designated to communicate with the

Library Director, or his or her designee, regarding the terms and conditions of this

Agreement.

3. Term and Renewal of IGA. The Agreement shall be effective upon the approval of all

the Parties and shall remain in effect until terminated. Any District may choose to no

longer participate in the Agreement without cause or penalty upon thirty (30) days prior

written notice to the Library and payment to Library of any outstanding consideration.

The Library may choose to terminate the Agreement at any time without cause or penalty

upon thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Districts.  The Agreement shall also

terminate once all Districts choose to no longer participate in the Agreement.

4. Consideration.  The parties recognize that some of the Students receiving Services under

the Agreement do not live within the boundaries of the Library and Section 4-7(8) of the

Local Library Act recognizes the principle of equity or cost of services must be

apportioned to the Districts based on the value of the Services received by the Students.

Therefore, in exchange for extending the Services to the Students not living within the

boundaries of the Library, the Parties agree that the Districts will provide the Library

consideration in the form and amounts described in Exhibit A to be mutually agreed upon

annually by the Library Director and the superintendents of the Districts.

5. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Parties shall indemnify, and

hold each other Party, its board members, officers, administrators, employees, volunteers,

and agents (“Indemnitees”), harmless against any and all liability, loss, expense, including

reasonable attorneys’ fees, for claims for injury or damages arising out of the Agreement; but

only in proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims

for injury or damages are caused by or result from the negligent or willful acts or omissions

of a Party, including the Party’s board members, officers, administrators, employees,

volunteers, and agents subject, however, to any defenses or limitations of liability permitted

under the Local Governmental and Governmental Employees Tort Immunity Act, 745 ILCS

10/1 et seq., or otherwise provided by law.  These indemnification obligations shall survive

termination of the Agreement.

6. Amendments. Any amendment to the Agreement must be reduced to writing and signed

by authorized representatives of the Library and the Districts.

7. Notice. Any notice required by the Agreement shall be delivered personally or by

electronic mail at the following addresses. Notice will be deemed served upon delivery.

Page 122 of 125



To the Library:  

Northbrook Public Library 

1201 Cedar Ln 

Northbrook, IL 60062 

Attn. Executive Director 

Email khall@northbrook.info 

To District 27:  

Northbrook School District 27 

1250 Sanders Rd 

Northbrook, IL 60062 

Attn. Superintendent 

Email kroeze.b@nb27.org 

To District 28:  

Northbrook School District 28 

1475 Maple Ave 

Northbrook, IL 60062 

Attn. Superintendent 

Email lhewitt@northbrook28.net 

To District 30:  

Northbrook/Glenview School 

District 30 

2374 Shermer Road  

Northbrook, IL 60062 

Attn. Superintendent 

Email bwegley@district30.org 

To District 31:  

West Northfield School District 31 

3131 Techny Rd 

Northbrook, IL 60062 

Attn. Superintendent 

Email emurphy@district31.net

8. Compliance with Laws. Each Party shall comply with all applicable laws, rules and

regulations with regard to the terms and conditions of the Agreement.

9. Governing Law. The Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Illinois.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused the Agreement to be executed by 

their duly authorized representatives on the dates set forth below.  

SIGNATURE PAGES ATTACHED 

Page 123 of 125



Library 

By ____________________ 

Its ____________________ 

Date __________________ 

District 27 

By ____________________ 

Its ____________________ 

Date __________________ 

District 28 

By ____________________ 

Its ____________________ 

Date __________________ 

District 30 

By ____________________ 

Its ____________________ 

Date __________________ 

District 31 

By ____________________ 

Its ____________________ 

Date __________________

Page 124 of 125



EXHIBIT A 

Form and Amount of Consideration 

To participate, each district will make an annual contribution to the library based on the number 

of non-resident student households served by the school district. A non-resident student 

household is a household that is not within the Northbrook Public Library’s taxing boundaries. 

The library will inquire as to the number of non-resident student households served annually and 

invoice the schools at the beginning of each school year. 

The cost for non-resident student households is determined by multiplying the number of 

households by the cost per household (Axis 360 cost/ Number of Northbrook households).  The 

cost per household will be determined annually based on the Axis 360 costs and number of 

Northbrook households. 

2019 

Cost of Axis 360 services: $8,500 

Number of Northbrook Households: 16,975 

Cost per household: $.50 

Page 125 of 125


	3 Agenda
	4.1 General Session Minutes 6.20.19
	6.1 Cash Balances & Income Statement
	6.2 Bills & Charges
	7 Foundation
	9 Director's Report July 2019
	9 Collaboratory June 2019
	9 RAILS June 2019 report
	10.1 Facility Plan Memo
	10.1 Facility Plan Option 1 Current Scenairo
	10.1 Facility Plan Option 2 Operating Only
	10.1 Facility Plan Option 3 Bond Isuance
	10.1 Facility Plan Bond Cost
	10.1 Faciity Plan Funding Plan
	10.1 Facility Plan
	Report Cover, 19-472
	Summary Report, 19-472, 6-14-19
	Appendix A - Component Summary Reports
	Site Elements, 19-472, 6-13-19
	Roofing, 19-472, 6-13-19
	Facade, 19-472, 6-13-19
	Interior Finishes, 19-472, 6-13-19
	MEP&FP, 19-472, 6-13-19

	Appendix B - Financial Analysis Tables
	Table 1 - Element Expense Summary
	Table 2 - Present Day Annual Expense Summary
	Table 2a - Tech & Comm Breakdown
	Table 3 - Inflated Annual Expense Summary
	Table 4 - Funding Plan (Tabular)
	Table 5 - Funding Plan (Graphical)
	Table 6 - Current Fund Status


	10.2 Parking Lot Barrier Memo
	11.1 IPLAR 2019
	11.2 Exterior Facade Repair
	11.3 Axis 360 Community Share Memo
	11.3 IGA for Axis 360 Shared Services
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



